
           

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
City of Garland

Council Chambers, City Hall
William E. Dollar Municipal Building

200 North Fifth Street
Garland, Texas 
August 15, 2023

7:00 p.m.
 

 
The City Council extends to each visitor a sincere welcome. We value your interest in
your community and your participation in the meetings of this governing body. Regular
meetings of the City Council are held the 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month, beginning
at 7:00 p.m.; the City Council meets regularly in work sessions at 6:00 p.m. the Monday
preceding each regular meeting.

Garland City Hall and Council Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Special parking is
available on the east side of City Hall and on Austin & State Street west of City Hall.
 Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary
aids or services must contact the City Secretary’s Office at (972) 205-2404 at least two
working days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.
BRAILLE IS NOT AVAILABLE.

NOTICE: The City Council may recess from the open session and convene in a closed
executive session if the discussion of any of the listed agenda items concerns one or more of the
following matters:

(1) Pending/contemplated litigation, settlement offer(s), and matters concerning privileged and
unprivileged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules
of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

(2)  The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property, if the deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the City in negotiations with a
third person.  Sec. 551.072, Tex. Gov't Code.

(3) A contract for a prospective gift or donation to the City, if the deliberation in an open meeting
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the City in negotiations with a third person.

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 1 



Sec. 551.073, Tex. Gov't Code.

(4) Personnel matters involving the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear a complaint against an officer or
employee.  Sec. 551.074, Tex. Gov't Code.

(5) The deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices.
Sec.  551.076, Tex. Gov't Code.

(6) Discussions or deliberations regarding commercial or financial information that the City has
received from a business prospect that the City seeks to have to locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the City and with which the City is conducting economic development
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect of
the sort described in this provision. Sec. 551.087, Tex. Gov't Code.

(7) Discussions, deliberations, votes, or other final action on matters related to the City’s
competitive activity, including information that would, if disclosed, give advantage to competitors
or prospective competitors and is reasonably related to one or more of the following categories
of information:

generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those
costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling;
bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation, and fuel, and Electric
Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and
contracts;
risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales,
other than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for
which the public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider; and
 customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information,
system load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.  Sec.
551.086;  Tex. Gov't Code; Sec. 552.133, Tex. Gov’t Code]

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 2 



           

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

It is the custom and tradition of the members of the City Council to have an invocation
and recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior to the beginning of the meeting.  Members
of the audience are invited to participate.  However, members of the audience are not
required to participate.  The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal
choice and has no bearing on matters to be considered by the City Council and will not
affect the decisions to be made during the meeting. 

 
MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS,

RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Mayor may present proclamations and recognize attendees or award winners, and
may make announcements regarding upcoming City events and matters of interest to
citizens. There will be no Council deliberations or votes on these matters.

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of
Council, without discussion. Council has had the opportunity to review each of these
items at a previous work session and approval of the consent agenda authorizes the
City Manager to implement each item. The Mayor will announce the agenda and provide
an opportunity for members of the audience and the City Council to request that an
item be removed and considered separately.

 
 

1. Consider approval of the minutes of the August 1, 2023 Regular Meeting.
 

2. Consider approval of the following bids:   
 

a. GP&L Lookout to NTT Connect Project Materials   Bid No. 0569-23
     
MVA Power, Inc. $ 543,635.59
Optional Contingency $   54,363.56
  $ 597,999.15

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 3 



This request is for purchasing steel structures and associated materials needed
to connect NTT transformers to the GP&L Lookout Substation as part of NTT’s
data center expansion. This is part of the approved Lookout to NTT Connect CIP
project. An optional contingency is included for any additional materials that may
be required.

 
b. GP&L Boiler Maintenance and Repair Services   Bid No. 0804-23

     
Hi-Tech Industrial Services, LLC. $ 1,050,000.00

This request is to provide as-needed boiler maintenance and repair services at
the GP&L Olinger and Spencer Power Plants. This approval is for a term
agreement with three (3) optional renewals.
 

 
c. GP&L CO2 Analyzer Rental   Bid No. 0790-22

     
Air Hygiene International, Inc. $ 36,000.00

This request is to approve a change order to extend the rental period for CO2
Analyzers at the Spencer Plant. The rental period was extended due to delivery
delays of replacement analyzers associated with the approved Spencer CEMS
Analyzer replacement CIP project.
 

 
d. GP&L Girvin Switch to Greasewood II Hardware Materials   Bid No. 0925-23

     
KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. $ 438,290.52
Optional Contingency $   43,829.05
TOTAL: $ 482,119.57

This request is for the purchase of hardware and associated materials to
construct the GP&L Girvin Switch to Greasewood II 345kV Transmission Line.
This is part of the approved Girvin to Greasewood II 345kV Transmission Line
CIP project. An optional contingency is included for any additional materials that
may be required.

 
e. TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Transmission Line

Hardware Materials 
  Bid No. 0938-23

     
KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. $ 367,234.03
Optional Contingency $   36,723.40

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 4 



TOTAL: $ 403,957.43

This request is for the purchase of hardware materials needed for the rebuild of
the TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Transmission Line. This is part of the
approved TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Rebuild CIP project and will be
reimbursed to GP&L at 100%. An optional contingency has been included for any
additional materials that may be required.

 
f. GP&L and TMPA Transmission Relay and

Communications Equipment 
  Bid No. 0901-23

     
Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories, Inc. $ 350,000.00

The purpose of this bid award is for the as-needed purchase of SEL relay and
communication equipment to be used in GP&L and TMPA transmission facilities.
 This will be an initial term contract with four optional renewals.
 

 
g. Wastewater Mains Replacement   Bid No. 0732-22

     
Tri-Con Services, Inc. $ 112,968.71

The request is to approve a change order for the Sam Houston to Mill Pond and
Village Green to Richland wastewater mains replacement. The change order is
necessary due to the length of the 4-inch sanitary sewage service lines exceeding
the expected length per connection. The removal and replacement of paving and
drainage channel also exceeded estimated costs due to actual field conditions.
 

 
3. Public hearings were previously conducted for the following zoning cases.

Council approved the requests and instructed staff to bring forth the
following ordinances for consideration.

  

 

a. Z 22-72, Val Gutierrez (District 6)

Consider an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair
Use on a 0.937-acre tract of land located at 4003 Miller Park Drive and zoned
Industrial (IN) District; providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations;
providing a penalty under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a Notice of Conditions of Compliance
Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an
effective date. 

 

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 5 



b. Z 23-21, Will Bohls (District 8)

Consider an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving a Specific Use Provision for a Building/Garden
Materials Sales & Storage (Wholesale) use on a 0.99-acre tract of land located at
543 North Fifth Street and zoned Downtown (DT) District, Uptown Sub-District;
providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty under
the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland,
Texas; providing a Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a
Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an effective date. 

 
4. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Project

Specific Agreement with Dallas County for Transportation Improvements on
Jupiter Road

The City of Garland entered into a Master Interlocal Agreement with Dallas
County that provides for a 50/50 cost share participation program for maintenance
and repairs on certain qualifying roadways in the City. The Project Specific
Agreement for maintenance and repairs to Jupiter Road establishes a total
estimated cost of $4,100,000, with the cost to be split equally between the City
and County.

 
5. Consider a resolution for a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County

(County) for class B roadway improvement project

Consider and take appropriate action to authorize the City Manager or their
designee to execute the attached Project Specific Agreement with the County for
Project Specific Agreement.

 
6. Garland Development Code Ordinance 1.51 – Engineering Review and

Inspection Fee

Consider and take appropriate action to assess an Engineering Review and
Inspections Fee for all private development that includes public works
improvements as part of the development.  

 
7. Proposed Part-time Associate Judge Appointment

Consider and take appropriate action regarding a proposal to enter into a contract
with Donna Winfield in her capacity as an Associate Judge to fulfill temporary
duties of the full time judges during necessary absences.  

 

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 6 



ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fill out a speaker card
and give it to the City Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to
the Council Chambers). The Mayor will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit
and may provide for rebuttal. All comments and testimony are to be presented from the
podium.

 
 

8. Public Hearing on Proposed FY 2023/2024 Tax Rate

The Texas Property Tax Code, Section 26.05 (d), provides that a governing body
may not adopt a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the voter approval rate or the
no new revenue tax rate until the governing body has held a public hearing on the
proposed tax rate and has otherwise complied with Section 26.06 and Section
26.065 of the Texas Property Tax Code. The 2023-2024 proposed budget is
based on a tax rate of 68.9746 cents per every $100 of valuation, which exceeds
the no new revenue tax rate of 63.6388 cents per every $100 of value.

 
9. Public Hearing on 2023-24 Proposed Budget

Section 5, Article VIII, of the City Charter, requires that a Public Hearing be held
on the Proposed Budget for the coming fiscal year.  At the Public Hearing, all
interested persons shall be allowed to be heard for or against any item contained
in the Proposed Budget. 

 
10. Hold public hearings on:   
 

a. Consider a Zoning request by Fred A. Gans to construct garage
condominiums (“Garages of America”), with automobile repair, office,
storage/warehouse and retail use. The site is located at 4653, 4645, 4625
and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike in District 1.

Consideration of the application of Fred A. Gans, requesting approval of an
Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses to allow a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair, General Office,
Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use. This property is
located at 4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike.
(File Z 23-17, District 1)

 
 

b. Consider a Detail Plan request by Fred A. Gans to construct garage

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 7 



b. Consider a Detail Plan request by Fred A. Gans to construct garage
condominiums (“Garages of America”), with automobile repair, office,
storage/warehouse and retail use. The site is located at 4653, 4645, 4625
and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike in District 1. 

Consideration of the application of Fred A. Gans, requesting approval of a Detail
Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair, General Office, Contractor’s
Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use. This property is located at 4653,
4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike. (File Z 23-17,
District 1)
 

 
c. Consider a Zoning request by Jake Finch, Cascade Companies to rezone

the property from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family Attached (SFA)
District to allow townhouses. The site is located at 613 and 615 Rowlett
Road in District 4.

Consideration of the application of Jake Finch, Cascade Companies, requesting
approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family
Attached (SFA) District. This property is located at 613 and 615 Rowlett Road.
(File Z 23-22, District 4)

 
d. Hold a public hearing and consider a Municipal Setting Designation

ordinance request by 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC.  The site is located
at 1901 Northwest Highway in District 5. 

Discuss and consider an ordinance prohibiting the use and contact with
designated groundwater from beneath certain property known as 1901 Northwest
Highway with the City of Garland, Texas, to facilitate certification of a municipal
setting designation.
 

 
e. Hold a public hearing and consider a Municipal Setting Designation

resolution request by 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC. The site is located
at 1901 Northwest Highway in District 5.

Discuss and consider a resolution supporting the application of 1901 W
Northwest Highway, LLC, for a municipal setting designation for the property
located at 1901 W. Northwest Highway.

 
11. Consider appointments to Boards and Commissions.

Board members are selected for two-year terms by the City Council in August.
Terms are usually staggered whereby at least half of the membership has board
experience. Board members are appointed based on qualifications.

  

 

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 8 



a. Mayor Scott Lemay 
Jennifer Nguyen – Community Multicultural Commission
Elvia Flores – Community Multicultural Commission
Mitch Carr – Cultural Arts Commission
Ken Risser – Environmental and Community Advisory Board
Don Koerner – Parks and Recreation Board
Wayne Dalton – Plan Commission
David Perry – Property Standards Board
Shirley Robnett – Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Allan Stafford – Tax Increment Finance #1 Downtown Board
Patrick Abell – Tax Increment Finance #3 Board

 
b. Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Bass 

Beena Varnan - Cultural Arts Commission
Nancy Janssen - Parks and Recreation Board

 
c. Council Member Dylan Hedrick 

John VanPelt - Cultural Arts Commission
Terri Chepregi - Library Board
David Parrish - Parks and Recreation Board
Mike Rose - Plan Commission
Martha Melaku - Property Standards Board
Charlotte Piercy - Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Tony Bui - Tax Increment Finance #1 Downtown Board

 
12. Citizen comments.

Persons wishing to address issues not on the agenda may have three minutes to
address Council at this time. Council is prohibited from discussing any item not
posted according to the Texas Open Meetings Act.

  

 

13. Adjourn. 

All Regular Council meetings are broadcast live on CGTV, Time Warner Cable
Channel 16, and Frontier FIOS TV 44. Meetings are rebroadcast at 9:00 a.m. and
7:00 p.m. on Wednesday-Sunday and at 7:30 p.m. on Thursday. Live streaming
and on-demand videos of the meetings are also available online at 
www.garlandtx.gov. Copies of the meetings can be purchased through the City
Secretary’s Office – audio CD’s are $1 each and DVD’s are $3 each.

  

 

City Council Agenda
August 15, 2023
Page 9 

http://www.garlandtx.gov


GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 1.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Minutes August 1, 2023 
Submitted By: Rene Dowl, City Secretary 

Summary of Request/Problem
Consider approval of the minutes of the August 1, 2023, Regular Meeting.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification

Attachments
Minutes August 1, 2023 



MINUTES
 

 
The City Council of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
August 1, 2023, in the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 North Fifth
Street, Garland, Texas, with the following members present:
 

Present:  Mayor Scott LeMay   
Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Bass   
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Ed Moore   
Council Member Deborah Morris   
Council Member B.J. Williams   
Council Member Margaret Lucht   
Council Member Carissa Dutton   
Council Member Dylan Hedrick   
Council Member Chris Ott   

Staff Present:  City Manager Judson Rex
Deputy City Manager Mitch Bates
Assistant City Manager Crystal Owens
Assistant City Manager Phillip Urrutia
City Attorney Brian England
City Secretary Eloyce René Dowl

 

 

               

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

It is the custom and tradition of the members of the City Council to have an invocation and
recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior to the beginning of the meeting.  Members of the
audience are invited to participate.  However, members of the audience are not required to
participate.  The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice and has no
bearing on matters to be considered by the City Council and will not affect the decisions to
be made during the meeting. 

 

1 



 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS,
RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Mayor may present proclamations and recognize attendees or award winners, and may
make announcements regarding upcoming City events and matters of interest to citizens.
There will be no Council deliberations or votes on these matters.

 
Crystal Lazo, Animal Services, Adoption Specialist, presented the Pet of the Month.

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of Council,
without discussion. Council has had the opportunity to review each of these items at a
previous work session and approval of the consent agenda authorizes the City Manager to
implement each item. The Mayor will announce the agenda and provide an opportunity for
members of the audience and the City Council to request that an item be removed and
considered separately.

 
The motion was made by Council Member Hedrick to approve the Consent Agenda as presented,
excluding Item 3d, which was pulled for individual consideration. Motion carried:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 nays

 
1. APPROVED

 
Consider approval of the Minutes of the July 18, 2023 meeting.   

 
2.   Consider approval of the following bids:
 

a. APPROVED
 

Polydyne Inc.   Bid No. 1261-21
     
Polydyne Inc. $ 159,000.00

This request is to approve a change order to the Rowlett Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant polymer contract. The polymer is used for drying sludge that
goes through the centrifuge to haul dry solids to the landfill. The change order
is necessary due to price increases for polymer as well as tariff freight
charges.

  

 
b. APPROVED

 
GP&L Underground Duct Bank Extension   Bid No. 0865-23
     
The Fishel Company $ 498,810.03

This request is to provide labor for the installation of a feeder duct bank
extension needed to establish electric service to the LCG Firewheel
Apartment Complex development. This is part of the Distribution Underground
Construction CIP program.      

  

 
3.   Public hearings were previously conducted for the following zoning

2 



3.   Public hearings were previously conducted for the following zoning
cases. Council approved the requests and instructed staff to bring forth
the following ordinances for consideration.

 
a. APPROVED

 
Z 21-07, DDC, Inc. (District 1)

Ordinance No. 7449 amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving a Detail Plan for Single-Family Detached
Homes on a 28.62-acre tract of land zoned Planned Development (PD)
District 16-23 and located at 2675 East Brand Road; providing for conditions,
restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty under the provisions of Sec.
10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a
Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a
Severability Clause; and providing an effective date.

  

 
b. APPROVED

 
Z 21-41, Homeyer Engineering (District 3)

Ordinance No. 7450 amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving 1) a Change in Zoning from Single-Family-7
(SF-7) District and Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development (PD)
District for Single-Family Attached Uses; 2) an Alley Waiver and 3) a Detail
Plan for Single-Family Attached (SFA) development on a 2.262-acre tract of
land located 1306 and 1314 Rowlett Road; providing for conditions,
restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty under the provisions of Sec.
10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a
Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a
Severability Clause; and providing an effective date.

  

 
c. APPROVED

 
Z 23-12, Manhard Consulting (District 5)

Ordinance No. 7451 amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving 1) a Change in Zoning from Multi-Family-1
(MF-1) District and Community Retail (CR) District to a Planned Development
(PD) District for Multi-Family-2 (MF-2) uses and 2) a Detail Plan for
Multi-Family development on a 2.2875-acre area of land located at 1214 &
1302 West Miller Road; providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations;
providing a penalty under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a Notice of Conditions of
Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause;
and providing an effective date.

  

 
d. APPROVED

 
Z 23-18, Petit-ECD (District 5)

Ordinance No. 7452 amending the Garland Development Code of the City of
Garland, Texas, by approving 1) an amendment to Planned Development
(PD) District 03-54 and 2) a Detail Plan for an Automobile Repair, Minor use
on a 9.488-acre tract of land located at 11511 & 11611 LBJ Freeway;
providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty
under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Garland, Texas; providing a Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause;
providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an
effective date.

  

3 



Council Member Lucht explained her position for denial of this request at the
July 17, 2023, meeting.

The motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Bass to approve the item as
presented, seconded by Council Member Williams. Motion carried:

Vote: 8 ayes, 1 nay (Council Member Lucht)
 

4. APPROVED
 

Resolution No. 10586 for the Project Specific Agreement with Dallas
County for Duck Creek South Extension Trail

Council authorized the City Manager to execute the PSA with Dallas County
for the Duck Creek South Extension Trail project.

  

 
5. APPROVED

 
Bond Refunding - Electric Utility System Commercial Paper Notes

Ordinance No. 7453 authorizing the refunding of Electric Utility System
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 2021.

  

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fill out a speaker card and
give it to the City Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers). The Mayor will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and
may provide for rebuttal. All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 

 
6.   Hold public hearings on:
 

a. APPROVED
 

Consider a Specific Use Provision request by Val Gutierrez for a truck
repair facility. The site is located at 4003 Miller Park Drive in District 6.

Consideration of the application of Val Gutierrez, requesting approval of a
Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair Use on a property zoned
Industrial (IN) District. This property is located at 4003 Miller Park Drive. (File
Z 22-72, District 6)

The Staff report was presented by Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development
Planner. The speaker on this item was Val Gutierrez.

There was discussion by the Council.

The motion was made by Council Member Dutton to approve the Specific
Use Provision (Item 6a) and the Plan (Item 6b) as presented, seconded by
Council Member Hedrick. Motion carried: 

Vote: 8 ayes, 1 nay (Council Member Lucht)

  

 
b. APPROVED Consider a Plan request by Val Gutierrez for a truck repair facility. The   

4 



b. APPROVED
 

Consider a Plan request by Val Gutierrez for a truck repair facility. The
site is located at 4003 Miller Park Drive in District 6.

Consideration of the application of Val Gutierrez, requesting approval of a
Plan for a Truck/Bus Repair Use. This property is located at 4003 Miller Park
Drive. (File Z 22-72, District 6)

  

 
c. APPROVED

 
Consider a Specific Use Provision request by Will Bohls for a building
materials (cabinetry materials) storage business in an existing building.
The site is located at 543 North Fifth Street in District 8.

Consideration of the application of William Bohls, requesting approval of a
Specific Use Provision for a Building/Garden Materials Sales & Storage
(Wholesale) Use on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Uptown
sub-district. This property is located at 543 North Fifth Street.  (File Z 23-21,
District 8)

The staff report was presented by Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development
Planner. The speaker on this item was Will Banks, applicant.

There was discussion by the Council.

The motion was made by Council Member Ott to approve the Specific Use
Provision for five years (Item 6c) and the Plan request (Item 6d), seconded by
Council Member Lucht. Motion carried:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 ayes

  

 
d. APPROVED

 
Consider a Plan request by Will Bohls for a building materials (cabinetry
materials) storage business in an existing building. The site is located
at 543 North Fifth Street in District 8. 

Consideration of the application of Will Bohls, requesting approval of a Plan
for a Building/Garden Materials Sales & Storage (Wholesale) Use. This
property is located at 543 North Fifth Street.  (File Z 23-21, District 8)

  

 
7.   Items for Individual Consideration:
 

a. APPROVED
 

Request for Enterprise Zone Nomination of Zobele USA 

Consider and take appropriate action in regard to the City's participation in the
Texas Enterprise Zone Program and nominating Zobele USA as an
Enterprise Project.

Ayako Schuster, Director of Economic Development, requested Council
approval for the Enterprise Zone Project. 

Mayor LeMay opened the public hearing at 7:35 p.m. There were no speakers
on this item and the public hearing was closed at 7:36 p.m. 
 The motion was made by Council Member Hedrick to approve the City's

  

5 



 The motion was made by Council Member Hedrick to approve the City's
participation in the Texas Enterprise Program and nomination for Zobele
USA, seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Moore. Motion carried:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 nays, adopting Ordinance No. 7454
 

b. APPROVED
 

Resolution No 10587 Authorizing Use of Eminent Domain - GP&L
Transmission

Council approved a resolution authorizing the acquisition of the property rights
described in the proposed resolution to reconstruct a portion of the Garland
Power & Light College Avenue to Brand Road 138kV transmission line located
in the City of Garland. 

The motion was made by Council Member Ott that the City Council of the City
of Garland, Texas, authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to
acquire property interests as more fully described in Exhibit "A" to the
proposed ordinance located within the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas
for the reconstruction of the College to Brand 138kV transmission line
project. My motion includes approval of the proposed resolution and intends
that the record vote on this matter applies to all units of property to be
condemned, seconded by Council Member Hedrick. Motion carried:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 nays

  

 
c. APPROVED

 
Lease of Property located at 625 W. State Street

Council approved a 15-year lease agreement for the property located at 625
W. State Street in Downtown.

Jolene Smith, John Wiseman and Trayc Claybrook registered a position in
support of this request. The speaker on this item was Karen Wiseman.

There was Council discussion.

Council Member Hedrick presented comments in opposition to the request.

The motion was made by Council Member Morris to approve the request as
presented, seconded by Council Member Lucht. Motion carried:

Vote: 5 ayes, 4 nays (Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Moore, Council Members:
Dutton, Hedrick and Williams)

  

 
d. APPROVED

 
Submission of Appraisal Roll and Rates for FY 2023-2024

Council is requested to consider and provide a proposed tax rate and hearing
dates in accordance with State Law, taking into account the attached tax
rates, notice, and appraisal certifications, which are also required by law and
which have been provided to Council.

The motion was made by Council Member Hedrick that the proposed 2023
tax rate of 68.9746 cents per $100 of valuation be discussed at three public
hearings. The public is encouraged to provide comment at the first public
hearing to be held on August 15, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Garland City Hall,

  

6 



located at 200 N. Fifth Street, in Garland.
A second public hearing to be held on August 22, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the
Garland City Hall, located at 200 N. Fifth Street, in Garland.

An additional opportunity for public comment will be scheduled at a public
hearing to adopt the 2023 tax rate. The third hearing and rate adoption will be
held on September 5, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Garland City Hall, located at
200 N. Fifth Street, in Garland, seconded by Council Member Dutton. Motion
carried:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 nays
 

e.  Presentation of the 2023-24 Proposed Budget

In accordance with the City Charter and State Law, the City Manager shall
submit to the City Council a Proposed Budget for the coming fiscal year. The
City Manager will formally present his Proposed Budget for FY 2023-24.
Following the presentation to Council, copies of the Proposed Budget will
be placed in each City Library, in the Office of the City Secretary, and on the
City's website for public review and inspection. 

City Manager Judson Rex gave his formal presentation of the Proposed
2023-24 Budget.

  

 
8.   Consider appointments to Boards and Commissions.

Board members are selected for two-year terms by the City Council in
August. Terms are usually staggered whereby at least half of the membership
has board experience. Board members are appointed based on qualifications.

 
a.  Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Ed Moore 

Adam Greenup - Library Board

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Moore presented his nomination and a vote was cast
with the following result:

Vote: 9 ayes, 0 nays

  

 

7 



               
9.   Citizen comments: Sophia Macias
 

10.   Adjourn: There being no further business to come before the City Council, Mayor LeMay
adjourned the meeting at 8:12 p.m.

 
Submitted By:

_________________________________________
Scott LeMay, Mayor

_________________________________________
Eloyce René Dowl, City Secretary

8 



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. a.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: GP&L Lookout to NTT Connect Project Materials
Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L

Transmission Director 
Bid Number: 0569-23

Purchase Justification:
This request is for purchasing steel structures and associated materials needed to
connect NTT transformers to the GP&L Lookout Substation as part of NTT’s data center
expansion. This is part of the approved Lookout to NTT Connect CIP project. An optional
contingency is included for any additional materials that may be required.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Five (5) bids were
received and evaluated with MVA Power, Inc. submitting the Straight Low Bid.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

MVA Power, Inc. All $543,635.59
Optional Contingency   54,363.56
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$597,999.15

Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #: 48940

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $2,750,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date: $1,542,553
Balance: $1,207,447
This Item: $597,999
Proposed Balance: $609,448



Account #: 210-3799-3180201-6051
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / Substations Upgrades Program

Attachments
Bid Recap 

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2023  
Document Location: Page 276  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/24/2023 



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 Lt.
GP&L Lookout to NTT Connect 
Project - Materials $543,635.59 $543,635.59 $582,081.00 $582,081.00 $738,796.24 $738,796.24 $783,493.23 $783,493.23 $908,950.86 $908,950.86

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $543,635.59 $582,081.00 $738,796.24 $783,493.23 $908,950.86
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $543,635.59 $582,081.00 $738,796.24 $783,493.23 $908,950.86

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $582,081.00 303 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $543,635.59 30 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $38,445.41 10 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVEREDDELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

MVA Power, Inc. KBS Electrical Distributors, 
Inc. Anxiter, Inc. Techline, Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  April 4, 2023           
REQ. NO   PR 48940    
BID NO.     0569-23      
PAGE:       1 of 1                 
BUYER:     Teresa Smith      

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

Texas Electric Cooperatives, 
Inc.



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. b.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: GP&L Boiler Maintenance and Repair Services
Submitted By: David Bernard, GP&L

Production Services Director 
Bid Number: 0804-23

Purchase Justification:
This request is to provide as-needed boiler maintenance and repair services at the GP&L
Olinger and Spencer Power Plants. This approval is for a term agreement with three (3)
optional renewals.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Two (2) bids were
received. One (1) bid was considered non-responsive due to submitting an incomplete bid.
One (1) bid was evaluated based on published criteria. Hi-Tech Industrial Services, LLC.
received the highest evaluated score, offering the Best Value for the City.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Hi-Tech Industrial Services, LLC. All $1,050,000.00
     
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$1,050,000.00

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 49329

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: N/A
Expended/Encumbered to Date: N/A
Balance: N/A
This Item: $1,050,000
Proposed Balance: N/A



Proposed Balance: N/A
Account #: 451-6999
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Term Agreement sets price but does not commit funds. Expenses will be charged to the
appropriate Electric Production account(s) as incurred.

Attachments
Bid Recap 

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2022-23  
Document Location: Page 241  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/31/2023 



                

 

  

 

I

T

E

M QTY

U

N

I

T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Bid Price for Evaluation $84,508.65 $133,070.08

Evaluation Criteria:

Price Maximum = 40 40.00

Qualification of Bidder Maximum = 30 30.00

Necessary resources to provide services Maximum = 15 15.00

Emergency response time Maximum = 15 15.00

Total Score: Maximum = 100 100.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $84,508.65 $133,070.08

CASH DISCOUNT

TOTAL NET PRICE $84,508.65 $133,070.08

F.O.B.

DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $133,070.08 317 # IonWave Notifications

LOW: $84,508.65 31 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $48,561.43 0 # Direct Contact HUBS

1 # HUBS Responded

Non-Responsive

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Hi-Tech Industrial  Services, 
LLC.

South Texas Boiler 
Industries, LLC. 

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:     06/22/2023
REQ. NO      48329
BID NO         0804-23
PAGE:          1 of 1        
BUYER:        L. Segura 

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

Duval Sons, Inc. Mueller Service Co.CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. c.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: GP&L CO2 Analyzer Rental
Submitted By: David Bernard, GP&L

Production Services Director 
Bid Number: 0790-22

Purchase Justification:
This request is to approve a change order to extend the rental period for CO2 Analyzers at the
Spencer Plant. The rental period was extended due to delivery delays of replacement
analyzers associated with the approved Spencer CEMS Analyzer replacement CIP project. 

Evaluation:
Air Hygiene International, Inc. was awarded the original PO 33284 for $18,000 on May 17,
2022. Change order No.1 was approved for $18,000 on October 27, 2022. Change order No. 2
was approved for $18,000 on March 23, 2023. As competitive bids were not received for the
change order, and Bid Recap is omitted.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Air Hygiene International, Inc. All $36,000.00
     
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$36,000.00

Basis for Award: Change Order  
Purchase Requisition #: 49667

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $4,138,570
Expended/Encumbered to Date: $2,720,494
Balance: $1,418,076
This Item: $36,000
Proposed Balance: $1,382,076



Proposed Balance: $1,382,076
Account #: 211-3453-7203
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Electric Utility Fund / Production

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2022-23  
Document Location: Page 241  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/25/2023 



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. d.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: GP&L Girvin Switch to Greasewood II Hardware Materials 
Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L

Transmission Director 
Bid Number: 0925-23

Purchase Justification:
This request is for the purchase of hardware and associated materials to construct the GP&L
Girvin Switch to Greasewood II 345kV Transmission Line. This is part of the approved Girvin
to Greasewood II 345kV Transmission Line CIP project. An optional contingency is included
for any additional materials that may be required.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Three (3) bids were
received with KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. submitting the Straight Low Bid. 

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. All $438,290.52
Optional Contingency   43,829.05
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$482,119.57

Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #: 49522

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $1,986,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date: $666,527
Balance: $1,319,473
This Item: $482,120
Proposed Balance: $837,353



Account #: 210-3599-3145601-6051
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / Transmission Lines Program

Attachments
Bid Recap 

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2023  
Document Location: Page 270  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/31/2023 



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 Lt. Girvin to Greasewood II Hardware $438,290.52 $607,044.93 $667,915.42
Materials

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $438,290.52 $607,044.93 $667,915.42
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $438,290.52 $607,044.93 $667,915.42

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $607,044.93 315 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $438,290.52 32 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $168,754.41 2 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

KBS Electrical Distributors, 
Inc.

Techline, Inc. Texas Electric Cooperatives, 
Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  07/06/2023    
REQ. NO.  PR 49522  
BID NO.     0925-23  
PAGE:       1 of 1 
BUYER:     Sheldon Slover  

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. e.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Transmission Line Hardware Materials 
Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L

Transmission Director 
Bid Number: 0938-23

Purchase Justification:
This request is for the purchase of materials needed to rebuild the TMPA Dansby to Steep
Hollow Transmission Line. This is part of the approved TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Rebuild
CIP project and will be reimbursed to GP&L at 100%.  An optional contingency is included for
any additional materials that may be required.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Two (2) bids were
received and evaluated with KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. submitting the Straight Low Bid.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. All $367,234.03
Optional Contingency    36,723.40
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$403,957.43

Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #: 49503

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $13,000,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date: $4,694,907
Balance: $8,305,093
This Item: $403,957
Proposed Balance: $7,901,136



Account #: 215-3542-3147101-6051
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / TMPA Transmission Lines Program

Attachments
Bid Recap 

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2023  
Document Location: Page 270  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/31/2023 



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 LT 1 Dansby to Steep Hollow Rebuild $367,234.03 $367,234.03 $528,203.37 $528,203.37
Materials

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $367,234.03 $528,203.37
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $367,234.03 $528,203.37

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $528,203.37 319 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $367,234.03 36 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $160,969.34 14 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

KBS Electrical Distributors, 
Inc.

Techline, Inc.
CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:     7/6/23
REQ. NO.     49503
BID NO.        0938-23
PAGE:          1 of 1 
BUYER:        A. Arellano

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of 
a bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as 
any indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder 
upon award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection 
at that time.



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. f.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: GP&L and TMPA Transmission Relay and Communications Equipment 
Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L

Transmission Director 
Bid Number: 0901-23

Purchase Justification:
The request is for the purchase of SEL relay and communication equipment as needed for
GP&L and TMPA transmission facilities. This approval is for a term agreement with four (4)
optional renewals.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. One (1) bid was
received and evaluated with Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories, Inc. submitting the Straight
Low Bid. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories, Inc. All $350,000.00
     
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$350,000.00

Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #: 49492

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: N/A
Expended/Encumbered to Date: N/A
Balance: N/A
This Item: $350,000
Proposed Balance: N/A



Account #: 451-6999
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Term Agreement sets price but does not commit funds. Expenses will be charged to the
appropriate Electric Operating and/or CIP Transmission account(s) as incurred.

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: Operating Budget

CIP  

Fiscal Year: 2022-23  
Document Location: Op. - Page 241; CIP - Page 270  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/31/2023 



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 2. g.           
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Wastewater Mains Replacement 
Submitted By: Michael Brinkmann, Managing

Director 
Bid Number: 0732-22

Purchase Justification:
The request is to approve a change order for the Sam Houston to Mill Pond and Village Green
to Richland wastewater mains replacement. The change order is necessary due to the length
of the 4-inch sanitary sewage service lines exceeding the expected length per connection. The
removal and replacement of paving and drainage channel also exceeded estimated costs due
to actual field conditions. 

Evaluation:
Tri-Con Services, Inc. was awarded the original PO 33603 for $1,553,750 at the July 19,
2022, City Council Meeting. A Bid Recap is not included as competitive bids were not received
for the change order.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Tri-Con Services, Inc. All $112,968.71 
     
     
 

TOTAL:
---------------------------

$112,968.71 

Basis for Award: Change Order  
Purchase Requisition #: 49652

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $16,713,053
Expended/Encumbered to Date: $10,639,882
Balance: $6,073,171
This Item: $112,969



This Item: $112,969
Proposed Balance: $5,960,202
Account #: 230-4149-3212400-9305, 235-4149-3212400-9305 
Fund/Dept/Project – Description and Comments:
Wastewater CIP / Infiltration Correction - Various Program

Fiscal Reference:  
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2023  
Document Location: Page 245  

Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 08/03/2023 
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 07/25/2023 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-72 Val Gutierrez (District 6)
Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
Zoning Ordinance Z 22-72 Val Gutierrez

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Consider adoption of the attached ordinance.

Attachments
Z 22-72 Ordinance 
Z 22-72 Exhibit A 
Z 22-72 Exhibit B 
Z 22-72 Exhibits C-E 



 
ZONING FILE NO. Z 22-72 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, BY APPROVING A SPECIFIC USE 
PROVISION FOR A TRUCK/BUS REPAIR USE ON A 0.937-ACRE TRACT 
OF LAND LOCATED AT 4003 MILLER PARK DRIVE AND ZONED 
INDUSTRIAL (IN) DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS, 
RESTRICTIONS, AND REGULATIONS; PROVIDING A PENALTY UNDER 
THE PROVISIONS OF SEC. 10.05 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A NOTICE OF 
CONDITIONS OF COMPLIANCE CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE 
AND A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on the 10th day of 
July, 2023, the Plan Commission did consider and make 
recommendations on a certain request for a Specific Use 
Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair Use on a property zoned 
Industrial (IN) District, by Val Gutierrez; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council, after determining all legal 
requirements of notice and hearing have been met, has 
further determined the following amendment to the zoning 
laws would provide for and would be in the best interest of 
the health, safety, morals, and general welfare: 
 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, that: 
 
 

Section 1 
 
The Garland Development Code is hereby amended by approving 
a Specific Use Provision for a Truck/Bus Repair Use on a 
property zoned Industrial (IN) District and being more 
particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof.   
 
  

Section 2 
 

Development shall be in conformance with the conditions, 
restrictions, and regulations set forth in the Garland 
Development Code. 
 
 

Section 3 
 
That a violation of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor 
punishable in accordance with Section 10.05 of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Garland, Texas. 

 
 



 
FILE NO. Z 22-72 

 
Section 4 

 
NOTICE OF CONDITIONS OF COMPLIANCE:  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of any other ordinance of the City, the full, 
complete, and continuing compliance with all the 
conditions, restrictions, and regulations of this Ordinance 
is a condition to the issuance and continuation of any 
permit, approval, authorization or consent by the City, 
including without limitation the issuance or continuation 
of any certificate of occupancy for any building or 
structure located on any portion of the property described 
in Exhibit A. All promises, representations, obligations 
and undertakings made or assumed by the applicant to the 
City Council at any public presentation in connection with 

the granting of this Ordinance are hereby incorporated into 
and made a part of this Ordinance as if expressly set forth 
herein at length. No substantial deviation from any 
material portion of the conditions, restrictions, and 
regulations contained within this Ordinance are allowed 
except as may be provided by the City Council after a 
public hearing. 
 
 

Section 5 

 

That the Garland Development Code, as amended, shall be and 

remain in full force and effect save and except as amended 

by this Ordinance. 

 

Section 6 

 

That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are 

severable and are governed by Sec. 10.06 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas. 

 

 

Section 7 

 

That this Ordinance shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its passage and approval. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this________ day of ___________________, 
2023. 



 
FILE NO. Z 22-72 

 

 
 
      THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 

By: 
 
      ________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 

City Secretary 
 
 
 
       Published: 



ZONING FILE NUMBER Z 22-72 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

Zoning File Z 22-72 
 

 

BEING all of Lot 1, Block 3, Garland West Industrial Park, 

an addition to the City of Garland, Texas, according to the 

plat recorded in Volume 425, Page 1248 of the Map Records 

of Dallas County, Texas and being more particularly 

described by metes and bounds as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a ½-inch iron rod found at the Northeast 

corner of said Lot 1, being the Southeast corner of Lot 3, 

said Block 3 and lying in the West right-of-way lie of 

Miller Park Drive (a 60-foot-wide right-of-way; 

 

THENCE S 00° 13’ 26” E, 249.80 feet along the said West 

right-of-way lie of Miller Park Drive to a ½-inch iron rod 

found with orange plastic cap stamped “R. W. COOMBS RPLS 

5294” at the Southeast corner of said Lot 1, lying in the 

Northeast boundary line of a 36-foot-wide railroad right-

of-way; 

 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 361.23 feet along said railroad 

right-of-way line with a Curve to the Right, having a 

radius of 300.31 feet, a central angle of 68° 55’ 05” and a 

chord bearing N 42° 58’ 49” W, 339.84 feet to a 3/8-inch 

iron rod found at the End of said Curve, being the 

Northwest corner of said Lot 1 and the Southwest corner of 

aforesaid Lot 3; 

 

THENCE N 89° 42’ 30” E, 229.40 feet along the common 

boundary line between said Lots 1 and 3 to the PLACE OF 

BEGINNING, containing 0.937 acres (40,818 square feet) of 

land. 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 22-72 
 

4003 Miller Park Drive 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a truck repair facility. 
 

II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 

Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 
Industrial (IN) District and Site Development 
Standards as set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the 
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included 
by reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 

 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 

with the approved Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and 
Elevations labeled Exhibit C, Exhibit D, and Exhibit 
E. In the event of conflict between the conditions and 
the site plan, the written conditions listed below are 
to apply. 

 

V. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-72 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 

F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 
primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 

The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI. Specific Regulations:   
 

A.  Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a 
twenty-five (25) year time period. 
 

 
B. Maintenance requirements:  

 
(1) Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a 
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with this 
ordinance, the Garland Development Code, the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Garland, and the landscaping 
plan attached hereto at all times. The property owner 
is responsible for regular weeding, mowing of grass, 
irrigation, fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance 
of all landscaping as promptly as needed to comply 
with the requirements of this subsection. All exposed 
ground surfaces shall be properly improved, covered 
with screening or other approved solid material, or 
protected with a vegetative growth that prevents soil 
erosion and ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 

 
(2) Any dead or dying plant or vegetation, whether or 
not a component of required landscaping, must be 
promptly replaced with another approved plant or 
vegetation variety that complies with the approved 
landscape plan and in no event later than sixty days 
after notification by the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty days 
of the City sending notice, the City may, in addition 
to any other remedy available by law, suspend, 
withhold, or revoke city permits, approvals, consents 
and the certificate of occupancy for the retail fuel 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-72 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

pumps and convenience store.  See Section 4 of the 
granting ordinance. 
 
(3) Screening and paving must be installed and 
continuously maintained in compliance with this 
ordinance, the Garland Development Code, and the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Garland at all times. The 
property owner is responsible for regular maintenance 
of all screening and paving as needed. In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
screening or paving maintenance regulation within 
sixty days of the City sending notice, the City may, 
in addition to any other remedy available by law, 
suspend, withhold, or revoke city permits, approval, 

consents and the certificate of occupancy for the Car 
Truck/Bus Repair use. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



808 DEERBROOK CIRCLE
GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75052

ISSUE HISTORY

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

SCALE

TX FIRM NO. F-11818

972.310.8549
www.pgaengineers.net

PAREDES & GARCIA, LLC

CI
TY
 O
F 
GA
RL
AN
D,
 D
AL
LA
S 
CO
UN
TY
,

TX
 7
50
42

40
03
 M
IL
LE
R 
PA
RK
 D
RI
VE

S
O
U
T
H
 
G
A
T
E
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

LI
M

IT

LI
M

IT

HERRMANN

SA
N

D
EN

ACTION

SH
EP

H
ER

D

EA
SY

C
H

AI
R

M
ANMETRIC

CONTROL PL

BOOMER

BEKAY

MARQUIS

CAVALIER

DIVIDEND

ASSET

SECURITY

R
ES

ER
VE

MILLER

BEKAY

PL
AN

O
 R

D

M
IL

LE
R

 P
AR

K

PROPOSED LAND USE:
ZONING:  

PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREA: GRASS
PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA: NO GRASS

BUILDING AREAS:

SITE AREAS:

BUILDING SETBACKS:
FRONT(EAST):

REQUIRED: PROVIDED:

REAR(WEST):

 SITE DATA

PROPOSED TRUCK/BUS REPAIR BUILDING : 

PROPOSED SITE AREA: 

PARKING INFORMATION:

PARKING REQUIRED:

RIGHT(SOUTH):
LEFT(NORTH): 0'

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:

6,210.0 S.F.            

15'
25'

50.9'

4,585.2 SF (11.0%)            

11 SPACES

9' X 18' STANDARD PARKING: 10 SPACES
NEW HANDICAP PARKING : 1 SPACES

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (IN)
INDUSTRIAL

15'
30'

TOTAL NUMBER OF SPACES REQUIRED (1/600-SF)        11 SPACES

40,688.0 S.F.  (0.93 AC)             

FLOOR AREA RATIO (FAR):  (6,210.0 S.F. / 40,688.0 S.F.) 15.2%

HANDICAP REQUIRED (0-25) 1 SPACE

36,102.8 SF (89.0%)            

115'
67'

BUILDING HEIGHT ALLOWED 34'
BUILDING HEIGHT PROPOSED 25'

EXH
IBIT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.10" VCT WW  (PER 640332)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN FEET) 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER PARK DRIVE 60' R.O.W. PER PLAT VOL.425, PG. 1248 DRDCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED USE OF BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE & RECEPTION RESTROOMS RISER ROOM STORAGE SHOP BUILDING HEIGHT 1 FLOOR BUILDING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
275 SQ FT 98 SQ FT 77 SQ FT 360 SQ FT 5,400 SQ FT 25 FT 6,210 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE # 220818-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP (NTS) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°13'16" E  229.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°02'44" E  249.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
D=68 349'35" L=360.75' CB=N43 29'02W CD=339.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36' RAILROAD R.O.W. TRACKS ARE REMOVED AND ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
18' BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK STACKING AREA (NOT DOCKS) 5 SPACES EACH - 16'X25' LARGEST TRUCK DIM - 8'X25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 BAY TRUCK SERVICES AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BUILDING 6,210.0 SQ FT FFE=620.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'X14' ROLL UP DOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'X14' ROLL UP DOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'X7' GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' EGRESS/INGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUIS DRIVE 60' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE BUILDING LINE EDGE OF PAVEMENT CENTER OF R.O.W. PROPOSED STREET LIGHTS EXISTING DRIVE TO  BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/05/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3925 MILLER PARK LLC. GARLAND WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK BLK 3 LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVALIER DRIVE INDUSTRIAL LLC. GARLAND WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK BLK 3 LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUIS JOINT VENTURE GARLAND WEST INDUSTRIAL PARK BLK 2 LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTAIN PROPER CLEARANCE TO EX. POWER POLE PER ADA REGULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NO TRAILERS ARE ALLOWED ON THE PROPERTY, ONLY RIGS MAY ENTER AND PARK ON THE PROPERTY. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING DRIVE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING DRIVE APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' INGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 5' FLUME

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8' CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" C.I. WATER  (PER 640332)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 10" VCT WW (PER 640332)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED REMOTE FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DART 2.46 MILES CORRIDOR GARLAND CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP DO NOT ENTER SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVING - 8" 4,000 PSI W/ #4 REBAR @ 16" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'X25' NO PARKING LOADING/UNLOADING ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER 13'-8"X10' SEE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK STACKING AREA (NOT DOCKS) 5 SPACES EACH - 16'X25' LARGEST TRUCK DIM - 8'X25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL ONE-WAY DRIVE



808 DEERBROOK CIRCLE
GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75052

ISSUE HISTORY

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

SCALE

TX FIRM NO. F-11818

972.310.8549
www.pgaengineers.net

PAREDES & GARCIA, LLC

CI
TY
 O
F 
GA
RL
AN
D,
 D
AL
LA
S 
CO
UN
TY
,

TX
 7
50
42

40
03
 M
IL
LE
R 
PA
RK
 D
RI
VE

S
O
U
T
H
 
G
A
T
E
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREA: GRASS
PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA: NO GRASS

4,585.2 SF (11.0%)            
36,102.8 SF (89.0%)            

PROPOSED LAND USE:
ZONING:  

SITE AREAS:

 SITE DATA

PROPOSED SITE AREA: 

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (IN)
INDUSTRIAL

40,688.0 S.F.  (0.93 AC)     

LI
M

IT

LI
M

IT

HERRMANN

SA
N

D
EN

ACTION

SH
EP

H
ER

D

EA
SY

C
H

AI
R

M
ANMETRIC

CONTROL PL

BOOMER

BEKAY

MARQUIS

CAVALIER

DIVIDEND

ASSET

SECURITY

R
ES

ER
VE

MILLER

BEKAY

PL
AN

O
 R

D

M
IL

LE
R

 P
AR

K

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1

Large Canopy Tree
@ 20' intervals

NOTES:
1. All plant materials installed on a development or redevelopment site must conform with the

most recent edition (at the time of development or redevelopment) of the “American Standard
for Nursery Stock” (as amended), published by the American Association of Nurserymen.

2. Grass seed, sod, and other material must be clean and reasonably free of weeds, noxious
pests, and insects.

OWNER/DEVELOPER
ESAYAS WELEBO
1919 S. SHILOH ROAD #410
GARLAND, TX 75942

05/ /2023

NO GROUND MOUNTED
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT

EXIST TREE TO
BE REMOVED

Block Sod (typ)

BURFORD HOLLY,

CHINESE PHOTINIA,
(PHOTINIA SERRULATA)

(LLEX CORNUTA 'BURFORDII')
, QTY:

, QTY:

26

20

(Santolina virens)
Santolina, 3 Gal., QTY: 95

26

, QTY: 10

, QTY: 8
CHINQUAPIN OAK TREE,

06/08/2023

EXH
IBIT D



EXH
IBIT E



EXH
IBIT E



EXH
IBIT E



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Z 23-21 Will Bohls (District 8)
Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
Zoning Ordinance Z 23-21 Will Bohls 

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Consider adoption of the attached ordinance.

Attachments
Z 23-21 Ordinance 
Z 23-21 Exhibit A 
Z 23-21 Exhibit B 
Z 23-21 Exhibit C 



 
ZONING FILE NO. Z 23-21 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, BY APPROVING A SPECIFIC USE 
PROVISION FOR A BUILDING/GARDEN MATERIALS SALES & STORAGE 
(WHOLESALE) USE ON A 0.99-ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 543 
NORTH FIFTH STREET ZONED DOWNTOWN (DT) DISTRICT, UPTOWN 
SUB-DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING A PENALTY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
SEC. 10.05 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A NOTICE OF CONDITIONS OF 
COMPLIANCE CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on the 10th day of 
July, 2023, the Plan Commission did consider and make 
recommendations on a certain request for a Specific Use 
Provision for a Building/Garden Materials Sales & Storage 
(Wholesale) Use on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, 
Uptown Sub-district, by Will Bohls; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council, after determining all legal 
requirements of notice and hearing have been met, has 
further determined the following amendment to the zoning 
laws would provide for and would be in the best interest of 
the health, safety, morals, and general welfare: 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, that: 
 
 

Section 1 
 
The Garland Development Code is hereby amended by approving 
a Specific Use Provision for a Building/Garden Materials 
Sales & Storage (Wholesale) Use on a property zoned 
Downtown (DT) District, Uptown Sub-district, and being more 
particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof.   
 

  
Section 2 

 
Development shall be in conformance with the conditions, 
restrictions, and regulations set forth in the Garland 
Development Code. 
 
 

Section 3 
 



 
FILE NO. Z 23-21 

 
That a violation of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor 
punishable in accordance with Section 10.05 of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Garland, Texas. 

 
 

Section 4 
 

NOTICE OF CONDITIONS OF COMPLIANCE:  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of any other ordinance of the City, the full, 
complete, and continuing compliance with all the 
conditions, restrictions, and regulations of this Ordinance 
is a condition to the issuance and continuation of any 
permit, approval, authorization or consent by the City, 
including without limitation the issuance or continuation 

of any certificate of occupancy for any building or 
structure located on any portion of the property described 
in Exhibit A. All promises, representations, obligations 
and undertakings made or assumed by the applicant to the 
City Council at any public presentation in connection with 
the granting of this Ordinance are hereby incorporated into 
and made a part of this Ordinance as if expressly set forth 
herein at length. No substantial deviation from any 
material portion of the conditions, restrictions, and 
regulations contained within this Ordinance are allowed 
except as may be provided by the City Council after a 
public hearing. 
 
 

Section 5 

 

That the Garland Development Code, as amended, shall be and 

remain in full force and effect save and except as amended 

by this Ordinance. 

 

Section 6 

 

That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are 

severable and are governed by Sec. 10.06 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas. 

 

 

Section 7 

 

That this Ordinance shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its passage and approval. 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
FILE NO. Z 23-21 

 

 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this________ day of ___________________, 
2023. 
 
 
      THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 

By: 
 
      ________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 

City Secretary 
 
 
 
       Published: 



ZONING FILE NUMBER Z 23-21 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

Zoning File Z 23-21 
 

 

Being a tract of land situated in the Jesse Atterbury 

Survey, Abstract No. 32, City of Garland, Dallas County, 

Texas, and being all of Lot 11 and part of Lot 12, Block A 

of Cooper-Barger Industrial Addition, an Addition to the 

City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, according to the map 

recorded in Volume 15, Page 275, Map Records, Dallas County, 

Texas, being that same tract of land conveyed to Thomas M. 

Leonard, Jr. by Special Warranty Deed with Vendor's Lien 

recorded in Volume 2004018, Page 993, Deed Records, Dallas 

County, Texas, and being more particularly described by 

metes and bounds as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the Northeast 

comer of Lot 10, Block A of said Cooper-Barger Industrial 

Addition, said point being on the West right-of-way line of 

N. Fifth Street (80 foot right-of -way);  

THENCE West, along the North line of said Lot 10, Block A, 

a distance of 263.47 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found at 

the Northwest comer of said Lot 10, Block A, said point 

being on the East line of a 30 foot "Reserved" area of said 

Cooper-Barger Industrial Addition; 

 

THENCE North 22 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, along 

said East line of "Reserved", a distance of 54.20 feet to a 

point for corner; 

 

THENCE North, continuing along said East line of "Reserved", 

a distance of 124.47 feet to a point for corner at the 

Southwest corner of a tract of land conveyed to John J. 

Doss and wife, Diane L. Doss by Deed recorded in Instalment 

No. 20150000015356, Official Public Records, Dallas County, 

Texas; 

 

THENCE East, along the South line of said Doss tract, a 

distance of 243.17 feet to a point for corner at the 

Southeast comer of said Doss tract, from which a 3/8 inch 

iron rod found for witness has a bearing and distance of 



ZONING FILE NUMBER Z 23-21 

EXHIBIT A 
 

East, 0.30 feet, said point being on the aforementioned 

West right-of-way line of N. Fifth Street; 

 

THENCE South, along said West right-of-way line of N. Fifth 

Street, a distance of 174.73 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 

and containing 42,998 square feet or 0.99 of an acre of 

land. 



EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 23-21 
 

543 North Fifth Street 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a Building/Garden Materials 
Sales & Storage (Wholesale) Use 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Downtown 
(DT) District, Uptown Sub-District, and Site 
Development Standards as set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 
of the Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are 
included by reference and shall apply, except as 
otherwise specified by this ordinance. 

 

IV. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 

abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 23-21 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 
primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 

The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
V. Specific Regulations:   
 

A. Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a 
time period of five (5) years. 
 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 

parking shall be in general conformance with the 

approved Site Plan labeled Exhibit C. 

 

C. Indoor Building Materials Storage: The storage of 

building materials shall be indoors only.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



C1.1

SITE PLAN

ALL  OF LOT 11 AND PART OF LOT 12, BLOCK A
543 N 5TH STREET

DOVETAIL WAREHOUSE

NO. DATE REVISION

DESIGN DRAWN DATE SCALE NOTES FILE NO.

CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

7557 RAMBLER ROAD SUITE 1400
DALLAS, TX 75231
972.235.3031

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT   LOCATION

COUNTY
MAPSCO

DALLAS
19-V

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

OWNER ENGINEER SURVEYOR

EX
H

IBIT C



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 4.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute a Project Specific Agreement

with Dallas County for Transportation Improvements on Jupiter Road
Submitted By: Tony Irvin, Streets Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
The City of Garland entered into a Master Interlocal Agreement with Dallas County that
provides for a 50/50 cost share participation program for maintenance and repairs on certain
qualifying roadways in the City. After execution of a Master Agreement, the City is then
permitted to submit project proposals to the County for review and acceptance, after which a
Project Specific Agreement is required to identify specific projects approved for 50/50 cost
share participation. The City submitted a 2.4-mile segment of Jupiter Road (Forest Lane to the
west city limit) for cost share participation. The Project Specific Agreement for maintenance
and repairs to Jupiter Road establishes a total estimated cost of $4,100,000, with the cost to
be split equally between the City and County.

This item was considered by the City Council in its July 31, 2023 Work Session.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Approve a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Project Specific Agreement
with Dallas County for Transportation Improvements on Jupiter Road.

Attachments
Resolution 
Project Specific Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE TO 

EXECUTE A PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT WITH DALLAS COUNTY FOR 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS ON PORTIONS OF THE FOLLOWING ROAD 

WITHIN THE CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS: JUPITER 

ROAD, FROM THE GARLAND AND DALLAS CITY LIMITS TO FOREST LANE; 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, 

TEXAS: 

 

Section 1 

 

That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to 

execute a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County for 

transportation improvements on Jupiter Road from the Garland 

- Dallas city limit to Forest Lane.  A copy of this PSA is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

Section 2 

 

That this Resolution shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its adoption and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the ______ day of July, 2023. 

 

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

City Secretary 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  1 
 

PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT  
RE: VARIOUS ROADS, “TYPE B” PUBLIC ROADWAY -- MADE PURSUANT TO 
ROAD & BRIDGE MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DALLAS 

COUNTY, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 

This Project Specific Agreement, (hereinafter “PSA”), supplemental to the Master Interlocal 
Agreement, is made by and between Dallas County, Texas (hereinafter “County”) and the City of 
Garland, Texas (hereinafter “City”), acting by and through their duly authorized representatives and 
officials, for the purpose of transportation-related maintenance, repairs, and improvements to be 
undertaken on public roadway located on Jupiter Road from the South City Limits to Forest Lane, 
which is within the territorial limits and jurisdiction of the City of Garland  as more fully set forth 
and described in Attachments “A” and “B,” which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference (hereinafter “Project”). 

WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code and Chapters 251 and 472 of the 
Texas Transportation Code provide authorization for local governments to contract amongst 
themselves for the performance of governmental functions and services; and 

WHEREAS, on or about January 24, 2023, County and City entered into a Master Interlocal 
Agreement (hereinafter “Master Agreement”), whereby County agreed to provide partial funding for 
such duly qualified “Type B” road and bridge maintenance, improvement, and repair  projects, said 
projects being situated within the territorial limits and jurisdiction of the City, and  

WHEREAS, City now desires County to provide partial funding for such a duly qualified 
project consisting of maintenance, repairs, and improvements of enumerated public roadway situated 
in the City of Garland, Texas, as more fully described in Attachments “A” and “B.” 

NOW THEREFORE THIS PSA is made by and entered into by County and City, for the 
mutual consideration stated herein. 

 
Witnesseth 

 
Article I  

Project Specific Agreement 

This PSA is specifically intended to identify a Project authorized under the Master 
Agreement. This PSA sets forth the rights and responsibilities of each of the parties as set forth in 
the Master Agreement, and all supplements and amendments thereto are incorporated herein by 
reference.  This PSA will be an addition to the Master Agreement and incorporates each term and 
condition thereof as if set forth herein.  All terms of the Master Agreement remain in full force and 
effect, except as modified herein.  In the event of any conflict between the Master Agreement and 
this PSA, this PSA shall control. 

Article II 
Incorporated Documents 

This PSA incorporates, as if fully reproduced herein word for word and number for number, 
the following items: 

1.  Master Agreement authorized by County Commissioners Court Order 2023-0089, 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  2 
 

dated January 24, 2023, and additions thereto as incorporated herein. 
2.  The Construction Estimate, which is attached hereto as Attachment “A” and 
  incorporated herein by reference. 
3. The Road List Map/Diagram of proposed work sites, which is attached hereto as 
  Attachment “B” and incorporated herein by reference. 
  

 Article III 
Term of Agreement 

This PSA becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signature makes the 
agreement fully executed and shall terminate upon the completion and acceptance of the Project by 
City or upon the terms and conditions in the Master Agreement. 
 

Article IV 
Project Description 

This PSA is entered into by the parties for the purpose of jointly identifying and funding 
repairs, maintenance, and improvements on duly qualified “Type B” public roadway within the City 
of Garland, Texas.  The Project shall consist of repairs, maintenance, and improvements of  Jupiter 
Road from the South City Limits to Forest Lane, in the City of Garland, Texas, within Dallas County 
Commissioner’s District 1 (“Project”), and as more fully described in Attachment “A,” which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Project is authorized by the 
aforementioned Master Agreement, with the parties’ obligations and responsibilities governed 
thereby, as well as by the terms and provisions of this PSA.  The Project will facilitate the safe and 
orderly movement of public transportation to benefit both the City and County.  The City has and 
hereby does give its approval for the expenditure of County funds for the construction, 
improvement, maintenance, or repair of a street located within the municipality. 

 
Article V 

Fiscal Funding 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this PSA is expressly contingent upon the 

availability of County funding for each item and obligation contained herein.  City shall have no 
right of action against the County of Dallas as regards this PSA, specifically including any funding 
by County of the Project in the event that the County is unable to fulfill its obligations under this 
PSA as a result of the lack of sufficient funding for any item or obligation from any source utilized 
to fund this PSA or failure of any funding party to budget or authorize funding for this PSA during 
the current or future fiscal years.  In the event of insufficient funding, or if funds become unavailable 
in whole or part, the County, at its sole discretion, may provide funds from a separate source or 
terminate this PSA.  In the event that payments or expenditures are made, they shall be made from 
current funds as required by Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this PSA is expressly contingent upon the 

availability of City funding for each item and obligation contained herein.  County shall have no 
right of action against the City as regards this PSA, specifically including any funding by City of the 
Project in the event that the City is unable to fulfill its obligations under this PSA as a result of the 
lack of sufficient funding for any item or obligation from any source utilized to fund this PSA or 
failure of any funding party to budget or authorize funding for this PSA during the current or future 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  3 
 

fiscal years.  In the event of insufficient funding, or if funds become unavailable in whole or part, the 
City, at its sole discretion,  may provide funds from a separate source or terminate this PSA.  In the 
event that payments or expenditures are made, they shall be made from current funds as required by 
Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. 

 
Article VI 

Agreements  
 

I. City’s Responsibilities: 
1. City, at its own expense, shall be responsible for the following: (a) posting 

appropriate and required notices to inform the public of the proposed maintenance, 
repairs, improvements, or reconstruction activity of the Project; (b) locating all 
manholes, water valves, and other utilities within the Project; (c) making or causing 
to be made all utility relocations or adjustments necessary for execution and 
completion of the Project; (d) acquiring any right-of-way necessary to complete the 
Project; (e) remediating any hazardous or regulated materials, or other environmental 
hazard on or near the Project sites; (f) funding the purchase of all materials necessary 
to perform the Project construction; (g) managing construction of the Project; (h) 
receiving and processing all payments due contractors the City hires to work on the 
project; (i) contracting through formal bidding procedures to acquire the services of 
contractors; and (j) where necessary providing appropriate traffic control support, 
including but not limited to flagging, cones, barricades, shadow vehicles, arrow 
boards, signage, police presence, etc., to enable the Project to be completed in a 
timely and safe manner. 

2. City shall be responsible for maintaining the Project sites once the Project is 
completed.  

3. City shall be in compliance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(“MUTCD”) standards in ensuring safety during operations as outlined in the scope 
of work in Attachment “A.” 

  
II. County Responsibilities: 

 1. County shall reimburse the City for proportionate Project Costs, as more fully set 
forth in Section III below. 

2. County, its Auditor or its designated representative(s) shall have the unrestricted 
right to audit any and all accounting or other records regarding any funds paid or 
claimed under this PSA, including, but not limited to all books, records, reports, 
tickets, deposits, expenditures, budget or any item therein, supporting data, computer 
records and programs, and all items of hardware, software or firmware, or any other 
item utilized by the City regarding this PSA.  City agrees that all related records shall 
be retained for a period of time not less than four (4) years from the date of 
termination of this PSA.  Such records shall be provided to the County in Dallas 
County, Texas and available for any audit at any time upon request.  The results of 
any audit may be furnished to the City for comment. 

 
III. Funding: 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  4 
 

County and City mutually agree that the initial and anticipated total Project cost is 
approximately $4,100,000.00 as set forth in Attachment “A.”  The parties hereto further 
agree that City shall be responsible to pay a total of $2,050,000.00 for its portion of the 
“Type B” roadwork.  The parties hereto further agree that City shall be totally responsible 
for the construction and maintenance of said Project.   
 
The parties hereto also further agree that the County shall only be responsible to City for a 
contribution, in the form of reimbursements, of an amount not to exceed $2,050,000.00, 
which amount shall not exceed Fifty Percent (50%) of the actual total Project cost. 
 
City and County further agree as follows: 
 
1. Should the final actual total costs of the Project exceed the initial and anticipated 

Project costs, City agrees to either reduce the scope of the Project, or to seek 
additional funding to facilitate its completion.  In either event, City shall be solely 
responsible for all such costs in excess thereof, and County shall bear no additional 
responsibilities beyond those contemplated herein. 

2. City shall submit invoices to the County, which invoices shall provide complete 
information and documentation to substantiate the City’s charges. County’s 
acceptances of the City’s invoices are contingent upon the City’s compliance with 
the County’s invoicing procedures.  County may withhold any disputed amounts 
until such time as the underlying dispute is resolved to the County’s satisfaction, but 
shall pay all undisputed amounts timely. 

 
Article VII 

Miscellaneous: 
I. Indemnification. County and City agree that each shall be responsible for its own negligent 

acts or omissions or other tortious conduct in the course of performance of this Agreement, 
without waiving any sovereign/governmental immunity available to County or City or their 
respective officials, officers, employees, or agents under Texas or other law and without 
waiving any available defenses under Texas or other law.  Nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, in or to any third persons or 
entities. 

II. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this PSA are for the benefit of the 
parties hereto and not for the benefit of any third party.  It is the express intention of County and 
City that any entity other than County or City receiving services or benefits under this PSA shall be 
deemed an incidental beneficiary only.  This PSA is intended only to set forth the contractual right 
and responsibilities of the parties hereto. 

III. Applicable Law. This PSA is and shall be expressly subject to the County’s and City’s Sovereign 
Immunity and/or Governmental Immunity, pursuant to Title 5 of the Texas Civil Practice and 
Remedies Code, as amended and all applicable federal and state laws.  This PSA shall be governed 
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  Exclusive venue for any legal 
action regarding this PSA shall lie in Dallas County, Texas. 

IV. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communication under this PSA shall be 
tendered in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when either delivered in person, via 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  5 
 

e-mail, or via certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the respective parties as 
follows: 
 

              

COUNTY: 
Director of Public Works    Commissioner Dr. Theresa Daniel 
Dallas County    and  Road & Bridge District #1 
500 Elm Street, Suite 5300    500 Elm Street, Suite 7100 
Dallas, Texas 75202     Dallas, Texas 75202 
           
CITY: 
 
Assistant City Manager 

 Crystal Owens 
City of Garland 
200 Fifth Street 

            Garland, Texas 75040 
 
      Either  party  may change  its  address  for notice  by  giving  the  other  party  written  notice 
thereof. 
 

V. Assignment. This PSA may not be assigned or transferred by either party without the prior 
written consent of the other party. 

VI. Binding Agreement; Parties Bound.  Upon execution by the parties, this PSA shall constitute a 
legal, valid and binding obligation of the parties, their successors and permitted assigns. 

VII. Amendment. This PSA may not be amended except in a written instrument specifically referring 
to this PSA and signed by the parties hereto. 

VIII. Counterparts. This PSA may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IX. Severability. If one or more of the provisions in this PSA shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall 
not cause this PSA to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, but this PSA shall be construed as if such 
provision had never been contained herein, and shall not affect the remaining provisions of this PSA, 
which shall remain in full force and effect. 

X. Entire Agreement. This PSA embodies the complete agreement of the parties, and except where 
noted, it shall supersede previous and/or contemporary agreements, oral or written, between the 
parties and relating to matters in the PSA. 

XI. Contingent. This PSA is expressly subject to and contingent upon formal approval by the Dallas 
County Commissioners Court and by resolution of the City Council of the City of Garland. 

XII. Effective Date. The Contract shall commence on the Effective Date. The Effective Date of this 
Contract shall be the date it is executed by the last of the parties.  Reference to the date of execution 
shall mean the Effective Date. 

XIII. No Joint Enterprise/Venture. The parties agree that no party is an agent, servant, or employee of 
the other parties. The parties, including their agents, servants, or employees, are independent 
contractors, and not an agent, servant, joint enterprise/venture, or employee of any other party, and 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  6 
 

are responsible for their own acts, forbearance, negligence, and deeds, and for those of their agents, 
servants, or employees in conjunction with this Contract.  No joint enterprise/venture exists between 
the parties. 

 
The City  of  Garland, State of  Texas, has  executed this PSA pursuant to duly authorized City 
Council Resolution ________, Minutes __________, dated the ___ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
The County of Dallas, State of Texas, has executed this PSA pursuant to Commissioners Court 
Order Number ________________ and passed on the                day of  ______________, 2023. 
 
 
Executed by the City of Garland this the  Executed by the County of Dallas this the  
_____ day  of_______________, 2023. _____ day  of  _________________, 2023. 
 
 
CITY OF GARLAND:     COUNTY OF DALLAS: 
City Manager 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________  _______________________________ 
     Assistant City Manager CLAY LEWIS JENKINS  
                 COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:* 
BRIAN C. ENGLAND    JOHN CREUZOT  
City Attorney      DISTRICT ATTORNEY  
 
 
 
By:________________________________  _______________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney        Jana Prigmore Ferguson 
       Assistant District Attorney 
 
 
*By law, the District Attorney’s Office may only advise or approve contracts or legal documents on 
behalf of its clients.  It may not advise or approve a contract or legal document on behalf of other 
parties.  Our review of this document was conducted solely from the legal perspective of our client.  
our approval of this document was offered solely for the benefit of our client.  Other parties should 
not rely on this approval, and should seek review and approval by their own respective attorney(s). 



Block Name From Name To Name Pavement Type Func Class Lane Miles OCI Comissioner District FY 23 Maint. Plan Cost Estimate
Jupiter Road S. City Limits Forest Lane Concrete Arterial 2.35 82.7 1 Concrete Repair $4,100,000.00 $2,050,000.00

Subtotal: $4,100,000.00
Total Project Cost $4,100,000.00

Dallas County Share $2,050,000.00
City of Garland Share $2,050,000.00
Total Project Costs $4,100,000.00

ATTACHMENT A

City of Garland
Dallas County Type B Roads - FY 23 Cost Share Candidate



S. Jupiter Rd. (S. City Limits to Forest Ln.) ¯

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping
site and is for general reference only. 
Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate, 
current, or otherwise reliable. 
THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION.

0 2,2001,100
ft

5/5/2023 8:18:41 AM
Author: ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin,
Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS,
NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c)

ATTACHMENT B

TTingey
PolyLine

TTingey
Callout
S. Jupiter Rd Panel Repair (S. City Limits to Forest.)



GARLAND
POLICY REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 5.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute a Project Specific

Agreement with Dallas County for Jupiter Road Improvements
Submitted By: Tye Tingey, Sr. Civil Engineer 
Strategic Focus Areas: Well-Maintained City Infrastructure

ISSUE
Consider whether to enter into a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County (County) for
class B roadway improvement project.

OPTIONS
1. Adopt a resolution which authorizes the City Manager or their designee to execute the
attached Project Specific Agreement with the County for Project Specific Agreement.
2. Take no action.

RECOMMENDATION
Option 1: Adopt a resolution which authorizes the City Manager or their designee to execute
the attached Project Specific Agreement with the County.

Attachments
Dallas County & COG PSA Agreement-Jupiter 
Resolution for PSA signature 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  1 
 

PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT  
RE: VARIOUS ROADS, “TYPE B” PUBLIC ROADWAY -- MADE PURSUANT TO 
ROAD & BRIDGE MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DALLAS 

COUNTY, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 

This Project Specific Agreement, (hereinafter “PSA”), supplemental to the Master Interlocal 
Agreement, is made by and between Dallas County, Texas (hereinafter “County”) and the City of 
Garland, Texas (hereinafter “City”), acting by and through their duly authorized representatives and 
officials, for the purpose of transportation-related maintenance, repairs, and improvements to be 
undertaken on public roadway located on Jupiter Road from the South City Limits to Forest Lane, 
which is within the territorial limits and jurisdiction of the City of Garland  as more fully set forth 
and described in Attachments “A” and “B,” which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference (hereinafter “Project”). 

WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code and Chapters 251 and 472 of the 
Texas Transportation Code provide authorization for local governments to contract amongst 
themselves for the performance of governmental functions and services; and 

WHEREAS, on or about January 24, 2023, County and City entered into a Master Interlocal 
Agreement (hereinafter “Master Agreement”), whereby County agreed to provide partial funding for 
such duly qualified “Type B” road and bridge maintenance, improvement, and repair  projects, said 
projects being situated within the territorial limits and jurisdiction of the City, and  

WHEREAS, City now desires County to provide partial funding for such a duly qualified 
project consisting of maintenance, repairs, and improvements of enumerated public roadway situated 
in the City of Garland, Texas, as more fully described in Attachments “A” and “B.” 

NOW THEREFORE THIS PSA is made by and entered into by County and City, for the 
mutual consideration stated herein. 

 
Witnesseth 

 
Article I  

Project Specific Agreement 

This PSA is specifically intended to identify a Project authorized under the Master 
Agreement. This PSA sets forth the rights and responsibilities of each of the parties as set forth in 
the Master Agreement, and all supplements and amendments thereto are incorporated herein by 
reference.  This PSA will be an addition to the Master Agreement and incorporates each term and 
condition thereof as if set forth herein.  All terms of the Master Agreement remain in full force and 
effect, except as modified herein.  In the event of any conflict between the Master Agreement and 
this PSA, this PSA shall control. 

Article II 
Incorporated Documents 

This PSA incorporates, as if fully reproduced herein word for word and number for number, 
the following items: 

1.  Master Agreement authorized by County Commissioners Court Order 2023-0089, 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  2 
 

dated January 24, 2023, and additions thereto as incorporated herein. 
2.  The Construction Estimate, which is attached hereto as Attachment “A” and 
  incorporated herein by reference. 
3. The Road List Map/Diagram of proposed work sites, which is attached hereto as 
  Attachment “B” and incorporated herein by reference. 
  

 Article III 
Term of Agreement 

This PSA becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signature makes the 
agreement fully executed and shall terminate upon the completion and acceptance of the Project by 
City or upon the terms and conditions in the Master Agreement. 
 

Article IV 
Project Description 

This PSA is entered into by the parties for the purpose of jointly identifying and funding 
repairs, maintenance, and improvements on duly qualified “Type B” public roadway within the City 
of Garland, Texas.  The Project shall consist of repairs, maintenance, and improvements of  Jupiter 
Road from the South City Limits to Forest Lane, in the City of Garland, Texas, within Dallas County 
Commissioner’s District 1 (“Project”), and as more fully described in Attachment “A,” which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Project is authorized by the 
aforementioned Master Agreement, with the parties’ obligations and responsibilities governed 
thereby, as well as by the terms and provisions of this PSA.  The Project will facilitate the safe and 
orderly movement of public transportation to benefit both the City and County.  The City has and 
hereby does give its approval for the expenditure of County funds for the construction, 
improvement, maintenance, or repair of a street located within the municipality. 

 
Article V 

Fiscal Funding 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this PSA is expressly contingent upon the 

availability of County funding for each item and obligation contained herein.  City shall have no 
right of action against the County of Dallas as regards this PSA, specifically including any funding 
by County of the Project in the event that the County is unable to fulfill its obligations under this 
PSA as a result of the lack of sufficient funding for any item or obligation from any source utilized 
to fund this PSA or failure of any funding party to budget or authorize funding for this PSA during 
the current or future fiscal years.  In the event of insufficient funding, or if funds become unavailable 
in whole or part, the County, at its sole discretion, may provide funds from a separate source or 
terminate this PSA.  In the event that payments or expenditures are made, they shall be made from 
current funds as required by Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this PSA is expressly contingent upon the 

availability of City funding for each item and obligation contained herein.  County shall have no 
right of action against the City as regards this PSA, specifically including any funding by City of the 
Project in the event that the City is unable to fulfill its obligations under this PSA as a result of the 
lack of sufficient funding for any item or obligation from any source utilized to fund this PSA or 
failure of any funding party to budget or authorize funding for this PSA during the current or future 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  3 
 

fiscal years.  In the event of insufficient funding, or if funds become unavailable in whole or part, the 
City, at its sole discretion,  may provide funds from a separate source or terminate this PSA.  In the 
event that payments or expenditures are made, they shall be made from current funds as required by 
Chapter 791, Texas Government Code. 

 
Article VI 

Agreements  
 

I. City’s Responsibilities: 
1. City, at its own expense, shall be responsible for the following: (a) posting 

appropriate and required notices to inform the public of the proposed maintenance, 
repairs, improvements, or reconstruction activity of the Project; (b) locating all 
manholes, water valves, and other utilities within the Project; (c) making or causing 
to be made all utility relocations or adjustments necessary for execution and 
completion of the Project; (d) acquiring any right-of-way necessary to complete the 
Project; (e) remediating any hazardous or regulated materials, or other environmental 
hazard on or near the Project sites; (f) funding the purchase of all materials necessary 
to perform the Project construction; (g) managing construction of the Project; (h) 
receiving and processing all payments due contractors the City hires to work on the 
project; (i) contracting through formal bidding procedures to acquire the services of 
contractors; and (j) where necessary providing appropriate traffic control support, 
including but not limited to flagging, cones, barricades, shadow vehicles, arrow 
boards, signage, police presence, etc., to enable the Project to be completed in a 
timely and safe manner. 

2. City shall be responsible for maintaining the Project sites once the Project is 
completed.  

3. City shall be in compliance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(“MUTCD”) standards in ensuring safety during operations as outlined in the scope 
of work in Attachment “A.” 

  
II. County Responsibilities: 

 1. County shall reimburse the City for proportionate Project Costs, as more fully set 
forth in Section III below. 

2. County, its Auditor or its designated representative(s) shall have the unrestricted 
right to audit any and all accounting or other records regarding any funds paid or 
claimed under this PSA, including, but not limited to all books, records, reports, 
tickets, deposits, expenditures, budget or any item therein, supporting data, computer 
records and programs, and all items of hardware, software or firmware, or any other 
item utilized by the City regarding this PSA.  City agrees that all related records shall 
be retained for a period of time not less than four (4) years from the date of 
termination of this PSA.  Such records shall be provided to the County in Dallas 
County, Texas and available for any audit at any time upon request.  The results of 
any audit may be furnished to the City for comment. 

 
III. Funding: 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  4 
 

County and City mutually agree that the initial and anticipated total Project cost is 
approximately $4,100,000.00 as set forth in Attachment “A.”  The parties hereto further 
agree that City shall be responsible to pay a total of $2,050,000.00 for its portion of the 
“Type B” roadwork.  The parties hereto further agree that City shall be totally responsible 
for the construction and maintenance of said Project.   
 
The parties hereto also further agree that the County shall only be responsible to City for a 
contribution, in the form of reimbursements, of an amount not to exceed $2,050,000.00, 
which amount shall not exceed Fifty Percent (50%) of the actual total Project cost. 
 
City and County further agree as follows: 
 
1. Should the final actual total costs of the Project exceed the initial and anticipated 

Project costs, City agrees to either reduce the scope of the Project, or to seek 
additional funding to facilitate its completion.  In either event, City shall be solely 
responsible for all such costs in excess thereof, and County shall bear no additional 
responsibilities beyond those contemplated herein. 

2. City shall submit invoices to the County, which invoices shall provide complete 
information and documentation to substantiate the City’s charges. County’s 
acceptances of the City’s invoices are contingent upon the City’s compliance with 
the County’s invoicing procedures.  County may withhold any disputed amounts 
until such time as the underlying dispute is resolved to the County’s satisfaction, but 
shall pay all undisputed amounts timely. 

 
Article VII 

Miscellaneous: 
I. Indemnification. County and City agree that each shall be responsible for its own negligent 

acts or omissions or other tortious conduct in the course of performance of this Agreement, 
without waiving any sovereign/governmental immunity available to County or City or their 
respective officials, officers, employees, or agents under Texas or other law and without 
waiving any available defenses under Texas or other law.  Nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, in or to any third persons or 
entities. 

II. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this PSA are for the benefit of the 
parties hereto and not for the benefit of any third party.  It is the express intention of County and 
City that any entity other than County or City receiving services or benefits under this PSA shall be 
deemed an incidental beneficiary only.  This PSA is intended only to set forth the contractual right 
and responsibilities of the parties hereto. 

III. Applicable Law. This PSA is and shall be expressly subject to the County’s and City’s Sovereign 
Immunity and/or Governmental Immunity, pursuant to Title 5 of the Texas Civil Practice and 
Remedies Code, as amended and all applicable federal and state laws.  This PSA shall be governed 
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  Exclusive venue for any legal 
action regarding this PSA shall lie in Dallas County, Texas. 

IV. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communication under this PSA shall be 
tendered in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when either delivered in person, via 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  5 
 

e-mail, or via certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested to the respective parties as 
follows: 
 

              

COUNTY: 
Director of Public Works    Commissioner Dr. Theresa Daniel 
Dallas County    and  Road & Bridge District #1 
500 Elm Street, Suite 5300    500 Elm Street, Suite 7100 
Dallas, Texas 75202     Dallas, Texas 75202 
           
CITY: 
 
Assistant City Manager 

 Crystal Owens 
City of Garland 
200 Fifth Street 

            Garland, Texas 75040 
 
      Either  party  may change  its  address  for notice  by  giving  the  other  party  written  notice 
thereof. 
 

V. Assignment. This PSA may not be assigned or transferred by either party without the prior 
written consent of the other party. 

VI. Binding Agreement; Parties Bound.  Upon execution by the parties, this PSA shall constitute a 
legal, valid and binding obligation of the parties, their successors and permitted assigns. 

VII. Amendment. This PSA may not be amended except in a written instrument specifically referring 
to this PSA and signed by the parties hereto. 

VIII. Counterparts. This PSA may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IX. Severability. If one or more of the provisions in this PSA shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall 
not cause this PSA to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, but this PSA shall be construed as if such 
provision had never been contained herein, and shall not affect the remaining provisions of this PSA, 
which shall remain in full force and effect. 

X. Entire Agreement. This PSA embodies the complete agreement of the parties, and except where 
noted, it shall supersede previous and/or contemporary agreements, oral or written, between the 
parties and relating to matters in the PSA. 

XI. Contingent. This PSA is expressly subject to and contingent upon formal approval by the Dallas 
County Commissioners Court and by resolution of the City Council of the City of Garland. 

XII. Effective Date. The Contract shall commence on the Effective Date. The Effective Date of this 
Contract shall be the date it is executed by the last of the parties.  Reference to the date of execution 
shall mean the Effective Date. 

XIII. No Joint Enterprise/Venture. The parties agree that no party is an agent, servant, or employee of 
the other parties. The parties, including their agents, servants, or employees, are independent 
contractors, and not an agent, servant, joint enterprise/venture, or employee of any other party, and 



 
 
PSA City of Garland (“Type B”) (2023) 
  6 
 

are responsible for their own acts, forbearance, negligence, and deeds, and for those of their agents, 
servants, or employees in conjunction with this Contract.  No joint enterprise/venture exists between 
the parties. 

 
The City  of  Garland, State of  Texas, has  executed this PSA pursuant to duly authorized City 
Council Resolution ________, Minutes __________, dated the ___ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
The County of Dallas, State of Texas, has executed this PSA pursuant to Commissioners Court 
Order Number ________________ and passed on the                day of  ______________, 2023. 
 
 
Executed by the City of Garland this the  Executed by the County of Dallas this the  
_____ day  of_______________, 2023. _____ day  of  _________________, 2023. 
 
 
CITY OF GARLAND:     COUNTY OF DALLAS: 
City Manager 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________  _______________________________ 
     Assistant City Manager CLAY LEWIS JENKINS  
                 COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:* 
BRIAN C. ENGLAND    JOHN CREUZOT  
City Attorney      DISTRICT ATTORNEY  
 
 
 
By:________________________________  _______________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney        Jana Prigmore Ferguson 
       Assistant District Attorney 
 
 
*By law, the District Attorney’s Office may only advise or approve contracts or legal documents on 
behalf of its clients.  It may not advise or approve a contract or legal document on behalf of other 
parties.  Our review of this document was conducted solely from the legal perspective of our client.  
our approval of this document was offered solely for the benefit of our client.  Other parties should 
not rely on this approval, and should seek review and approval by their own respective attorney(s). 



Block Name From Name To Name Pavement Type Func Class Lane Miles OCI Comissioner District FY 23 Maint. Plan Cost Estimate
Jupiter Road S. City Limits Forest Lane Concrete Arterial 2.35 82.7 1 Concrete Repair $4,100,000.00 $2,050,000.00

Subtotal: $4,100,000.00
Total Project Cost $4,100,000.00

Dallas County Share $2,050,000.00
City of Garland Share $2,050,000.00
Total Project Costs $4,100,000.00

ATTACHMENT A

City of Garland
Dallas County Type B Roads - FY 23 Cost Share Candidate



S. Jupiter Rd. (S. City Limits to Forest Ln.) ¯

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping
site and is for general reference only. 
Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate, 
current, or otherwise reliable. 
THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION.

0 2,2001,100
ft

5/5/2023 8:18:41 AM
Author: ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin,
Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS,
NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c)

ATTACHMENT B

TTingey
PolyLine

TTingey
Callout
S. Jupiter Rd Panel Repair (S. City Limits to Forest.)



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE 

TO EXECUTE A PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT WITH DALLAS COUNTY 

FOR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS ON PORTIONS OF THE 

FOLLOWING ROAD WITHIN THE CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUNTY, 

TEXAS: JUPITER ROAD, FROM THE GARLAND AND DALLAS CITY 

LIMITS TO FOREST LANE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, 

TEXAS: 

 

Section 1 

 

That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized 

to execute a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County 

for transportation improvements on Jupiter Road from the 

Garland - Dallas city limit to Forest Lane.  A copy of this 

PSA is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein by reference. 

 

Section 2 

 

That this Resolution shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its adoption and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the ______ day of July, 2023. 

 

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

City Secretary 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 6.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Garland Development Code Ordinance 1.51 – Engineering Review and

Inspection Fee
Submitted By: Michael Polocek, Engineering Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
The City of Garland currently assesses an Engineering Review and Inspections Fee for all
private development that includes public works improvements as part of the development. 
This fee is calculated as a percentage of the total Opinion of Probable Construction Costs
(OPCC) of the public works improvements to be accepted and maintained by the City.  The
current rate is 5% of the OPCC and is assessed and collected prior to releasing the
Developer’s plans for construction.

As a result of the 2023 Texas State Legislation Session, House Bill 3492 (HB 3492) was
adopted which no longer allows Cities to assess an engineering review and inspections fee
based on the percentage of the OPCC or quantity of public works improvements.  The fee
must be based on “…the city’s actual cost to review and process the engineering or
construction plan or to inspect the public infrastructure improvement…”.   

To comply with the State’s HB 3492, the City revised Chapter 1: Article 3, Division 2, Section
1.51 of the GDC Ordinance Engineering Review and Inspections Fees.  Additionally, the
City will annually publish the fees, the hourly rates and the estimated direct time incurred by
city employees for reviewing and inspecting engineering and construction projects on the
City’s website. These fees do not exceed the actual time required to review and inspect the
different types of development projects and comply with the State’s requirements for HB
3492.

Council considered this item at the August 14, 2023 Work Session.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Approve the amendments to Chapter 1: Article 3, Division 2, Section1.51 "Engineering Review
and Inspection Fees" of the Garland Development Code Ordinance.

Attachments
Proposed GDC Amendments 1.51 Engineering Fees 





1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.51, “ENGINEERING REVIEW AND 
INSPECTION FEES,” OF ARTICLE 3, “FEES,” OF CHAPTER 1, “GENERAL 
PROVISIONS,” OF THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE AND THE MASTER 
FEE AND RATE SCHEDULE OF CHAPTER 10 OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, 
TEXAS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY UNDER 
THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 10.05 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1 
 
That Section 1.51, “Engineering Review and Inspection Fees,” 
of Article 3, “Fees,” of Chapter 1, “General Provisions,” of 
the Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“Section 1.51 Engineering Review and Inspection Fees 

(A) All improvements and facilities placed or 
constructed in public rights-of-way, access, pedestrian, 
utility, drainage, and street easements requiring future 
maintenance by the City or land disturbance of one acre or 
more shall be assessed an engineering review and inspection 
fee to recover administration and inspection costs. 
Improvements and facilities include, but not limited to, 
street paving, alley paving, traffic signals, screening 
walls, drainage facilities, wastewater mains, lift 
stations, water mains, meters, fire hydrants, drainage 
structures, detention ponds, channels, and appurtenances, 
and grading, land disturbance and surface drainage 
alterations. Applicable engineering fees, in the amounts 
designated in the Master Fee and Rate Schedule, Article 
VII, Section 10.85, of Chapter 10 of the Code of 
Ordinances, shall be charged when issuing a Site Permit 
for the proposed project type and additional flat fees 
shall be assessed based on certain site elements that exist 
or are being proposed within the project limits as 
applicable. 

(B) In the event a permit is to be issued for a project 
not shown in the Master Fee and Rate Schedule, a fee shall 
be charged based upon a project type shown which most 



2 
 

resembles the project type intended or based upon the base 
zoning for the property.  

 
(C)  For any special use or project type not included 
in the categories specified in the Master Fee and Rate 
Schedule, the City may set a fee in an amount consistent 
with the provisions of Section 212.906 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, as amended.  

(D) In the event the City does not have available 
resources to complete the review or inspections of a 
project, the City may charge the applicant for the actual 
costs assessed to the City by a third-party entity that 
provides those services to the City in an amount consistent 
with Section 212.906 of the Texas Local government Code, 
as amended. 
 
(E) Following the issuance of a site permit, if the 
construction plans need to be amended or revised, the fee 
prescribed in the Master Fee and Rate Schedule, Article 
VII, Section 10.85, of the Code of Ordinances, for a 
construction plan revision shall be assessed. The Director 
of Engineering may waive the fee if the plan revision is 
necessitated because of an oversight during permit review 
and deemed critical to a public improvement. 

 
(F) The review of the first submittal of construction 
plans and two resubmittals of corrected construction plans 
are included in the base project fee. If more than two 
resubmittals are needed, then the additional fee prescribed 
shall be assessed for each resubmittal. 

 
(G)  Fee payments shall be made payable to the City of 
Garland. The City shall not issue a site permit until the 
applicant pays all applicable fees in full and the City 
shall not approve any amendments to a permit until 
applicant has paid all additional fees required by such 
amendment. 

(H) Engineering review and inspection fees collected by 
the City are nonrefundable.  
 
(I) The City Manager, or his or her designee, may waive 
up to 50% of any engineering fee for projects in which the 
City determines, in its sole discretion, that the scope is 
not consistent with the fee prescribed by the Master Fee 
and Rate Schedule.   



3 
 

Section 2 
 
That Chapter 10, “Administration,” of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby amended in part to 
amend the Master Fee and Rate Schedule of Section 10.85(c)(7) 
to include certain engineering fees consistent with Section 
1.51 of the Garland Development Code and to read as follows: 
 
“. . . 
 
(7) Engineering 
 

Category Fee(1) Reference(s) 
FEMA LOMA   
   SFR property $100.00 31.07 

   Non-SFR property $100.00 per 
structure 

 
 

   
PROJECT TYPES 
 

GDC 1.51 

   Grading only, no improvements  
     1-5 acres $1,600.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $3,100.00 
 
*Mass grading only with one acre or more in disturbance 

 
   Utility tap only $500.00 

  
*Adding a fire, water, wastewater or drainage service tap only 
 
   SF Residential tap and grading  
      Less than 1 acre $2,000.00 
      1 to 5 acres $2,500.00 
      Greater than 5 acres $4,000.00 
   
 *A proposed residential (SF, SFA, Duplex) project on a singular 
(infill) lot only 
 
   Residential Sub with taps - no streets 
      Less than 1 acre $5,000.00 
      1 to 5 acres $7,000.00 
      Greater than 5 acres $9,000.00 
 
*New single family or SFA residential subdivision that contains 
proposed individual lots of record that front onto existing 
paved streets and R.O.W. 
 
   Residential Sub with proposed streets 
     Less than 1 acre $12,800.00 
     1 to 5 acres $20,600.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $37,600.00 
 



4 
 

*New single family or SFA residential subdivision that contains 
individual lots of record and proposed new streets 
 
   Multi-family on one lot of record – no proposed streets 
     Less than 1 acre $10,400.00 
     1 to 5 acres $17,900.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $31,700.00 
 
*Residential use, excluding SF or SFA, on one lot of record 
(e.g., MF, mixed use with residential, independent living, 
nursing facility) 
 
   Multi-family on one lot – proposed streets 
     Less than 1 acre $11,600.00 
     1-5 acres $21,400.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $37,300.00 
 
*Residential use, excluding SF or SFA, on one lot of record 
(e.g., MF, mixed use with residential, independent living, 
nursing facility) with a proposed public street(s) 
 
   Commercial, Retail, Office 
     Less than 1 acre $10,200.00 
     1-5 acres $12,400.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $29,500.00 
 
*Any non-residential use associated with commercial, retail, or 
office use 
 
   Commercial, Retail, Office with public street 
     Less than 1 acre $12,300.00 
     1-5 acres $17,400.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $33,200.00 
 
* Any non-residential use associated with commercial, retail, 
or office use with proposed public street(s) 
 
   Warehouse and Industrial – no streets 
     Less than 1 acre $9,800.00 
     1-5 acres $12,000.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $29,100.00 
 
*Any non-residential use associated with warehouse, data center, 
industrial use 
 
   Warehouse and Industrial – streets 
     Less than 1 acre $11,700.00 
     1-5 acres $17,000.00 
     Greater than 5 acres $33,600.00 
 
*Any non-residential use associated with warehouse, data center, 
industrial use with a proposed public street(s) 
 
Additional Fees GDC 1.51 



5 
 

   Resubmittals beyond three reviews 
(additional reviews)(1) 

$900.00 

   Sites with Stormwater Detention Pond(s) $3,400.00 
   Sites with floodplain(s) or erosion hazard 
setbacks but no floodplain encroachment(s) $500.00 

   Sites with floodplain encroachment(s) 
requiring a flood study review $2,200.00 

   Construction plan revisions after 
permitting (site revisions)(2) $500.00 

   Off-site public improvements or off-site 
public easements $700.00 

   Sites with turn lane(s) $500.00 
   Proposed traffic signal $350.00 
   Utility tap(s) in divided thoroughfare 
lane $300.00 

   TxDOT permit(s) needed $500.00 
(1) The review of the first submittal of construction plans 
and two resubmittals of corrected construction plans are 
included in the base project fee. If more than two 
resubmittals are needed, then the additional fee prescribed 
shall be assessed for each resubmittal. 
 
(2) Fee is for the complete review and approval of each plan 
revision occurrence. The Director of Engineering may waive 
the fee if the plan revision is necessitated because of an 
oversight during permit review and deemed critical to a public 
improvement. 
 

Section 3 
 
That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
a misdemeanor punishable in accordance with Sec. 10.05 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas. 
 

Section 4 
 
That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable 
and are governed by Sec. 10.06 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland, Texas. 
 

Section 5 
 
That this Ordinance shall be and become effective September 
1, 2023 upon and after its passage and approval. 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the ____day of ____________, 2023. 



6 
 

 
 
      CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
_______________________   
City Secretary 
      PUBLISHED: 
 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 7.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Part-time Associate Judge Appointment- Donna Winfield
Submitted By: Kristen Smith, HR Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
At the August 14, 2023 Work Session, Council considered approving the appointment of
part-time Associate Judge, Donna Winfield.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Approve by minute action the appointment of Donna Winfield as a part-time Associate Judge
(independent contractor) for a two-year term of office. 

Attachments
Written Briefing_PTAssocJudge 



 
 

City Council Work Session Agenda 

Meeting Date: Monday, August 14, 2023 
 

Item Title: Proposed Part-time Associate Judge Appointment 
 

Submitted By: Kevin Slay, Managing Director 
Judge John Sholden, Presiding Judge  
Kristen Smith, Managing Director 

 

SUMMARY 

At the request of Presiding Judge, John Sholden, a part-time Associate Judge is 
requested to fulfill the following duties in the absence of regular full-time judges on a 
temporary contract basis… 

• arraign arrested persons; 
• set bail for arrested persons; 
• preside over municipal court trials and other court proceedings as needed and in 

accordance with a schedule established by the Garland Municipal Court;  
• consider and execute, as appropriate under the Constitutions and laws of the 

United States and this State, arrest, search, and seizure warrants and protective 
orders; and 

• otherwise perform and fully report on such duties as may be assigned by the 
Garland Municipal Court. 

 
COST IMPACT 
 
Proposed services will be utilized on an as-needed basis, per the following pay scale… 

• All court docket assignments or duties will be charged at an hourly rate of 
$100.00, not to exceed $500.00 per day.   

 

• Daily jail duties will be charged at a flat rate of $400.00. These duties include, but 
are not limited to, arraigning arrested persons, setting bail, issuing emergency 
protective orders, reviewing post-incarceration warrants, reviewing warrant 
requests from legal and police departments, setting any additional bond 
requirements.   

 

• After hours duties (nights, weekends, and holidays) will be charged at a flat rate 
as follows: 
 



o Blood Warrants $100.00 each 
o Arrest/Search Warrants $100.00 each 
o Juvenile arraignments $150.00 each 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Judge Sholden has reviewed and requested City Council to consider the appointment of  
Donna Winfield to the part-time position. 
 

• Ms. Winfield has been an attorney in private practice since 1994.  
 

• In addition, she has served in various capacities for Dallas County and several 
district courts. 

 
• She holds a Juris Doctorate from Texas Tech School of Law and a Bachelor of 

Arts from Midwestern State University.  
 
Full details of her experience and qualifications can be found in Attachment A.  

 
  
  



Attachment A 
Resume’ and Professional References 

 

 

Donna M. Winfield 
Dallas, TX 

 

Attorney, Private Practice 1994-Present 
Private practice attorney with over 200 jury trials including first degree 
felonies and death penalty 

 
Experience 
Associate Judge: 304th and 305th Judicial District Courts (Part-time) 
1995-2014 

● Juvenile Detention Docket 
● Adoptions, CPS cases, bench trials 
● Truancy Court Judge 

 
Dallas County District Attorney’s Office- Assistant District Attorney 
August 1989-August 1994 

● Organized Crime Division 
● Felony Child Abuse Prosecutor 

 
Dallas Court of Appeals Fifth Judicial District- Briefing Attorney 

● Assigned to Justice Warren Whitham 
● Prepared briefs and assisted in writing opinions 

 
Education 
Texas Tech School of Law - Juris Doctor-May 1988 
Midwestern State University - Bachelor of Arts–cum laude–May 1985 

 
Personal 
Member State Bar of Texas 
Admitted to U.S. Federal Court for the Northern District of Texas  
Served as Appointed Special Prosecutor for Dallas County 

 
Languages 

● Spanish–Studied at the Spanish Language Institute in Cuernavaca, 
Mexico 

● French–Studied at the Alliance Francaise in Paris, France 
 
 
 
 



References 
Honorable John Creuzot, District Attorney 
Dallas County, Texas 
 Frank Crowley Courts Building, LB 19 
133 N. Riverfront Boulevard  
Dallas, Texas 75207 
214-653-3600 

 
● Honorable Tracy Holmes 

Judge 363rd Judicial District Court  
Frank Crowley Courts Building 
133 N. Riverfront Boulevard 5th Floor 
Dallas, Texas 75207 
214-653-5892 

 
● William T. Knox, Attorney 

900 Jackson Street, Suite 650 
Dallas, Texas 75202 
214-500-0000 

 
● Honorable Jane Roden 

Retired Judge County Criminal Court #8 
1001 Belleview Street #501 
Dallas, Texas 75215 
214-674-8015 

 
 

  



Attachment B 
Draft Terms of Engagement 
 

 
 
 
Ms. Donna Winfield 
7226 Dalewood Lane 
Dallas, TX 75214 
 
 
RE: Terms of Engagement as an Associate Judge 
 
Dear Ms. Winfield: 
 
This letter sets forth the terms of your engagement, as an independent contractor, for the 
position of associate judge of the City of Garland, Texas (the “City”). 
 
In your capacity as an associate judge, you have agreed to fulfill temporarily the duties of 
the full time judges during their necessary absences. In general, you will arraign arrested 
persons; set bail for arrested persons; preside over municipal court trials and other court 
proceedings as needed and in accordance with a schedule established by the Garland 
Municipal Court; consider and execute, as appropriate under the Constitutions and laws 
of the United States and this State, arrest, search, and seizure warrants and protective 
orders; and otherwise perform and fully report on such duties as may be assigned to you 
by the Garland Municipal Court. 
 
You agree to submit a monthly accounting of your hours worked each day and an invoice 
to the City detailing your hours worked and a descriptive summary of services provided, 
which invoice shall be subject to the review and approval of the Garland Municipal Court. 
You will be paid for your services on a monthly basis in accordance with the following fee 
schedule: 
 

• All court docket assignments or duties will be charged at an hourly rate of $100.00 
not to exceed $500.00 per day.   

 
• Daily jail duties will be charged at a flat rate of $400.00. These duties include, but 

are not limited to, arraigning arrested persons, setting bail, issuing emergency 
protective orders, reviewing post-incarceration warrants, reviewing warrant 
requests from legal and police departments, setting any additional bond 
requirements.   

 



• After hours duties (nights, weekends, and holidays) will be charged at a flat rate 
as follows: 

  
o Blood Warrants $100.00 each 
o Arrest/Search Warrants $100.00 each 
o Juvenile arraignments $150.00 each 

 
You acknowledge that you are being retained as an independent contractor and not as 
an employee.  You are solely responsible for the payment of all income, social security, 
employment withholding or other taxes incurred by you as a result of your performance 
of services under this agreement, and for all obligations, reports, and notifications relating 
to those taxes. You will not be entitled, under this agreement or otherwise, to vacation 
pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker’s compensation, health or 
disability, unemployment, or other employee benefits from the City of any nature. The City 
has no obligation to pay or withhold such taxes. Nothing in this agreement obligates the 
City to assign a minimum, or any, amount of work to you. 
 
This agreement terminates upon the expiration of your Garland City Council appointed 
term of office, your removal from office, or failure to hold the qualifications required of a 
municipal judge of a municipal court of record under the laws of the State of Texas.  This 
agreement is not assignable by either party.  

Please indicate your acceptance of the terms of this engagement letter by signing below 
in the space indicated, and returning the original of this letter to me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Slay 
Managing Director 
City of Garland 
 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 8.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Public Hearing on Proposed FY 2023/2024 Tax Rate
Submitted By: Corey Worsham, Tax Administrator 

Summary of Request/Problem
The Texas Property Tax Code, Section 26.05 (d), provides that a governing body may not
adopt a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the voter approval rate or the no new revenue tax
rate until the governing body has held a public hearing on the proposed tax rate and has
otherwise complied with Section 26.06 and Section 26.065 of the Texas Property Tax Code.
The 2023-2024 proposed budget is based on a tax rate of 68.9746 cents per every $100 of
valuation, which exceeds the no new revenue tax rate of 63.6388 cents per every $100 of
value.

Proposed Tax Rate 
  2022-2023 2023-2024  
  Current Proposed Change

O&M 34.1092 31.4146 -7.91 %

Debt Service 37.5600 37.5600         0%

Total Tax Rate 71.6692 68.9746    -3.8%

       

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
An opportunity for public comment regarding the proposed 2023-2024 tax rate will be provided
at the August 15, 2023 Regular Meeting, August 22, 2023 Special Meeting and the September
5, 2023, Regular Meeting. The FY 2023-2024 Budget and Tax Rate are scheduled for
adoption on September 5, 2023. 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 9.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Public Hearing on 2023-24 Proposed Budget
Submitted By: Allyson Bell Steadman, Budget Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
Section 5, Article VIII, of the City Charter requires that a Public Hearing be held on the
Proposed Budget for the coming fiscal year.  At the Public Hearing, all interested persons shall
be given an opportunity to be heard for or against any item contained in the Proposed Budget.
The Proposed Budget for 2023-24 has been available for public inspection in the City libraries,
in the City Secretary's Office, and on the City's website since August 2, 2023.  Public Hearings
will be held on August 22, 2023 and September 5, 2023. 

This budget will raise more revenue from property taxes than last years budget by an amount
of $14,308,385, which is a 9.72 percent increase from last years budget. The property tax
revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this year is $2,304,042.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
Open public hearing. 

Take citizens' comments. 

Close public hearing. 



GARLAND
PLANNING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 10. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Z 23-17 Fred A. Gans - Zoning (District 1)
Submitted By: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

REQUEST
Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses.

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, General
Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use.

LOCATION
4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike

OWNER
Robert and Mary Kelsoe
Garland LTD PS
DFW OIL, INC.

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of five (5) to two (2), recommended approval
of 1) an  Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office (CO)
Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use,
General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use with the following
conditions: 

Incorporate additional restrictions to ensure the condominium use should be primarily for
storage of vehicles. 
Restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor Use for Building 1 by square footage. 

Additionally, the Plan Commission recommended that the applicant should reach out to the
neighbors. The applicant held a neighborhood meeting after the Plan Commission meeting.

The applicant reviewed the additional recommendations per Plan Commission and made
several changes (including adding a masonry screening wall along Naaman Forest Blvd);
however, the applicant has clarified that some of the proposed automobile repair work



includes automobile customization, automotive refurbishment, automotive glass and
upholstery which are classified as "major" automobile repair use per the GDC. Therefore, the
applicant requesting the City Council to consider the major automobile use in Lot 1 by SUP
only. 

It should be noted the applicant did not make the change to restrict the Automobile Repair,
Minor use for Building 1.

In addition, the applicant clarified that garages owners may use the garage condominium as
an office space in Lot 2.  The applicant is requesting the City Council to consider the General
Office use within Lot 2.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses.

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, General
Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently unimproved. The applicant proposes to construct a total of
three (3) buildings. One (1) building will consist of multiple tenants for Automobile Repair
(Minor) Use, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only), General Office and Retail Use in
Lot 1. Two (2) buildings will be for the Garage Condominium (Garages of America) in Lot 2. All
three (3) buildings will be constructed at the same time. It should be noted that Lot 1 will be
accessible to the public and Lot 2 will be enclosed and will require access.

SITE DATA
The subject property contains approximately 8.15 acres and has approximately 539 linear feet
of frontage along North President George Bush Turnpike, 598.99 linear feet of frontage along
Ranger Drive and 546 linear feet of frontage along Naaman Forest Boulevard. Lot 1 can be
accessed from Ranger Drive. Lot 2 can be accessed from North President George Bush
Turnpike and an emergency access is provided from Naaman Forest Boulevard. The access
point from Naaman Forest Boulevard along Lot 1 has been removed since the Plan
Commission meeting.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The property is currently zoned Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses. 

The Community Office (CO) district is intended to create an appropriate setting for medium
and higher intensity office and professional uses. The district may be used as a transition
district between low intensity office/retail uses and more intense uses. It is also generally
appropriate along major transportation corridors. However, the CO district is generally not
appropriate in proximity to low-density residential districts. Examples of allowed uses in a CO
district are: professional offices, campus-style corporate office, research, and assembly
operations that may be large in scale but that are conducted wholly within a building(s) with
very limited or no outside storage. 



CONSIDERATIONS
Detail Plan   1.

The applicant proposes to construct in two (2) lots. A 38,970 square-foot building is proposed
in Lot 1 and intended for minor automobile repair, contractor’s office/warehouse (indoors only),
office and retail uses. However, the applicant proposes to include the major automobile repair
by SUP only. Major automobile repair uses would include automotive refurbishment,
automotive glass and upholstery and automotive customization for luxury vehicles. 

This building will be accessible to anyone. It should be noted that the automobile repair and
retail uses are not permitted in the Community Office (CO) District; the applicant requests to
add the uses in this Planned Development.

Lot 2 will consist of a 40,688 square-foot building and a 36,188 square-foot building. Each
building consists of thirty-six (36) garages. It is  intended for the “garage condominium”, which
is a unique facility where the customer owns the oversized garage / warehouse unit as
opposed to renting it.  Area residents can build equity while enjoying the privacy and
convenience of their own garage, according to the applicant. Lot 2 will be gated and
accessible to the garage owners. 

Every Garage Condo unit features a 14-foot high overhead door with commercial-grade
electric opener and two remotes, 16 to 24-foot-high ceilings, a 3-foot walk-in door, mezzanine,
air conditioning, an overhead heater, insulated walls and ceilings, individually-metered
electrical service with 125-amp panels, a dedicated RV power outlet, R-38 roof insulation,
fluorescent lighting, fire sprinklers, and pre-wiring for phone/cable/broadband access. In
addition, a private clubhouse will be provided for exclusive use by garage owners.

These garage owners can store luxury vehicles or any personal belongings; however,
overnight stay is not permitted within this development. 

The GDC does not contemplate the “Garage Condominium” land use. The closest land use
classification is “Warehouse/Office Showroom (indoor only), which is defined as an
establishment with at least twenty-five percent of its total floor area devoted to office and
showroom space (that is, an establishment where a maximum of seventy-five percent of its
total floor area is devoted to storage and warehousing that is not generally accessible to the
public). The term includes sales offices, retail or wholesale sales areas, and display areas
(showrooms) for products sold and distributed from the warehousing area.

As this land use does not entirely contemplate the proposed “Garage Condominium” concept
the applicant request to add this land use through the new Planned Development.  

Parking2.

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the parking requirements in Lot 1 for the proposed
uses. However, the applicant proposes a parking ratio of 1 parking space per every 2,000
square feet of gross floor area, which calculates to a total of thirty-nine (39) parking spaces.
The Warehouse, Office/Showroom (indoor only) use requires a parking ratio of 1/300 gross
floor area for the office + 1/1000 remainder, which would calculate to around seventy-seven
(77) parking spaces. It should be noted that the GDC has a self-storage facility
(mini-warehouse) use with a parking ratio of 1/20 units (1/25 units if over 100 units in



(mini-warehouse) use with a parking ratio of 1/20 units (1/25 units if over 100 units in
development) +1/300 office gfa, which would require four (4) parking spaces. The applicant
has provided information from other municipalities with the similar use, and the proposed
thirty-nine (39) parking spaces in Lot 2 appears to be adequate. 

Screening and Landscaping3.

The landscape buffer for Lot 2 along North President George Bush Turnpike requires nine (9)
large canopy trees and sixty-three (63) shrubs. The frontage along Lot 2 is mainly floodplain
and easements; therefore, the applicant will preserve seventy-nine (79) trees. No new
landscaping is proposed along North President George Bush Turnpike along Lot 2. 

In addition, a six (6)-foot tall steel fence is proposed along the northern, eastern and southern
perimeter of Lot 2. A six (6)-foot masonry screening wall is proposed along Naaman Forest
Boulevard. It should be noted the masonry screening wall has been proposed following the
Plan Commission meeting.

The remaining portion of Lot 1 and 2 complies with the applicable screening and landscaping
standards per the GDC. 

Building Design4.

The building elevations (Exhibit E) complies with the building design standards per the
Garland Development Code (GDC).

It should be noted that the automotive service bay doors will not face any street.  

Transportation5.

The Transportation Department did not require a Traffic Impact Analysis, due to the low
volume of traffic generated by this development. In addition, the Texas Department of
Transportation approved the access from North President George Bush Turnpike. 

Signage6.

The applicant is not requesting any signage deviations with this request. 



Deviations7.

GDC
Standards Required Proposed Applicant's Justification

Land Use

Lot 2-The closest land use in
the GDC for the proposed
use is Warehouse,
Office/Showroom (indoor
only).

The applicant
proposes  a garage
condo in Lot 2. Each
unit will be owned
and can be used to
store luxury vehicles
or personal
belongings. 

The proposed land use
is not contemplated in
the GDC. Therefore, the
applicant requests to
add the “Garage
Condominium” use.

Parking

The Warehouse,
Office/Showroom (indoor
only) use requires a parking
ratio of 1/300 gross floor area
for the office + 1/1000
remainder, which would
calculate to around
seventy-seven (77) parking
spaces.

The applicant
proposes a parking
ratio of 1 parking
space per every
2,000 square feet of
gross floor area,
which calculates to a
total of thirty-nine
(39) parking spaces.

The applicant has
provided information
from other municipalities
with the similar use and
proposed thirty-nine (39)
parking spaces in Lot 2
appears to be adequate.

Landscaping

The landscape buffer for Lot
2 along North President
George Bush Turnpike
requires nine (9) large
canopy trees and sixty-three
(shrubs).

New landscape
buffer planting not
provided. The
applicant proposes
preserving existing
trees.

The frontage along Lot 2
is mainly floodplain and
easements; therefore,
the applicant will
preserve seventy-nine
(79) trees.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for
the subject site. Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily
non-residential, serving a collection of neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a
mix of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family residential, and entertainment.

The garage condominium concept is a new and innovative use, one that has been introduced
in several other cities in the region.  The use includes retail, office and services as
contemplated in the Community Centers designation, though it centers around an automotive
component as well. The site has been designed so that the automotive service bay doors will
not face any street.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The property to the north, across North President George Bush Turnpike, is zoned Planned
Development (PD) District 00-39 for Community Retail Uses; it is currently vacant. The
property the east is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 95-2 for Community Office
Uses; it is currently vacant. The properties to the south, across Naaman Forest Boulevard, are
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 07-69 for Single-Family Uses; these properties are
developed with single-family detached homes. The property to the west is zoned Planned



Development (PD) District 82-115; it is developed with a GISD career center.

Attachments
Z 23-17 Location Map 
Z 23-17 Conditions 
Z 23-17 R&M Zoning 
Z 23-17 Responses 
Z 23-17 Staff Presentation 



45164520 4512
4508

PALM DESERT DRRIVER OAKS PKWY

E BRAND RD
CEDARVIEW DR

NAAMAN FOREST BLVD

SH
OR

T
LN

GEORGE BUSH

BRAND OFF E

N GEORGE BUSH HWY E

ELLI
OTT AVE

FOREST BEND CT

N GEORGE BUSH HWY W

GEORGE BUSH BRAND ON W

RANGER DR

NAAMAN SCHOOL RD

CEDAR COVE DR

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD E

P D  0 7 - 3 6P D  0 7 - 3 6

P D  9 7 - 0 9P D  9 7 - 0 9

P D  8 2 - 1 1 5P D  8 2 - 1 1 5

P DP D
1 6 - 0 51 6 - 0 5 P D  0 4 - 4 5P D  0 4 - 4 5N ON O

P D  0 3 - 3 9P D  0 3 - 3 9

P D  0 0 - 3 9P D  0 0 - 3 9

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P DP D
7 3 - 5 77 3 - 5 7 P DP D

7 2 - 27 2 - 2

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1P D  0 7 - 6 9P D  0 7 - 6 9

P D  9 5 - 2P D  9 5 - 2

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

P D  1 5 - 0 9P D  1 5 - 0 9

4625
4645

4653

4413

4843

4695

603
607

611
615

619
623

604

624

608
612

616
620

603

623

607
611

615
619

604
608

612616
620

624

45034599

4504

4525

375

4525

4885

4412

4695

4433

ZONING MAP Z 23-17
¯

0 210 420 Feet 1 inch = 316 feet

4625, 4645, 4653, & 4695 North President George Bush Highway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 23-17 
 

4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush 
Turnpike. 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a Garage Condominium, 
Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, General Office, 
Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail 
Use. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Community 

Office (CO) District and Planned Development (PD) 
District 87-1 as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Garland 
Development Code are included by reference and shall 
apply, except as otherwise specified by this ordinance. 
 

 
IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development shall be in general conformance 
with the Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C through Exhibit 
E. In the event there is conflict between the approved 
Detail Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the 
Specific Regulations shall apply.  

 
 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Uses:  
 

Lot 1: 

Land Uses are only permitted as in the Community 

Office (CO) District, except for all Hotel/Motel Uses. 

In addition, the Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, 

Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) Use and 

Retail Use shall be permitted by right in Lot 1.  

 

The Automobile Repair (Minor) Use shall adhere to the 

standards in Section 2.52 (3)(g) of the Garland 

Development Code. 



PD Conditions 
File Z 23-17 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

The Automobile Repair (Major) Use shall be permitted 

by SUP only. 

 

Lot 2: 

The Garage Condominium Use shall be permitted in Lot 

2. In addition, a General Office use shall be 

permitted. All other uses shall be prohibited. 

 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 

parking, and other development proposed shall be in 

general conformance with the approved Site Plan 

labeled Exhibit C. 

 

 

C. Building Height: The maximum height shall be thirty 
(30) feet. 

 

D. Habitation: No overnight stay shall be permitted 

within Lot 1 or Lot 2. 

 

E. Outside Storage: No outside storage shall be permitted 
within Lot 1 or Lot 2.  

 

F. Garage Units: Building 2 shall contain thirty-six (36) 
units and Building 3 shall consist of thirty-six (36) 

units.  

 

G. Landscape Plan: Screening and landscaping shall be in 
general conformance with the landscape plan labeled 

Exhibit D. The existing trees along the North 

President George Bush Turnpike frontage of  Lot 2, as 

reflected in Exhibit C, shall be preserved and 

maintained. 

 

1. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a 
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with 

this PD Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, 

and the landscaping plan attached hereto at all 

times. The property owner is responsible for 

regular weeding, mowing of grass, irrigation, 

fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance of all 

plantings as needed. All exposed ground surfaces  

on or within the premises shall be properly 

improved, covered with screening or other 

approved solid material, or protected with a 



PD Conditions 
File Z 23-17 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 

 

2. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 

replaced with another approved plant variety that 

complies with the approved landscape plan within 

sixty (60) days after receipt of written 

notification from the City. In the event the 

property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 

landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  

(60) days after receipt of written notification 

from the City, the City may, in addition to any 

other remedy available by law, withhold future 

city permits, licenses and/or certificates 

requested by the property owner for the premises 

to which such violation applies.  

 

3. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  

Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Garland at all times. The property 

owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 

all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 

the property owner fails to remedy a violation 

of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 

within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 

notification from the City, the City may, in 

addition to any other remedy available by law, 

withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 

certificates requested by the property owner for 

the premises to which such violation applies. 

 

H. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general 
conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REPORT & MINUTES 
 
 
 
P.C. Meeting, July 24, 2023  

 
3a. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Fred A. Gans, requesting 
approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for 
Community Office (CO) Uses to allow a Garage Condominium, Automobile 
Repair (Minor), General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and 
Retail Use. This property is located at 4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North 
President George Bush Turnpike. (District 1) (Z 23-17 – Zoning) 

 
The applicant, Fred Gans, 2323 Tarpley Ste. 100, Carrollton, TX 75006, 
provided an overview of the request, and remained available for questions. 
 
Commissioner Rose asked the applicant to clarify whether the owners 
could change the rules with regard to who can own the units. 
 
The applicant explained that as Garages of America in their condo 
documentation, there is a period of 20 years when according to the 
contract, certain stipulations cannot be changed or modified such as 
allowing overnight and outside storage on the property. 
 
Commissioner Aubin asked the applicant for additional renderings of the 
development. He also stated that if the commission has long term concerns 
regarding the use of the property, that could be stipulated in the PD. 
 
The applicant provided additional renderings in their presentation. He also 
clarified that they are willing to work with the commission to address any 
concerns regarding the use of the property. 
 
Commissioner Dalton clarified for the applicant that unlike how other cities 
have handled his request, for the City's purpose, this is not a C1 zoning. 
His proposed development would be surrounded by schools, hotels and 
residential homes. Historically, the City has not put a C1 zoning in the 
middle of a retail space. Commissioner Dalton feels like this proposed 
development looks more like a Light Commercial development. He also 
reiterated his concerns about future owners converting their spaces into 
repair shops and/or renting them out to others. 
 
The applicant explained that they do the best job they can in vetting the 
buyers to find out exactly what each buyer's intended uses for the space 
are going to be. In doing so, their goal is to only bring in owners who are 
going to be good neighbors for the other owners. If it came to light that an 
owner was not abiding by the contract, they would be shut down and a lien 
would be placed on them. 



Commissioner Paris asked for clarification on whether the individual units 
would be owned or rented out. Commissioner Paris also asked for 
clarification regarding whether a Traffic Impact Analysis was required by 
the Transportation Department to address any traffic concerns. 
 
The applicant clarified that if an owner has more than one garage, the 
owner can lease a unit for one year with the stipulation that the lease is 
reviewed annually by the HOA to ensure that the individual leasing the 
garage is in compliance with the contract documents. 
 
Staff clarified that with the Detail Plan, the Transportation Department has 
all of the details available to make that determination but a traffic study was 
not required in this case. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked the applicant if he would be opposed to 
changing the current zoning designation from CO to a commercial use. 
 
Staff clarified that the Planned Development would still be based on the 
Community Office District; however, it would allow this specific use with 
the Detail Plan. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked for clarification on whether there would be a 
property manager to handle the day-to-day affairs of the property. He also 
asked for clarification on the number of board members for the HOA. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked for clarification on whether auto repair would 
be allowed on the property. 
 
The applicant confirmed that they have a third party that helps the owners 
manage the HOA and that the HOA consists of no less than three and no 
more than five members. Once 75% of the units are sold, the owner turns 
over the management rights to the HOA. 
 
Residents speaking in opposition of the request: 
 
Alice McKinnon, 604 Cedarview Dr., Garland, TX 75040 
Patricia Kosciolek, 615 Cedarview Dr., Garland, TX 75040 
Craig Baginski, 4433 Naaman School Blvd., Garland, TX 75040 
 
Residents speaking in opposition raised concerns with overnight stay at the 
property, traffic concerns, safety concerns, parking on the outside of the 
facility look like and the overall look of the development in terms of looking 
like another storage facility. 
 
 
 



Residents speaking in favor of the request: 
 
Jim Gallegos, 608 Cedar Cove Dr., Garland, TX 75040 
 
The resident speaking in favor stated the structures are very pleasing, 
welcomes the additional security at the facility, isn't concerned with 
additional traffic as the purpose of the facility is to store cars. The resident 
expressed he would rather have a development such as the one being 
considered versus another hotel or high density apartment complex. 
 
Commissioner Rose asked the resident in favor if there is an HOA in his 
neighborhood and if he was aware of what their position was with regard to 
the proposed development. 
 
The resident indicated that he was not aware and could not speak on behalf 
of the HOA board as to what their position is on the development. 
 
The applicant responded to the citizen comments and indicated that until 
last week, they had been unsuccessful in reaching the contact person with 
the HOA to address any concerns the residents may have. In regards to 
the material of the structure, the applicant stated that the building will be 
95% limestone and glass and not metal as some of the concerns raised by 
the residents. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Rose to close the public hearing. 
Seconded by Commissioner Paris. Motion carried: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays. 
 
Commissioner Dalton stated that while the concerns regarding traffic and 
lighting would be addressed by the City, in his opinion the development still 
resembles a storage building. He further expressed that he does believe 
this type of development is needed but not at this location near a residential 
area. 
 
Commissioner Aubin stated that he agrees that the use of the development 
is needed and that the land will eventually get developed but he is still on 
the fence about it. He would be in favor of approving the request with the 
stipulation that the applicant work with staff and the residents to implement 
additional restrictions in the PD before bringing the development for 
consideration before the City Council. 
 
Commissioner Paris thanked the residents for coming to express their 
concerns about the development to the Commission. She also stated that 
she would be in favor of the development if it came with additional 
restrictions to the PD. 
 
 



Motion was made by Commissioner Aubin to approve the application with 
the additional restrictions to ensure that on the condominium use that it be 
maintained primarily for storage of vehicles, that revisions to the PD as 
needed be included and that the concerns of the nearby residents be 
addressed. Seconded by Commissioner Rose. Motion carried: 5 Ayes, 2 
Nays with Commissioner Jenkins and Commissioner Dalton voting in 
opposition. 
 









We believe this type of business may decrease our property values in the area because it would 
attract different movements from people and currently it is very peaceful and family oriented 
(including the school).  



























City Council Meeting
August 15, 2023

The applicant proposes to construct a garage condominium 
(Garages of America), automobile repair use, contractor’s 
office/warehouse (indoors only) and retail use. 

Z 23-17



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush   
        Turnpike.

Applicant:           Fred A. Gans

Owner:                Robert and Mary Kelsoe, Garland LTD PS, DFW OIL, INC.

Acreage:             8.15 acres

Zoning:               Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office 
       (CO) Uses Z 23-17



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 23-17



CITYWIDE LOCATION 
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 23-17



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Z 23-17



The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends 
Community Centers for the subject site. Community centers are areas 
with compact development, primarily non-residential, serving a 
collection of neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a mix 
of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family residential, 
and entertainment.

The garage condominium concept is a new and innovative use, one 
that has been introduced in several other cities in the region.  The use 
includes retail, office and services as contemplated in the Community 
Centers designation, though it centers around an automotive 
component as well. The site has been designed so that the automotive 
service bay doors will not face any street.

Z 23-17



PHOTOS

Z 23-17



PHOTOS

Z 23-17



SITE PLAN

Z 23-17



LANDSCAPE PLAN

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-01



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



DEVIATIONS

Z 23-17

GDC standard Required Proposed Applicant’s Justification

Land Use Lot 2-The closest land use 
in the GDC for the 
proposed use is 
Warehouse, 
Office/Showroom (indoor 
only)

The applicant proposes  a 
garage condo in Lot 2. 
Each unit will be owned 
and can be used to store 
luxury vehicles or personal 
belongings. 

The proposed land use is 
not contemplated in the 
GDC. Therefore, the 
applicant requests to add 
the “Garage 
Condominium” use.

Parking The Warehouse, 
Office/Showroom (indoor 
only) use requires a 
parking ratio of 1/300 
gross floor area for the 
office + 1/1000 remainder, 
which would calculate to 
around seventy-seven (77) 
parking spaces.

The applicant proposes a 
parking ratio of 1 parking 
space per every 2,000 
square feet of gross floor 
area, which calculates to a 
total of thirty-nine (39) 
parking spaces.

The applicant has provided 
information from other 
municipalities with the 
similar use and proposed 
thirty-nine (39) parking 
spaces in Lot 2 appears to 
be adequate.

Landscaping The landscape buffer for 
Lot 2 along North 
President George Bush 
Turnpike requires nine (9) 
large canopy trees and 
sixty-three (shrubs).

New landscape buffer 
planting not provided. The 
applicant proposes 
preserving existing trees.

The frontage along Lot 2 is 
mainly floodplain and 
easements; therefore, the 
applicant will preserve 
seventy-nine (79) trees.



SAMPLE PICTURE

Z 23-17



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) 
District 87-1 for Community Office (CO) Uses

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, 
Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, Contractor’s 
Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use

Z 23-17



PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION

On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of five (5) to two (2), recommended approval 
of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office (CO) 
Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, 
General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use with the following conditions:  

▪ Incorporate additional restrictions to ensure the condominium use should be primarily for storage of vehicles.  

▪ Restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor Use for Building 1 by square footage.  

Additionally, the Plan Commission recommended that the applicant should reach out to the 
neighbors. The applicant held a neighborhood meeting after the Plan Commission meeting. 

The applicant reviewed the additional recommendations per Plan Commission and made 
several changes (including adding a masonry screening wall along Naaman Forest Blvd); 
however, the applicant has clarified that some of the proposed automobile repair work 
includes automobile customization, automotive refurbishment, automotive glass and 
upholstery which are classified as "major" automobile repair use per the GDC. Therefore, the 
applicant requesting the City Council to consider the major automobile use in Lot 1 by SUP only.

It should be noted the applicant did not make the change to restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor use for Building 1. 

In addition, the applicant clarified that garages owners may use the garage condominium as 
an office space in Lot 2. The applicant is requesting the City Council to consider the General Office use within Lot 2. 

Z 23-17



CHANGES SINCE  PLAN COMMISSION

▪ A six (6)-foot masonry wall along Naaman Forest Boulevard is 
proposed for Lot 1 and Lot 2.

▪ The applicant is proposing to add the major automobile use in Lot 1 
by SUP request only.  Any major automobile repair request will be 
required to go through the public hearing process in the future.

▪ A general office use is allowed to operate within the garage 
condominium (Lot 2), apart from the storage use. All other 
businesses and activities are prohibited.

▪ The access point from Naaman Forest Boulevard along Lot 1 has 
been removed.

Z 23-17



Z 23-17



GARLAND
PLANNING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 10. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Consider a Detail Plan request by Fred A. Gans to construct garage

condominiums (“Garages of America”), with automobile repair, office,
storage/warehouse and retail use. The site is located at 4653, 4645, 4625 and
4695 North President George Bush Turnpike in District 1. 

Submitted By: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

REQUEST
Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses.

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, General
Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use.

LOCATION
4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush Turnpike

OWNER
Robert and Mary Kelsoe
Garland LTD PS
DFW OIL, INC.

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of five (5) to two (2), recommended approval
of 1) an  Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office (CO)
Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use,
General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use with the following
conditions: 

Incorporate additional restrictions to ensure the condominium use should be primarily for
storage of vehicles. 
Restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor Use for Building 1 by square footage. 

Additionally, the Plan Commission recommended that the applicant should reach out to the
neighbors. The applicant held a neighborhood meeting after the Plan Commission meeting.



The applicant reviewed the additional recommendations per Plan Commission and made
several changes (including adding a masonry screening wall along Naaman Forest Blvd);
however, the applicant has clarified that some of the proposed automobile repair work
includes automobile customization, automotive refurbishment, automotive glass and
upholstery which are classified as "major" automobile repair use per the GDC. Therefore, the
applicant requesting the City Council to consider the major automobile use in Lot 1 by SUP
only. 

It should be noted the applicant did not make the change to restrict the Automobile Repair,
Minor use for Building 1.

In addition, the applicant clarified that garages owners may use the garage condominium as
an office space in Lot 2.  The applicant is requesting the City Council to consider the General
Office use within Lot 2.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses.

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, General
Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently unimproved. The applicant proposes to construct a total of
three (3) buildings. One (1) building will consist of multiple tenants for Automobile Repair
(Minor) Use, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only), General Office and Retail Use in
Lot 1. Two (2) buildings will be for the Garage Condominium (Garages of America) in Lot 2. All
three (3) buildings will be constructed at the same time. It should be noted that Lot 1 will be
accessible to the public and Lot 2 will be enclosed and will require access.

SITE DATA
The subject property contains approximately 8.15 acres and has approximately 539 linear feet
of frontage along North President George Bush Turnpike, 598.99 linear feet of frontage along
Ranger Drive and 546 linear feet of frontage along Naaman Forest Boulevard. Lot 1 can be
accessed from Ranger Drive. Lot 2 can be accessed from North President George Bush
Turnpike and an emergency access is provided from Naaman Forest Boulevard. The access
point from Naaman Forest Boulevard along Lot 1 has been removed since the Plan
Commission meeting.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The property is currently zoned Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office
(CO) Uses. 

The Community Office (CO) district is intended to create an appropriate setting for medium
and higher intensity office and professional uses. The district may be used as a transition
district between low intensity office/retail uses and more intense uses. It is also generally
appropriate along major transportation corridors. However, the CO district is generally not
appropriate in proximity to low-density residential districts. Examples of allowed uses in a CO
district are: professional offices, campus-style corporate office, research, and assembly



operations that may be large in scale but that are conducted wholly within a building(s) with
very limited or no outside storage. 



CONSIDERATIONS
Detail Plan   1.

The applicant proposes to construct in two (2) lots. A 38,970 square-foot building is proposed
in Lot 1 and intended for minor automobile repair, contractor’s office/warehouse (indoors only),
office and retail uses. However, the applicant proposes to include the major automobile repair
by SUP only. Major automobile repair uses would include automotive refurbishment,
automotive glass and upholstery and automotive customization for luxury vehicles. 

This building will be accessible to anyone. It should be noted that the automobile repair and
retail uses are not permitted in the Community Office (CO) District; the applicant requests to
add the uses in this Planned Development.

Lot 2 will consist of a 40,688 square-foot building and a 36,188 square-foot building. Each
building consists of thirty-six (36) garages. It is  intended for the “garage condominium”, which
is a unique facility where the customer owns the oversized garage / warehouse unit as
opposed to renting it.  Area residents can build equity while enjoying the privacy and
convenience of their own garage, according to the applicant. Lot 2 will be gated and
accessible to the garage owners. 

Every Garage Condo unit features a 14-foot high overhead door with commercial-grade
electric opener and two remotes, 16 to 24-foot-high ceilings, a 3-foot walk-in door, mezzanine,
air conditioning, an overhead heater, insulated walls and ceilings, individually-metered
electrical service with 125-amp panels, a dedicated RV power outlet, R-38 roof insulation,
fluorescent lighting, fire sprinklers, and pre-wiring for phone/cable/broadband access. In
addition, a private clubhouse will be provided for exclusive use by garage owners.

These garage owners can store luxury vehicles or any personal belongings; however,
overnight stay is not permitted within this development. 

The GDC does not contemplate the “Garage Condominium” land use. The closest land use
classification is “Warehouse/Office Showroom (indoor only), which is defined as an
establishment with at least twenty-five percent of its total floor area devoted to office and
showroom space (that is, an establishment where a maximum of seventy-five percent of its
total floor area is devoted to storage and warehousing that is not generally accessible to the
public). The term includes sales offices, retail or wholesale sales areas, and display areas
(showrooms) for products sold and distributed from the warehousing area.

As this land use does not entirely contemplate the proposed “Garage Condominium” concept
the applicant request to add this land use through the new Planned Development.  

Parking2.

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the parking requirements in Lot 1 for the proposed
uses. However, the applicant proposes a parking ratio of 1 parking space per every 2,000
square feet of gross floor area, which calculates to a total of thirty-nine (39) parking spaces.
The Warehouse, Office/Showroom (indoor only) use requires a parking ratio of 1/300 gross
floor area for the office + 1/1000 remainder, which would calculate to around seventy-seven
(77) parking spaces. It should be noted that the GDC has a self-storage facility
(mini-warehouse) use with a parking ratio of 1/20 units (1/25 units if over 100 units in



(mini-warehouse) use with a parking ratio of 1/20 units (1/25 units if over 100 units in
development) +1/300 office gfa, which would require four (4) parking spaces. The applicant
has provided information from other municipalities with the similar use, and the proposed
thirty-nine (39) parking spaces in Lot 2 appears to be adequate. 

Screening and Landscaping3.

The landscape buffer for Lot 2 along North President George Bush Turnpike requires nine (9)
large canopy trees and sixty-three (63) shrubs. The frontage along Lot 2 is mainly floodplain
and easements; therefore, the applicant will preserve seventy-nine (79) trees. No new
landscaping is proposed along North President George Bush Turnpike along Lot 2. 

In addition, a six (6)-foot tall steel fence is proposed along the northern, eastern and southern
perimeter of Lot 2.  A six (6)-foot masonry screening wall is proposed along Naaman Forest
Boulevard. It should be noted the masonry screening wall has been proposed following the
Plan Commission meeting.

The remaining portion of Lot 1 and 2 complies with the applicable screening and landscaping
standards per the GDC. 

Building Design4.

The building elevations (Exhibit E) complies with the building design standards per the
Garland Development Code (GDC).

It should be noted that the automotive service bay doors will not face any street.  

Transportation5.

The Transportation Department did not require a Traffic Impact Analysis, due to the low
volume of traffic generated by this development. In addition, the Texas Department of
Transportation approved the access from North President George Bush Turnpike. 

Signage6.

The applicant is not requesting any signage deviations with this request. 



Deviations7.

GDC
Standards Required Proposed Applicant's Justification

Land Use

Lot 2-The closest land use in
the GDC for the proposed
use is Warehouse,
Office/Showroom (indoor
only).

The applicant
proposes  a garage
condo in Lot 2. Each
unit will be owned
and can be used to
store luxury vehicles
or personal
belongings. 

The proposed land use
is not contemplated in
the GDC. Therefore, the
applicant requests to
add the “Garage
Condominium” use.

Parking

The Warehouse,
Office/Showroom (indoor
only) use requires a parking
ratio of 1/300 gross floor area
for the office + 1/1000
remainder, which would
calculate to around
seventy-seven (77) parking
spaces.

The applicant
proposes a parking
ratio of 1 parking
space per every
2,000 square feet of
gross floor area,
which calculates to a
total of thirty-nine
(39) parking spaces.

The applicant has
provided information
from other municipalities
with the similar use and
proposed thirty-nine (39)
parking spaces in Lot 2
appears to be adequate.

Landscaping

The landscape buffer for Lot
2 along North President
George Bush Turnpike
requires nine (9) large
canopy trees and sixty-three
(shrubs).

New landscape
buffer planting not
provided. The
applicant proposes
preserving existing
trees.

The frontage along Lot 2
is mainly floodplain and
easements; therefore,
the applicant will
preserve seventy-nine
(79) trees.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for
the subject site. Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily
non-residential, serving a collection of neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a
mix of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family residential, and entertainment.

The garage condominium concept is a new and innovative use, one that has been introduced
in several other cities in the region.  The use includes retail, office and services as
contemplated in the Community Centers designation, though it centers around an automotive
component as well. The site has been designed so that the automotive service bay doors will
not face any street.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The property to the north, across North President George Bush Turnpike, is zoned Planned
Development (PD) District 00-39 for Community Retail Uses; it is currently vacant. The
property the east is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 95-2 for Community Office
Uses; it is currently vacant. The properties to the south, across Naaman Forest Boulevard, are
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 07-69 for Single-Family Uses; these properties are
developed with single-family detached homes. The property to the west is zoned Planned



Development (PD) District 82-115; it is developed with a GISD career center.

Attachments
Z 23-17 Location Map 
Z 23-17 Exhibits 
Z 23-17 R&M Detail Plan 
Z 23-17 Responses 
Z 23-17 Staff Presentation 



45164520 4512
4508

PALM DESERT DRRIVER OAKS PKWY

E BRAND RD
CEDARVIEW DR

NAAMAN FOREST BLVD

SH
OR

T
LN

GEORGE BUSH

BRAND OFF E

N GEORGE BUSH HWY E

ELLI
OTT AVE

FOREST BEND CT

N GEORGE BUSH HWY W

GEORGE BUSH BRAND ON W

RANGER DR

NAAMAN SCHOOL RD

CEDAR COVE DR

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD E

P D  0 7 - 3 6P D  0 7 - 3 6

P D  9 7 - 0 9P D  9 7 - 0 9

P D  8 2 - 1 1 5P D  8 2 - 1 1 5

P DP D
1 6 - 0 51 6 - 0 5 P D  0 4 - 4 5P D  0 4 - 4 5N ON O

P D  0 3 - 3 9P D  0 3 - 3 9

P D  0 0 - 3 9P D  0 0 - 3 9

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P DP D
7 3 - 5 77 3 - 5 7 P DP D

7 2 - 27 2 - 2

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1P D  0 7 - 6 9P D  0 7 - 6 9

P D  9 5 - 2P D  9 5 - 2

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

P D  1 5 - 0 9P D  1 5 - 0 9

4625
4645

4653

4413

4843

4695

603
607

611
615

619
623

604

624

608
612

616
620

603

623

607
611

615
619

604
608

612616
620

624

45034599

4504

4525

375

4525

4885

4412

4695

4433

ZONING MAP Z 23-17
¯

0 210 420 Feet 1 inch = 316 feet

4625, 4645, 4653, & 4695 North President George Bush Highway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



’ ”

’ ” 

C
:\
jd
jr
p
ro
j\
2
0
2
3
\
18
8
-
7
0
-
2
3
 
G
O
A
 
G
a
rl
a
n
d
\
18
8
-
7
0
-
2
3
 
p
la
n
 
4
.d
w
g
, 
7
/
3
1/

2
0
2
3
 
2
:5
4
:4
7
 
P
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS OF DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 9.7196 ACRES THREE MUSKETEERS INVESTMENTS, LLC. DOC. NO. 201000184025 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 2 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND I.S.D. VOL. 85003, PG. 4526 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°44'51"E  598.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAAMAN FOREST BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22, BLOCK 2 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45, BLOCK 1 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°00'24"W 129.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N46°19'23"W 373.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S44°46'02"E  281.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°06'52"W  540.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°36'58"E 19.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.86' N33°54'57"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N46°19'23"W  100.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.55' N00°18'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR COVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDARVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT VOL. 87120, PG. 2580 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT VOL. 87120, PG. 2580 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33°51'22"E  76.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S54°28'52"E 67.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH GEORGE BUSH HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL LOCAL AND ADA SPECIFICATIONS FOR SIGNS, RAMPS & MARKINGS, (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°44'51"E  586.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
500'

AutoCAD SHX Text
78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
450.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
450.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
58.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
382'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
109'

AutoCAD SHX Text
109'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'x 10' LOADING SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7' MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5' MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS OF DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS OF DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS OF DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP - DEV2011009

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'x 8' BOX CLVT - 890100

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'x 7' BOX CLVT - 890100

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'x 7' BOX CLVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.96' N8°39'23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.94' N44°44'51"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING 38,970 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING 2 (GARAGES) 40,670 SQ. FT. 36 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING 3 (GARAGES) 36,370 SQ. FT. 36 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6' CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6' CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6' CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL PRE-CAST MASONRY FENCE ALONG NAAMAN FOREST BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE ON TOP OF RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE ON PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL GATE W/KNOX LOCK KEY SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT 6' CONCRETE WALK ALONG PGBT WITH BARRIER FREE RAMPS AT ALL DRIVE AND STREET APPROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
D=07°58’31” 31” R=892.94' L= 124.29' C=124.29' CB=S59°36’54” E54” EE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.82' N45°45'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ELECTRIC EASEMENT VOL. 87007, PG. 1140 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ELECTRIC EASEMENT VOL. 87007, PG. 1140 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT (SOUTHEAST BOUND SERVICE ROAD) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAVEMENT (SOUTHEAST BOUND SERVICE ROAD) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE ON TOP OF RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE WITH BFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE WITH BFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE W/30' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE W/30' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' FIRE LANE W/20' INSIDE RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASSCRETE EMERGENCY ACCESS DRIVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22' TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
22' TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
118'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.5'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT 6' CONCRETE WALK ALONG RANGER DRIVE WITH BARRIER FREE RAMPS AT ALL DRIVE AND STREET APPROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
119.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' R.O.W DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL GATE W/KNOX LOCK KEY SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
130'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTABLE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'R

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT 6' CONCRETE WALK ALONG PGBT WITH BARRIER FREE RAMPS AT ALL DRIVE AND STREET APPROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' L.S. BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT PEDESTRIAN HANDRAIL ON EX. HEADWALL PER CITY/TXDOT STANDARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV DUMP STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 42.5' APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRY KEYPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL PRE-CAST MASONRY FENCE ALONG NAAMAN FOREST BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL PRE-CAST MASONRY FENCE ALONG NAAMAN FOREST BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL GATE W/KNOX LOCK KEY SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL GATE W/KNOX LOCK KEY SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERS & CONSULTANTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tel  972-252-5357    Fax  972-252-8958

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500 Texas Drive Suite 100   Irving, Texas  75062

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERS        SURVEYORS        LAND PLANNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TSBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-8527

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDJR FILE NO. 1315-1-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGES OF AMERICA  N. GEORGE BUSH HWY. AT RANGER DR. AT NAAMAN FOREST BLVD. CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
  APRIL 24, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDJR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/24/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/15/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/26/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER TxDOT REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/03/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER HOA REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE NUMBER 230321-1 EXISTING ZONING PD 87-1 FOR CO USES PROPOSED ZONING PD AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
135,113 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
38,970 SF (28.8%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.288

AutoCAD SHX Text
28 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
110,353 SF (81.7%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24,760 SF (18.3%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
153 SPACES (INCL. 6 H.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAIL (12,000 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE (8,000 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTO REPAIR -MINOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE/WAREHOUSE (6,970 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/333 = 35 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/300 = 27 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/400 + 2/BAY = 30 + 44 = 74 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/1000 = 7 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL REQ'D. = 143 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA - LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
219,791 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
77,040 SF (34.6%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.346

AutoCAD SHX Text
28 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
173,159 SF (78.8%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
46,632 SF (21.2%%% OF SITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
42 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2000 = 39 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA - LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1    1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE ACCESS NOTES: 1. AUTOMATIC GATES WILL BE EQUIPED WITH KNOX KEY SWITCH. 2. AUTOMATIC GATES WILL ALSO HAVE MANUAL OVERRIDE PROTECTED BY KNOX PADLOCK. 3. MANUAL GATES WILL HAVE KNOX PADLOCK INTERLOCKED WITH OWNERS LOCK. 4.ALL GATES WILL HAVE A MEANS OF ENTRY BY FIRE. 5. KNOX BOX WILL ONLY BE USED ON BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(12,000 SF 22 BAYS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. OF UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
72 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SLIDE GATE - WIDTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' MAXIMUM SPACING TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'x 4' BOTTOM RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PICKETS AT 4" SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PICKETS AT 4" SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'x 2' POSTS SET IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x 4' POSTS AT SLIDE GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'x 2' TOP AND SIDE RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"x 1 1/2" BOTTOM RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"x 1 1/2" TOP RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.  FENCE PANELS TO BE WELDED CONSTRUCTION AND FINAL WIDTH TO BE FIELD ADJUSTED TO FIT BETWEEN COLUMNS. 2.  ALL METAL POSTS, RAILS AND PICKETS TO BE PRIMED AND PAINTED WITH EXTERIOR ENAMEL PAINT (COLOR TO BE SELECTED BY OWNER). 3. ALL GATES TO HAVE KNOX LOCKS PER CITY FIRE CODE.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL BUILDING SIGNAGE WILL ADHERE TO GDC STANDARDS.

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



’ ”

’ ” 

150 DWARF YAUPON HOLLY SHRUBS
(FOUNDATION PLANTING)

57 ELAEANGNUS
SCREENING SHRUBS

48 ELAEANGNUS
SCREENING SHRUBS

33 EALENGNUS
SCREENING SHRUBS

CE

LO

RO

RO

RO
RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RORO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

CE

CECECECECECECE

CE

CE

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO
LO LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LOLO

LO

LO

LO

LO

LOLO

LO

LOLO

RO

RO

RO

CE

RO

AREA WITHIN FLOOD PLAIN TO BE LEFT IN
NATURAL STATE (61 OAK TREES & 19
OTHER VARIETIES AND UNDERSTORY
GROWTH) REFER TO SHEET L2 FOR TREE
SURVEY OF THIS AREA.

675 SF AJ

300 SF AJ

83 SF AJ

225 SF AJ 360 SF AJ225 SF AJ360 SF AJ225 SF AJ

320 SF AJ

400 SF AJ

670 SF AJ

90 SF AJ

500 SF AJ

LO

MASONARY TRASH ENCLOSURE
TO MATCH BUILDING

MASONARY TRASH ENCLOSURE
TO MATCH BUILDING

MASONARY TRASH ENCLOSURE
TO MATCH BUILDING

CE

5
' P

.U
.E

.
5
' P

.U
.E

.

35' U.E.

RO

CE

RO

CE

CE

40 CARISSA
HOLLY

6 CARISSA
HOLLY

RO

10 CARISSA
HOLLY

19 CARISSA
HOLLY

22 CEDAR ELM TREES (3" MIN,. CAL.)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

25 SHUMARD RED OAK TREES (3" MIN,. CAL.)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

ASIAN JASMINE
(1 GAL AT 18" C-C)

CARISSA HOLLY (MIN 2' HGT, 3' C-C)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

LANDSCAPED AREAS - BERMUDA
TURF - (SOLID SOD) WHERE NO
SHRUBS OR GROUNDCOVER

ELAEAGNUS (MIN 2' HGT, 3' C-C)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

31 LIVE OAK TREES (3" MIN,. CAL.)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

LEGEND

DWARF YAUPON HOLLY (MIN 1' HGT, 3' C-C)
(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

EXISTING TREES &
UNDERGROWTH TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE TO BE PRESERVED

C
:\
jd
jr
p
ro
j\
2
0
2
3
\
18
8
-
7
0
-
2
3
 
G
O
A
 
G
a
rl
a
n
d
\
18
8
-
7
0
-
2
3
 
p
la
n
 
4
.d
w
g
, 
7
/
3
1/

2
0
2
3
 
3
:1
6
:5
7
 
P
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 9.7196 ACRES THREE MUSKETEERS INVESTMENTS, LLC. DOC. NO. 201000184025 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 2 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND I.S.D. VOL. 85003, PG. 4526 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°44'51"E  598.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAAMAN FOREST BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22, BLOCK 2 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45, BLOCK 1 RESERVE AT FIREWHEEL DOC. NO. 201100003070 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°00'24"W 129.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N46°19'23"W 373.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S44°46'02"E  281.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°06'52"W  540.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°36'58"E 19.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.86' N33°54'57"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N46°19'23"W  100.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.55' N00°18'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR COVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDARVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT VOL. 87120, PG. 2580 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT VOL. 87120, PG. 2580 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33°51'22"E  76.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S54°28'52"E 67.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH GEORGE BUSH HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°44'51"E  586.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP - DEV2011009

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'x 8' BOX CLVT - 890100

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'x 7' BOX CLVT - 890100

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'x 7' BOX CLVT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 15'x 40' C.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D=07°58’31” 31” R=892.94' L= 124.29' C=124.29' CB=S59°36’54” E54” EE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.82' N45°45'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ELECTRIC EASEMENT VOL. 87007, PG. 1140 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ELECTRIC EASEMENT VOL. 87007, PG. 1140 R.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE WITH BFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE WITH BFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING 38,970 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING (GARAGES) 40,670 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ONE STORY BUILDING (GARAGES) 36,370 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
119.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 15'x 15' C.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT BY PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' TALL TUBULAR STEEL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 15' C.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERS & CONSULTANTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tel  972-252-5357    Fax  972-252-8958

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500 Texas Drive Suite 100   Irving, Texas  75062

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERS        SURVEYORS        LAND PLANNERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TSBPE REGISTRATION NUMBER F-8527

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDJR FILE NO. 1315-1-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGES OF AMERICA  N. GEORGE BUSH HWY. AT RANGER DR. AT NAAMAN FOREST BLVD. CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
  APRIL 24, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JDJR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/24/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/15/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/26/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER TxDOT REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/03/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER HOA REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE NUMBER 230321-1 EXISTING ZONING PD 87-1 FOR CO USES PROPOSED ZONING PD AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1    2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAKING HIMSELF FAMILIAR IN ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, PIPES, STRUCTURES AND LINE RUNS.  2.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION OF ALL QUANTITIES PER DRAWING AND SPECIFICATIONS BY LANDSCAPE DESIGNER.  PLANT QUANTITIES HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AS A CONVENIENCE ONLY TO THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED ABSOLUTE. 3.  ALL BED AREAS SHALL BE ROTOTILLED TO A DEPTH OF 6" ADDING PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE DURING PROCESS.  THE LEVEL OF THE BED AREAS SHOULD BE LEFT 3" ABOVE THE PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE TO ALLOW FOR COMPACTION AND SETTLEMENT.  4.  AFTER SETTLEMENT AND COMPACTION ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL RECEIVE A 2" (MIN) LAYER OF SHREDED CYPRESS MULCH.  5.  PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE FOR BED AREAS SHALL BE 50% EXISTING SOIL, 10% SHARP SAND 40% SOIL CONDITIONER (BACK TO EARTH OR EQUAL).  6.  ALL TREES ARE TO BE STAKED AND GUYED THROUGH THE ONE YEAR WARRANTY AT WHICH  TIME THE OWNER SHALL DETERMINE IF REMOVAL IS NECESSARY.  7.   ALL BED AREAS SHALL BE SEPERATED FROM TURF AREAS USING RYERSON STEEL EDGING. 8.  A TREE SURVEY WILL BE DONE AT THE TIME OF PERMITTING.  ALL TREES (8" AND LARGER) WITHIN THE OPEN SPACE AREA SHALL REMAIN.  ALL TREES WITHIN THE PROPOSED AREA OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REMOVED. 9.  ALL SHRUBS WITHIN THE LANDSCAPE BUFFER ALONG THE STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY MUST BE 24 INCHES IN HEIGHT AT THE TIME OF PLANTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS (EXCEPT FLOODPLAIN AREA) SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH AN ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS (EXCEPT FLOODPLAIN AREA) SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH AN FULLY AUTOMATIC ELECTRONIC LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SYSTEM MEETING THE CURRENT CITY OF GARLAND LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION REGULATIONS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS BUFFERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAAMAN FOREST (TYPE D1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
135,113 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10%%% (13,511 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24,760 SF (18.3%%%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FT (219 LF - EXCLUDING DRIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 7 TREES (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/30 = 51 SHRUBS (57 PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,285 SF BUFFER X 25%%% = 821 SF (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGER DRIVE (TYPE G)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 FT (555 LF - EXCLUDING DRIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 19 TREES (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5,550 SF BUFFER X 25%%% = 1,388 SF (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PGBT HIGHWAY (TYPE A-A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FT (195 LF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 7 TREES (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/30 = 46 SHRUBS (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,900 SF BUFFER X 25%%% = 975 SF (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
153 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
75,779 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5%%% (3,789 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5,395 SF (7.1%%%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS BUFFERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAAMAN FOREST (TYPE D1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
219,791 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10%%% (21,979 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
46,632 SF (21.2%%%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 FT (299 LF - EXCLUDING DRIVE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 11 TREES (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/30 = 77 SHRUBS (81 PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,485 SF BUFFER X 25%%% = 1,121 SF (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PGBT HIGHWAY (TYPE A-A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER REQUIRED (67.83')

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES REQUIRED (67.83')

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS PROVIDED (67.83')

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER REQUIRED (67.83')

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FT (67.83' NOT ADJACENT TO FLOOD PLAIN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 3 TREES (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/30 = 16 SHRUBS (29 PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,357 SF BUFFER X 25%%% = 339 SF (AS PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
42 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
41,282 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5%%% (2,0647 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,319 SF (8.0%%%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: 281.23 LF ADJACENT TO FLOOD PLAIN LEFT IN NATURAL STATE (80 TREES & UNDERSTORY GROWTH) EXCEEDS 1/30 TREE REQUIREMENT, SHRUB REQUIREMENT NOT PROVIDED. REMAINDER 67.83 LF OF FRONTAGE TO MEET LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL PARKING SPACES WITHIN 65 FT OF LARGE TREE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL PARKING SPACES WITHIN 65 FT OF LARGE TREE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLICANT: CDC EQUITIES, LLC 2323 TARPLEY ROAD, SUITE 100 CARROLLTON, TEXAS 75006 CONTACT: FRED GANS EMAIL: fgans@cornerstonedev.com TEL: 214-341-9620

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNERS: ROBERT & MARY KELSOE  5323 SPRING VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 350 DALLAS, TX 75254 GARLAND LTD PS 33780 HEARTLAND COURT UNION CITY, CA 94587 DFW OIL INC. 111 BELT LINE ROAD, SUITE 100 GARLAND, TX 75040

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES ADJACENT TO FLOOD PLAIN (281.23')

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/30 = 9 TREES REQUIRED (80 EXISTING PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS ADJACENT TO FLOOD PLAIN (281.23')

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/30 = 66 SHRUBS REQUIRED (DEVIATION REQUESTED)

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

1N1M1L1K1H1G1F1E1D1B1A

MEZZANINE

111' - 6"

T.O. EAVE

123' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

128' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

130' - 0"

CL-2 CL-3 CL-2 CL-2

CL-1 CL-1

MT-1 MT-2

CL-1 MT-1

MT-2

CL-1

MT-1 MT-2 CL-2 MT-2

CL-1

MT-1 CL-2

CL-1

MT-1

CL-1

CL-2 MT-2

CL-1

MT-1

MR-1MR-1 MR-1MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1 MR-1

REVEALS 8" O.C.MT-1

MT-1 MT-1

CL-3CL-2 REVEALS 8" O.C. FUTURE TENANT 
SIGNS TBH,TYP

1

22
2

2 2 344 6

55 5 5

3

DEPTH ARTICULATION OF AT LEAST 4'-0" (30% MIN.): TOTAL: 39.4% 
HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION : TOTAL 58.6 %
BUILDING STREET FACING LENGHT : TOTAL 500' - 2"

4
4

4 4

50'-0 3/4" 2'-2" 46'-3 5/8" 2'-2" 98'-9 5/8" 101'-2" 98'-9 5/8" 2'-2" 46'-4 3/4" 2'-2" 49'-11 5/8"

4'-
0"

4'-
0"

500'-2"  BUILDING TOTAL LENGHT

OF MIN. 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 19.7 %

OF MIN. 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 19.7%HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION 20% 9.3% HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION10% HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION 9.3 % HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION 10% HORIZONTAL ARTICULATION

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

18'-10" 23'-6" 25'-8"

30'-0" OF FACADE, TYP)

23'-0" (2'-0" MIN. DEPTH EVERY 27'-0" 23'-1 3/8" 26'-10 3/4"

30'-0" OF FACADE, TYP)

23'-0" (2'-0" MIN. DEPTH EVERY 27'-0" 23'-0" 27'-0" 23'-0"

30'-0" OF FACADE, TYP)

26'-9" (2'-0" MIN. DEPTH EVERY 23'-3" 26'-11 1/2"

30'-0 OF FACADE, TYP)

23'-0 1/2" (2'-0" MIN. DEPTH EVERY 27'-0" 23'-0" 27'-2"

30'-0" OF FACADE, TYP)

23'-0 1/2"  (2'-0" MIN. DEPTH EVERY

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0" 3'-

0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

3'-
0"

298'-9 1/4"

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
111 1

1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1

6 6 6 6
6 6

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 3 633333333
3333

3333

5
5 5

3

55511 1

FUTURE TENANT 
SIGNS TBH,TYP

FUTURE TENANT 
SIGNS TBH,TYP

6

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2

T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

11 12 12.8 12.9

MEZZANINE

111' - 6"

T.O. EAVE

123' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

128' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

130' - 0"

MT-1

CL-1 MR-1

CL-2

MT-1

MT-2

CL-2

MT-2

MT-1

MT-2

5 1

6
632 2

1

4

T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

1N 1M 1L 1K 1H 1G 1F 1E 1D 1B 1A

MEZZANINE

111' - 6"

T.O. EAVE

123' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

128' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

130' - 0"

CL-2

M-1 M-1

MT-2 CL-2

DS-4DS-4 M-1 DS-4

MT-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1

MT-2

DS-4 M-1 DS-4

MT-1 CL-2

M-1 DS-4 M-1 DS-4

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4

MT-1MT-2 CL-2MT-1

MT-1

4

2

26 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6444

DS-4CL-1

CL-2

MT-2

MT-1

MT-1

MT-1

CL-2

CL-1

MT-2

T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

111212.812.9

T.O. WALL 28

128' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

130' - 0"

CL-1 MR-1

CL-2

CL-2

CL-2MT-1 MT-1 MT-2

MT-2

33'-0" 10'-3" 35'-0"

8'-
6"

1 23

4

5

6

OF MIN 4'-0: DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 42%

78'-3"

OF MIN 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 45%

1

6

T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

G011

2

BLACK, DECORATIVE OPAQUE 
METAL GATE

8'-
0"

PAINTED CMU

PAINTED METAL CAP

T.O. SLAB

100' - 0"

PAINTED CMU

PAINTED METAL CAP

8'-
0"

7'x3' HM DOOR IN HM FRAME, 
PAINT TO MATCH CMU

1.  AWNINGS AND CANOPIES
2.  VARIED ROOF HEIGHTS
3.  DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS
4.  ORNAMENTAL FACADE TRIMS
5.  DISPLAY WINDOWS
6.  DISTINCTIVE LIGHTING FEATURES

ISSUE LOG

PROJECT NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHORS:

ISSUE DATE:

KEY PLAN

A: 14951 N DALLAS PARKWAY, SUITE 850, ADDISON, TX 75254
E: CONTACT@BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN
T: 469 - 857 - 8151
W: WWW.BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN

PLAN

NORTH

TRUE

NORTH

07/03/23

A211

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -

BUILDING 1

23-013

BA

01-13-23

OTP

G
A

R
A

G
E

S
 O

F
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 A

T
 G

A
R

L
A

N
D

N
 G

E
O

R
G

E
 B

U
S

H
 H

W
Y

 @
 R

A
N

G
E

R
 D

R
 @

 N
A

A
M

A
N

 F
O

R
E

S
T

 B
LV

D
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 G
A

R
LA

N
D

, D
A

LL
A

S
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, T

E
X

A
S

Z
O

N
IN

G
 C

A
S

E
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 2

30
32

1-
1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A1111 NORTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A1113 EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING 1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A1112 SOUTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A1114 WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING 1

BLDG 1 MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 1

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG A ELEVATION 1

CARVED LIMESTONE 4954.13 43.96%

METAL PANEL 1058.50 9.39%

STONECOAT 5257.64 46.65%

TOTALS: 11270.27 100.00%

BLDG 1 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 2

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG A ELEVATION 2

CARVED LIMESTONE 192.22 1.76%

STONECOAT 10708.47 98.24%

TOTALS: 10900.69 100.00%

BLDG 1 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 3

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG A ELEVATION 3

CARVED LIMESTONE 517.08 24.76%

STONECOAT 1571.25 75.24%

TOTALS: 2088.33 100.00%

BLDG 1 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 4

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG A ELEVATION 4

CARVED LIMESTONE 517.08 24.77%

STONECOAT 1570.13 75.23%

TOTALS: 2087.21 100.00%

EXTERIOR MATERIAL KEY
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION

CL-1 CARVED LIMESTONE (STONE FINISH)

CL-2 CARVED LIMESTONE (SMOOTH WHITE)

CL-3 CARVED LIMESTONE (LIGHT GRAY)

DS-4 DOWNSPOUT, PREFINISHED METAL (BLACK)

GR-4 GAURDRAIL, PRE-FINISH METAL (BLACK)

M-1 METAL GARAGE DOOR (GRAY)

MR-1 METAL ROOFING (DARK GRAY)

MT-1 METAL TRIM (DARK GRAY)

MT-2 METAL TRIM (RED)

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0" REF: 4 / G0115 TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

A SITE PLAN REVIEW 05/30/23

C DUMPSTER ENSURE UPDATE 07/03/23

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0" REF: 4 / G0116 TRASH ENCLOSURE SIDE ELEVATION

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN ELEMENTS

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



LVL 01

0' - 0"

21 2322.421.6

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-1

CL-3

CL-1CL-2GR-4 GR-4

CL-3

CL-2 CL-2

MT-1MT-1 MT-1

SIGNAGE BY OWNER

22

LVL 01

0' - 0"

2W 2T 2S 2R 2Q 2P 2N 2M 2L 2K 2H 2F2G 2D2E 2A2B

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1

MT-2

M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1 M-1 DS-4 M-1

CL-2 MT-2

M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-1 CL-2

M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1 M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1

2V

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

LVL 01

0' - 0"

2W2T2S2R2Q2P2N2M2L2K2H2F 2G2D 2E2A 2B

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-2

M-1 M-1

MT-1 MT-2

DS-4 DS-4M-1 M-1

MT-1 CL-2

M-1 DS-4 M-1

MT-1

M-1

MT-2

M-1DS-4 M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2 MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-1 MT-2

M-1 M-1 M-1 DS-4 M-1

CL-2MT-1 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1

MT-2

2V

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

LVL 01

0' - 0"

2123 22.4 21.6

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-2 CL-3

CL-1 CL-1CL-2GR-4 GR-4

CL-3

CL-2

CL-2 REVEALS 8" O.C.

MT-1

SIGNAGE BY OWNER

22

OF MIN 4'-0: DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 44.4%

OF MIN 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 44.4%

90'-0"

13'-6" 2'-2" 24'-1" 10'-3" 24'-4" 2'-2" 13'-6"

39'-9" 40'-0"

8'-
6"

2 22 6

4

1.  AWNINGS AND CANOPIES
2.  VARIED ROOF HEIGHTS
3.  DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS
4.  ORNAMENTAL FACADE TRIMS
5.  DISPLAY WINDOWS
6.  DISTINCTIVE LIGHTING FEATURES

ISSUE LOG

PROJECT NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHORS:

ISSUE DATE:

KEY PLAN

A: 14951 N DALLAS PARKWAY, SUITE 850, ADDISON, TX 75254
E: CONTACT@BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN
T: 469 - 857 - 8151
W: WWW.BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN

PLAN
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

05/30/23

A221

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -

BUILDING 2

23-013

BA

01-13-23

OTP

G
A

R
A

G
E

S
 O

F
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 A

T
 G

A
R

L
A

N
D

N
 G

E
O

R
G

E
 B

U
S

H
 H

W
Y

 @
 R

A
N

G
E

R
 D

R
 @

 N
A

A
M

A
N

 F
O

R
E

S
T

 B
LV

D
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 G
A

R
LA

N
D

, D
A

LL
A

S
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, T

E
X

A
S

Z
O

N
IN

G
 C

A
S

E
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 2

30
32

1-
1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A113B1 NORTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 2

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1 / A113B4 WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING 2

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"2 SOUTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 2

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 2 / A113B3 EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING 2

BLDG 2 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 1

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG B ELEVATION 1

CARVED LIMESTONE 240.00 3.09%

STONECOAT 7523.33 96.91%

TOTALS: 7763.33 100.00%

BLDG 2 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 2

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG B ELEVATION 2

CARVED LIMESTONE 240.00 3.09%

STONECOAT 7523.33 96.91%

TOTALS: 7763.33 100.00%

BLDG 2 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 3

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG B ELEVATION 3

CARVED LIMESTONE 888.89 34.79%

METAL PANEL 696.72 27.27%

STONECOAT 969.33 37.94%

TOTALS: 2554.94 100.00%

BLDG 2 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 4

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG B ELEVATION 4

CARVED LIMESTONE 888.89 34.84%

METAL PANEL 693.06 27.17%

STONECOAT 969.33 37.99%

TOTALS: 2551.28 100.00%

EXTERIOR MATERIAL KEY
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION

CL-1 CARVED LIMESTONE (STONE FINISH)

CL-2 CARVED LIMESTONE (SMOOTH WHITE)

CL-3 CARVED LIMESTONE (LIGHT GRAY)

DS-4 DOWNSPOUT, PREFINISHED METAL (BLACK)

GR-4 GAURDRAIL, PRE-FINISH METAL (BLACK)

M-1 METAL GARAGE DOOR (GRAY)

MR-1 METAL ROOFING (DARK GRAY)

MT-1 METAL TRIM (DARK GRAY)

MT-2 METAL TRIM (RED)

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

A SITE PLAN REVIEW 05/30/23

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN ELEMENTS

06/20/23

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



LVL 01

0' - 0"

3U3T3S3R3Q3P3N3M3L3K3J3H3G3F3E3D3B

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

3V3A

CL-2

M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-2 MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4 M-1

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1

M-1DS-4 M-1 M-1DS-4

MT-2 CL-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1 M-1 DS-4 M-1

CL-2 MT-2 MT-1

M-1 DS-4 M-1 M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2

M-1 DS-4 M-1

MT-1 MT-2

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

LVL 01

0' - 0"

33 3131.6

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-2 CL-3

CL-1 CL-1CL-2

MT-2 MT-1CL-3

GR-4 GR-4

CL-2CL-2

REVEALS 8" O.C.32.4

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

80'-0"

OF MIN 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 44% 10'-3"

OF MIN 4'-0" DEPTH

DEPTH ARTICULATION 44%

34'-11"

8'-
6"

22 2

4

6

LVL 01

0' - 0"

3331 31.6

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

CL-2 CL-1 CL-1

CL-3

CL-2

CL-3

CL-2

MT-1CL-2CL-2

GR-4GR-4

32.4

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

LVL 01

0' - 0"

3U 3T 3S 3R 3Q 3P 3N 3M 3L 3K 3J 3H 3G 3F 3E 3D 3B

MEZZANINE

11' - 6"

ROOF

23' - 6"

T.O. WALL 28

28' - 0"

T.O. WALL 30

30' - 0"

3V 3A

CL-2

M-1 M-1 M-1 M-1DS-4DS-4

MT-1

M-1 M-1

CL-2 MT-1

DS-4M-1 M-1

MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4 M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2 CL-2 MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4 M-1 M-1DS-4

CL-2 MT-1

M-1 M-1DS-4

PH 2 ROOF

20' - 0"

1.  AWNINGS AND CANOPIES
2.  VARIED ROOF HEIGHTS
3.  DIVIDED LIGHT WINDOWS
4.  ORNAMENTAL FACADE TRIMS
5.  DISPLAY WINDOWS
6.  DISTINCTIVE LIGHTING FEATURES

ISSUE LOG

PROJECT NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

AUTHORS:

ISSUE DATE:

KEY PLAN

A: 14951 N DALLAS PARKWAY, SUITE 850, ADDISON, TX 75254
E: CONTACT@BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN
T: 469 - 857 - 8151
W: WWW.BUSHARCHITECTS.DESIGN

PLAN
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

06/19/23

A231

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -

BUILDING 3

23-013

BA

01-13-23

OTP

G
A

R
A

G
E

S
 O

F
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 A

T
 G

A
R

L
A

N
D

N
 G

E
O

R
G

E
 B

U
S

H
 H

W
Y

 @
 R

A
N

G
E

R
 D

R
 @

 N
A

A
M

A
N

 F
O

R
E

S
T

 B
LV

D
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 G
A

R
LA

N
D

, D
A

LL
A

S
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, T

E
X

A
S

Z
O

N
IN

G
 C

A
S

E
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 2

30
32

1-
1

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 3

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1
/

A115C
4 WEST ELEVATION - BUILDING 3

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 2
/

A115C
3 EAST ELEVATION - BUILDING 3

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0" REF: 1
/

A115C
2 SOUTH ELEVATION - BUILDING 3

BLDG 3 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 1

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG C ELEVATION 1

CARVED LIMESTONE 239.69 4.15%

STONE COAT 5535.83 95.85%

TOTALS: 5775.52 100.00%

BLDG 3 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 2

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG C ELEVATION 2

CARVED LIMESTONE 191.91 3.35%

STONECOAT 5535.83 96.65%

TOTALS: 5727.74 100.00%

BLDG 3 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 3

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG C ELEVATION 3

CARVED LIMESTONE 788.89 34.82%

METAL PANEL 596.77 26.34%

STONECOAT 880.00 38.84%

TOTALS: 2265.66 100.00%

BLDG 3 - MATERIAL CALCULATIONS ELEV. 4

MATERIAL TYPE AREA (SF) % RATIO

BLDG C ELEVATION 4

CARVED LIMESTONE 788.89 34.89%

METAL PANEL 592.10 26.19%

STONECOAT 880.00 38.92%

TOTALS: 2260.99 100.00%

EXTERIOR MATERIAL KEY
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION

CL-1 CARVED LIMESTONE (STONE FINISH)

CL-2 CARVED LIMESTONE (SMOOTH WHITE)

CL-3 CARVED LIMESTONE (LIGHT GRAY)

DS-4 DOWNSPOUT, PREFINISHED METAL (BLACK)

GR-4 GAURDRAIL, PRE-FINISH METAL (BLACK)

M-1 METAL GARAGE DOOR (GRAY)

MR-1 METAL ROOFING (DARK GRAY)

MT-1 METAL TRIM (DARK GRAY)

MT-2 METAL TRIM (RED)

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

A SITE PLAN REVIEW 05/30/23

B CITY REVIEW RESPONSE 06/19/23

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN ELEMENTS

06/20/23

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



REPORT & MINUTES 
 
 
 
P.C. Meeting, July 24, 2023  

 
3b. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Fred A. Gans, requesting 
approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor), 
General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use. 
This property is located at 4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George 
Bush Turnpike. (District 1) (Z 23-17 – Detail Plan) 

 
Motion was made by Commissioner Aubin to approve the application with 
the additional restrictions to ensure that on the condominium use that it be 
maintained primarily for storage of vehicles, that revisions to the PD as 
needed be included and that the concerns of the nearby residents be 
addressed. Seconded by Commissioner Rose. Motion carried: 5 Ayes, 2 
Nays with Commissioner Jenkins and Commissioner Dalton voting in 
opposition. 









We believe this type of business may decrease our property values in the area because it would 
attract different movements from people and currently it is very peaceful and family oriented 
(including the school).  



























City Council Meeting
August 15, 2023

The applicant proposes to construct a garage condominium 
(Garages of America), automobile repair use, contractor’s 
office/warehouse (indoors only) and retail use. 

Z 23-17



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            4653, 4645, 4625 and 4695 North President George Bush   
        Turnpike.

Applicant:           Fred A. Gans

Owner:                Robert and Mary Kelsoe, Garland LTD PS, DFW OIL, INC.

Acreage:             8.15 acres

Zoning:               Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office 
       (CO) Uses Z 23-17



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 23-17



CITYWIDE LOCATION 
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 23-17



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Z 23-17



The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends 
Community Centers for the subject site. Community centers are areas 
with compact development, primarily non-residential, serving a 
collection of neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a mix 
of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family residential, 
and entertainment.

The garage condominium concept is a new and innovative use, one 
that has been introduced in several other cities in the region.  The use 
includes retail, office and services as contemplated in the Community 
Centers designation, though it centers around an automotive 
component as well. The site has been designed so that the automotive 
service bay doors will not face any street.

Z 23-17



PHOTOS

Z 23-17



PHOTOS

Z 23-17



SITE PLAN

Z 23-17



LANDSCAPE PLAN

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-01



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-17



DEVIATIONS

Z 23-17

GDC standard Required Proposed Applicant’s Justification

Land Use Lot 2-The closest land use 
in the GDC for the 
proposed use is 
Warehouse, 
Office/Showroom (indoor 
only)

The applicant proposes  a 
garage condo in Lot 2. 
Each unit will be owned 
and can be used to store 
luxury vehicles or personal 
belongings. 

The proposed land use is 
not contemplated in the 
GDC. Therefore, the 
applicant requests to add 
the “Garage 
Condominium” use.

Parking The Warehouse, 
Office/Showroom (indoor 
only) use requires a 
parking ratio of 1/300 
gross floor area for the 
office + 1/1000 remainder, 
which would calculate to 
around seventy-seven (77) 
parking spaces.

The applicant proposes a 
parking ratio of 1 parking 
space per every 2,000 
square feet of gross floor 
area, which calculates to a 
total of thirty-nine (39) 
parking spaces.

The applicant has provided 
information from other 
municipalities with the 
similar use and proposed 
thirty-nine (39) parking 
spaces in Lot 2 appears to 
be adequate.

Landscaping The landscape buffer for 
Lot 2 along North 
President George Bush 
Turnpike requires nine (9) 
large canopy trees and 
sixty-three (shrubs).

New landscape buffer 
planting not provided. The 
applicant proposes 
preserving existing trees.

The frontage along Lot 2 is 
mainly floodplain and 
easements; therefore, the 
applicant will preserve 
seventy-nine (79) trees.



SAMPLE PICTURE

Z 23-17



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) 
District 87-1 for Community Office (CO) Uses

Approval of a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, 
Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, Contractor’s 
Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use

Z 23-17



PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION

On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of five (5) to two (2), recommended approval 
of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 87-1 for Community Office (CO) 
Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for a Garage Condominium, Automobile Repair (Minor) Use, 
General Office, Contractor’s Office/Warehouse (indoors only) and Retail Use with the following conditions:  

▪ Incorporate additional restrictions to ensure the condominium use should be primarily for storage of vehicles.  

▪ Restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor Use for Building 1 by square footage.  

Additionally, the Plan Commission recommended that the applicant should reach out to the 
neighbors. The applicant held a neighborhood meeting after the Plan Commission meeting. 

The applicant reviewed the additional recommendations per Plan Commission and made 
several changes (including adding a masonry screening wall along Naaman Forest Blvd); 
however, the applicant has clarified that some of the proposed automobile repair work 
includes automobile customization, automotive refurbishment, automotive glass and 
upholstery which are classified as "major" automobile repair use per the GDC. Therefore, the 
applicant requesting the City Council to consider the major automobile use in Lot 1 by SUP only.

It should be noted the applicant did not make the change to restrict the Automobile Repair, Minor use for Building 1. 

In addition, the applicant clarified that garages owners may use the garage condominium as 
an office space in Lot 2. The applicant is requesting the City Council to consider the General Office use within Lot 2. 

Z 23-17



CHANGES SINCE  PLAN COMMISSION

▪ A six (6)-foot masonry wall along Naaman Forest Boulevard is 
proposed for Lot 1 and Lot 2.

▪ The applicant is proposing to add the major automobile use in Lot 1 
by SUP request only.  Any major automobile repair request will be 
required to go through the public hearing process in the future.

▪ A general office use is allowed to operate within the garage 
condominium (Lot 2), apart from the storage use. All other 
businesses and activities are prohibited.

▪ The access point from Naaman Forest Boulevard along Lot 1 has 
been removed.

Z 23-17



Z 23-17



GARLAND
PLANNING REPORT

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 10. c.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Z 23-22 Jake Finch, Cascade Companies (District 4)
Submitted By: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

REQUEST
Approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family Attached
(SFA) District.

LOCATION
613 and 615 Rowlett Road

OWNER
Travis Langley

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of seven (7) to zero (0), recommended
approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family Attached (SFA)
District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family Attached
(SFA) District.

BACKGROUND
A portion of the subject property is developed with a single-family house and it is currently
occupied, but it will be demolished. The remaining portion of the property is undeveloped.

The applicant intends to rezone the property to construct townhomes.

SITE DATA
The site is approximately 22.3 acres and is accessed from Rowlett Road. 



USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The subject property is zoned Agricultural (AG) District. The Agricultural (AG) District is
intended for vacant land which is not yet ready for development, land which is used for
agricultural or open space purposes, land which due to its topography or location within a
floodplain or other undevelopable area is not anticipated to be developed for more intense
use, and land which has been newly annexed into the City of Garland. Land that has been
newly annexed into the City is initially zoned Agricultural until it is zoned another more
permanent zoning classification in the future. Single-family uses on large lots are appropriate
in this district.

CONSIDERATIONS
The request is a traditional rezoning without the formation of a Planned Development
(PD) District. These requests do not require Detail Plan approval to commence or direct
development. Development is dependent on the standards set forth by the Garland
Development Code (GDC) and the goals and policies established within the Envision
Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan. This Change in Zoning is not intended to restrict
uses or secure development performances beyond what is permitted within the proposed
zoning district and the GDC. Accordingly, the GDC requires careful consideration as to
how closely the proposed district follows the policies of the Envision Garland 2030
Comprehensive Plan, and to what degree the rezoning will affect surrounding and future
development.
 

1.

The Single-Family Attached district is intended to promote stable, quality,
attached-occupancy residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and
sustainable neighborhoods. This district may be included within certain areas of
neighborhoods or, when in accordance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may
provide a transition district between lower density residential areas, multifamily or
nonresidential areas, or major thoroughfares.
 

2.

In the event the Zoning Change request is approved, the applicant will need to proceed
with the platting of the subject property and securing a site permit and a building permit
prior to commencing construction. It will be during the permitting process that staff will
review the proposed development and verify compliance with all the applicable
regulations.

3.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan designates this property as Traditional
Neighborhoods, Compact Neighborhoods and Parks and Open Space (Public and Private).

Traditional neighborhoods are currently found throughout Garland and provide areas for low to
moderate density single-family detached residential housing. Traditional neighborhoods also
accommodate convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public services.
Non-residential structures are compatible in architectural style and scale with adjacent
residential development. Non-residential uses are typically located at the intersection of local
streets or at local and secondary arterial streets. Non-residential uses are within walking
distance of the neighborhoods they serve and include minimal on-site parking.   



Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, including
single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing options through
infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns.

Public Parks and Open Space areas include the vast array of park, recreation, and open space
lands. This can range from small neighborhood playgrounds to community parks with outdoor
picnic areas, hike and bike trails, and play fields and tennis courts to community recreation
centers with swimming pools or indoor gymnasiums; as well as natural areas and floodplains.

Private Parks and Open Space areas also include a variety of parks and related amenities in
residential subdivisions as well as retail and commercial areas. Facilities and amenities range
from landscaped entryways and medians to small playgrounds; to play fields, swimming pools,
and golf courses, and other amenities including cemeteries, lakes, creeks, and other natural
areas. These private lands play an essential role by contributing to the overall community park
and open space system.

The proposed zoning is generally compatible with the Comprehensive Plan and provides an
opportunity for mid-density transitional housing for the surrounding area.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The properties to the north are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; these properties are
developed with single-family detached homes. The property to the east is zoned Agricultural
(AG) District and it is developed with a Dallas County building. The properties to the south,
across Rowlett Road, are zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Planned Development (PD)
District 06-55; these properties are developed with single-family homes and an apartment
complex. The properties to the west are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; Planned
Development (PD) District 85-43, Planned Development (PD) District 83-61 and Planned
Development (PD) District 85-43; these properties are developed with duplexes, single-family
homes and a church.

Attachments
Z 23-22 Location Map 
Z 23-22 Responses 
Z 23-22 R&M Zoning 
Z 23-22 Staff Presentation 



5201

708 712710

730

733
725

717 721

BOBTOWN RD

CAPILANO
WY

GRAYSTONE DR

BROADWAY BLVD

MEADOWSIDE CIR

MENLO
PARK DR

PALO
ALTO CT

SOUTHERN

FERN RD

ROWLETT R
D

PALO ALTO DR

CANYON DR

MEADOWSIDE CTLOVING DR

OVERBROOKCT

TREEMONT DR

ROBIN RD

BRANCH
HOLLOW DR

SA
N

BR
UNO DR

MEADOWSIDE DR

SANTA ROSA D
R

TACOMA DR

KAREN ST

ANDERSON CIR

LIT
TLE LN

MY
ER

S M
EA

DO
W 

DR

SUNDOWN
LN

LAREDO LN

MEADOWCOVE CIR

SADDLEBACK RD

MEADOWDALE CIR

SAVOY PL

P DP D
0 7 - 0 90 7 - 0 9

A GA G

S  0 2 - 0 8S  0 2 - 0 8

P D  8 4 - 6 9P D  8 4 - 6 9

S F - 7S F - 7

P DP D
8 4 - 7 28 4 - 7 2

S F - 7S F - 7
P D  0 1 - 4 6P D  0 1 - 4 6

P D  8 5 - 3 8P D  8 5 - 3 8

P D  8 9 - 3 7P D  8 9 - 3 7 P D  8 1 - 7P D  8 1 - 7

S F - 7S F - 7 C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7
S  0 5 - 6 7S  0 5 - 6 7

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  0 6 - 7 3P D  0 6 - 7 3
C RC RP D  8 0 - 4 2P D  8 0 - 4 2

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S  1 2 - 0 4S  1 2 - 0 4

C RC R

P DP D
8 4 - 7 98 4 - 7 9

P D  0 5 - 1 2P D  0 5 - 1 2

A GA G

A GA G

SS
1 7 - 1 71 7 - 1 7

P D  1 8 - 2 0P D  1 8 - 2 0

U BU B

P D  1 8 - 4 0P D  1 8 - 4 0

P DP D
2 0 - 4 12 0 - 4 1

P DP D
1 8 - 4 01 8 - 4 0

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

P D  2 2 - 6 6P D  2 2 - 6 6

512

701

5605

5246

701

542

5241

5118

5318

5414
5328

722

5213
5222

5315

730

5526

5238

615
516

5225

5126

5110

718

5202

620

522

5233

622

705

5210 538 5305

5533

5226

5501

5221

5505

714
5234

518

965

5410

5217

5509
737

5314

5102

715

726

714

564

5106

5502

706

739

517

726722

5610

546

5530

612

5514

5434

5229

55345537

5218

713

600

5319

608

706

5242
5130

5214

729

5601

554
5245

964

560530

5114

5528

506

513

5416

702 716

514

718

5237

5205

5206

5521

5122

550
614

5230

5324

5209

737

613

606

5309
5301

701

738

719

601

5408

5703
5706

5707
5811

5714 58085710

5816
5822

5815
5826

651

650

601

5332

601

ZONING MAP Z 23-22
¯

0 280 560 Feet 1 inch = 426 feet

613 & 615 Rowlett Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST





















REPORT & MINUTES 
 
 
 
P.C. Meeting, July 24, 2023  

 
 3c. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Jake Finch, 

Cascade Companies,, requesting approval of a Change in Zoning 
from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family Attached (SFA) 
District. This property is located at 613 and 615 Rowlett Road. (District 
4) (File Z 23-22 – Zoning) 

 
 The applicant, Jake Finch, 1630 Addison Road, Addison, TX 75001, 

provided an overview of the request and remained available for 
questions. 
 
Commissioner Rose asked the applicant if he was familiar with the 
Garland area and referenced the Riverset development at Shiloh and 
Buckingham and asked if their development would look similar to that. 
 
The applicant explained that he was not familiar with that particular 
development. 
 
Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant if he had any type of Detail 
Plan since the request only includes a Zoning change without an 
attached Detail Plan. 
 
The applicant explained that they do have a Detail Plan but at the 
moment are only requesting a straight zoning change. 
 
Attorney Roten advised the commission to only focus on the request 
at hand. 
 
Commissioner Paris asked for clarification on an adjacent home near 
the subject property and whether it too would be removed. 
 
The applicant clarified that the adjacent home was not part of the 
subject property. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Cornelius to approve the 
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Paris. Motion 
carried: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays. 



City Council Meeting
August 15, 2023

The applicant requests a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) 
District to Single-Family Attached (SFA) District.

Z 23-22



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            613 and 615 Rowlett Road

Applicant:          Jake Finch, Cascade Companies

Owner:               Travis Langley

Acreage:             22.3 acres

Zoning:               Agricultural (AG) District

Z 23-22



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 23-22



CITYWIDE LOCATION 
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 23-22



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Z 23-22



The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan designates this property as Traditional Neighborhoods, Compact Neighborhoods 
and  Parks and Open Space.

Traditional neighborhoods are currently found throughout Garland and provide areas for low to moderate density single-family detached 
residential housing. Traditional neighborhoods also accommodate convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public 
services. Non-residential structures are compatible in architectural style and scale with adjacent residential development. Non-residential 
uses are typically located at the intersection of local streets or at local and secondary arterial streets. Non-residential uses are within 
walking distance of the neighborhoods they serve and include minimal on-site parking.  

Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, including single-family attached and single-family 
detached housing. It expands housing options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns.

Public Parks and Open Space areas include the vast array of park, recreation, and open space lands. This can range from small
neighborhood playgrounds to community parks with outdoor picnic areas, hike and bike trails, and play fields and tennis courts to 
community recreation centers with swimming pools or indoor gymnasiums; as well as natural areas and floodplains.  Private Parks and 
Open Space areas also include a variety of parks and related amenities in residential subdivisions as well as retail and commercial areas. 
Facilities and amenities range from landscaped entryways and medians to small playgrounds; to play fields, swimming pools, and golf 
courses, and other amenities including cemeteries, lakes, creeks, and other natural areas. These private lands play an essential role by 
contributing to the overall community park and open space system.

The proposed zoning is generally compatible with the Comprehensive Plan and provides an opportunity for mid-density transitional
housing for the surrounding area.

Z 23-22



PHOTOS

Z 23-22



PHOTOS

Z 23-22



CONSIDERATIONS

▪ The request is a traditional rezoning without the formation of a 
Planned Development (PD) District. These requests do not require 
Detail Plan approval to commence or direct development. 
Development is dependent on the standards set forth by the Garland 
Development Code (GDC) and the goals and policies established 
within the Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan.

▪ The  Single-Family Attached district is intended to promote stable, 
quality, attached-occupancy residential development on individual lots 
in logical, livable, and sustainable neighborhoods. This district may 
be included within certain areas of neighborhoods or, when in 
accordance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may provide a 
transition district between lower density residential areas, multifamily 
or nonresidential areas, or major thoroughfares.

Z 23-22



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) 
District to Single-Family Attached (SFA) District.

Z 23-22



PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION

▪On July 24, 2023 the Plan Commission, by a vote of seven 
(7) to zero (0), recommended approval of a Change in 
Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family 
Attached (SFA) District.

Z 23-22





GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 10. d.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: MSD 23-01 - 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC (District 5)
Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
A Municipal Setting Designation (MSD) application has been submitted for 1901 Northwest
Highway.  Per the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), a Municipal Setting
Designation (MSD) is an official state designation given to property within a municipality or its
extraterritorial jurisdiction that certifies that designated groundwater at the property is not used
as potable water, and is prohibited from future use as potable water because that groundwater
is contaminated in excess of the applicable potable-water protective concentration level. The
prohibition must be in the form of a city ordinance, or a restrictive covenant that is enforceable
by the city and filed in the property records.

A former dry cleaning business on the subject property used tetrachloroethene (PCE) based
solvents.  Approval of the MSD by the City of Garland will prohibit the use of the groundwater
on the shopping center property, while allowing the applicant to reinvest in the existing
shopping center and possibly redevelop in the future. The groundwater is safely contained and
will not adversely impact drinking water in the area.  

A public meeting was scheduled for Thursday, August 10 for interested individuals who
were notified about the request.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
The ordinance is attached for the Council's consideration.  Staff's recommendation is approval
of the ordinance.

Attachments
MSD 23-01 Location Map 
MSD 23-01 Ordinance 
MSD 23-01 Legal Description 
MSD 23-01 Responses 



4120412241244126412841304132413441364138414041424144

2011
2009

200720052003
2001

CO
UR

T W
Y

MAYFIELD AVE

TOWN CT

NORTHWEST HWY

LBJCENTERVILLEON N

LBJ FRWY

CLEAR POINT DR

TO
WN

GA
TE

 BL
VD

TOWN CT

LEXINGTON DR

N LBJ SERVICE RD

PE
ND

LE
TO

N 
DR

JA
CK

SO
N D

R

MA
RK

ET
PL

AC
E D

R

GR
EE

NW
AY

 D
R

LBJ NORTHWEST ON S

LBJ FRWY

LBJ FRWY

MILLAY BLVD

P DP D
0 7 - 0 20 7 - 0 2

S  0 6 - 4 5S  0 6 - 4 5P DP D
7 9 - 4 67 9 - 4 6

P D  8 6 - 7 1P D  8 6 - 7 1
P D  2 1 - 4 9P D  2 1 - 4 9

P D  7 1 - 7P D  7 1 - 7
S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  8 8 - 2 7P D  8 8 - 2 7

P D  9 6 - 3 8P D  9 6 - 3 8

P D  6 9 - 5 4P D  6 9 - 5 4 P D  9 4 - 3 5P D  9 4 - 3 5

C RC R

C RC R

P D  7 8 - 8 7P D  7 8 - 8 7

P D  1 1 - 1 3P D  1 1 - 1 3
S  1 1 - 0 7S  1 1 - 0 7

P DP D
0 6 - 3 70 6 - 3 7

SS
1 3 - 1 91 3 - 1 9

S  1 0 - 1 8S  1 0 - 1 8
S  1 2 - 4 4S  1 2 - 4 4

S  1 3 - 0 3S  1 3 - 0 3

C RC R

P D  6 9 - 3 1P D  6 9 - 3 1

P DP D
8 3 - 6 58 3 - 6 5

C RC R
SS

9 9 - 3 99 9 - 3 9

SS
1 5 - 1 01 5 - 1 0

SS
1 3 - 0 81 3 - 0 8

1815

1810

1932

1934

4113

2002

18144127
4125

4122

1826

4126

1957

1902

1814

1933

4121

1811
4119

2121

2120

1901

4130

4133

2113

1810

4131

4333

1809

1818

2006

2018

4118

1795

4146

4115

1813
4134

1821
2129 2015

1810

1920

4303
4323

4343
4353

43634373
4383

1943

12925

ZONING MAP MSD 23-01
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 268 feet

1901 Northwest Highway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NO. MSD 23-01 

1 
 

                                                          

ORDINANCE NO. 

 

       AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE USE OF AND CONTACT 

WITH DESIGNATED GROUNDWATER FROM BENEATH 

CERTAIN PROPERTY KNOWN AS 1901 NORTHWEST 

HIGHWAY WITHIN THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, TO 

FACILITATE CERTIFICATION OF A MUNICIPAL SETTING 

DESIGNATION OF THE PROPERTY BY THE TEXAS 

COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY PURSUANT TO 

THE TEXAS HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SEC. 10.05 OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, 

TEXAS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS,  Texas Health and Safety Code Chapter 361 

Subchapter W (the "MSD Legislation") authorizes 

the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

(TCEQ) to certify Municipal Setting Designations 

for properties upon receipt and approval of a 

properly submitted application to TCEQ; and 

WHEREAS,    the Texas Legislature, in enacting the MSD 

Legislation, found that an action by a 

municipality to restrict access to or the use 

of groundwater in support of or to facilitate a 

Municipal Setting Designation (MSD) advances a 

substantial and legitimate state interest where 

the quality of the groundwater subject to the 

designation is an actual or potential threat to 

human health; and 

WHEREAS,    as a part of the application process for an 

MSD, the applicant has submitted a statement 

regarding the type of known contamination in the 

groundwater beneath the MSD property and has 

identified that groundwater to be restricted is 

any groundwater from the top of the water table 

at approximately seven (7) feet to a depth of 

fifty (50) feet. 



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NO. MSD 23-01 

2 
 

WHEREAS, an MSD to restrict the access and use of 

groundwater beneath the property at 1901 

Northwest Highway in the upper 50 feet below 

ground surface is necessary due to measurable 

concentrations of trichloroethylene and 

tetrachlorethylene above the respective 

protective concentration limits for potable 

water in the upper groundwater seepage zone; 

WHEREAS,    as a part of the application process for an 

MSD, the applicant is required to provide 

documentation that the property for which 

designation is sought is supported by an 

ordinance adopted by this City Council; and 

WHEREAS,    1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC submitted an 

application for the City Council to adopt an 

Ordinance supporting the certification of an MSD 

for property at 1901 Northwest Highway and the 

City staff have reviewed and evaluated the 

subject MSD application; and  

WHEREAS,    Applicant will submit an application to TCEQ 

for certification of an MSD for property within 

the city limits of the City, commonly known as 

1901 Northwest Highway, the legal description 

of which is set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached 

hereto and made a part hereof, the “MSD 

Property”, provided that the ordinance being 

considered herein is passed; and  

WHEREAS,    the Applicant has certified that: 

1) the purpose of its application is to conduct 

environmental investigation, cleanup and 

restoration activities in a more efficient and 

cost-effective manner; 

2) it will seek to obtain a determination from TCEQ 

that regulatory closure is attained at the MSD 

Property; 

3) as part of such application, the Applicant has 

submitted a statement to TCEQ regarding the type 

of known contamination in the groundwater 

beneath the MSD Property; and 



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NO. MSD 23-01 

3 
 

4) notice of the application for the certification 

of MSD Property has been provided to each owner 

of a registered private water well that is 

located not more than five miles from the 

boundary of the MSD Property; and 

 

WHEREAS,    a public drinking water supply system exists 

that satisfies the requirements of Texas Health 

and Safety Code Chapter 341 for the MSD Property 

and property within one-half mile of the MSD 

Property; and 

WHEREAS,    after public hearing, the City Council 

believes that it is in the best interest of the 

public and the City to facilitate the efforts 

to secure an MSD and TCEQ closure documentation 

from the TCEQ by passage of this Ordinance; NOW 

THEREFORE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GARLAND, TEXAS THAT: 

 

Section 1                            

     That all of the declarations and findings contained 

in the preambles of this Ordinance are made a part hereof 

and shall be fully effective as a part of the ordained 

subject matter of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2 

    That the City Council finds that it is in the best 

interest and welfare of the public to facilitate TCEQ 's 

certification of an MSD for the MSD Property, as well as 

TCEQ closure documentation. 

 

Section 3 

    That, upon and after the effective date of this 

Ordinance, the drilling of wells and the use of 

designated groundwater for any purpose, including but 

not limited to any potable purpose, excepting only: (i) 



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NO. MSD 23-01 

4 
 

wells used as monitoring wells for the collection of 

groundwater samples for chemical or biological 

laboratory analysis; and (ii) wells used for the purpose 

of remediation of soil or groundwater contamination, is 

hereby prohibited on or from any portion of the MSD 

Property. 

Section 4 

    That within sixty (60) days after receipt of the 

municipal setting designation certificate from the TCEQ, 

the City Manager, or his designee, shall file a certified 

copy of this Municipal Setting Designation Ordinance in 

the deed records of Dallas County. 

 

Section 5 

    That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are 

severable and are governed by Sec. 10.06 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas. 

 

Section 6 

    That a violation of this Ordinance shall be a 

misdemeanor punishable in accordance with Section 10.05 

of the Code of Ordinances, City of Garland, Texas. 

 

Section 7 

   That this Ordinance shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its passage and approval. 

 



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NO. MSD 23-01 

5 
 

 

 
ZONING FILE NO. Z 23-01 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this________ day of ___________________, 
2023. 
 
 
      THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 

By: 
 
      ________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 

City Secretary 
 
 
 
       Published: 



MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FILE NUMBER MSD 23-01 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 

Municipal Setting Designation File MSD 23-01 
 

 

Lot 2R, Block 1 of TOWNGATE PLAZA, an Addition to the City 

of Garland, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded 

in Volume 93134, Page 2812, Map Records, Dallas County, 

Texas 



4120

2011
2009

2007 2005
2003 2001

4102
410441064108411041124114411641182029

2027 2025
2023

2021 2019
2017
2015

2013

2030
2028 2026

2024 2022
2020 2018

2016 2014
2012 2010
2008 2006

2004 2002

2030 2028
2026 2024
2022 2020

2018
2016

2014
2012 2010
2008
2006

2004
2002

2029
2027
2025
2023
2021

2019
2017
2015
2013
2011
2009
2007
2005
2003
2001

2017 2015
2013

2011
2009

2007
2005
2003
2001 3920392239243926393140044006400840104012

401440164018402040224024
4026

4001
4003
4007
4009
4013
4015
4019
4021

4101
4103
4107
4109

4131

4002

4006
4010
4014

4018
4022

4102
4106
4110
4114

3937

3941

4034 40
30

40
26

40
22

40
18

40
14 40

10

17
09

S F - 7S F - 7

17
05

17
10 17
06

17
02

17
09

17
05

17
01

16
05

16
05

18
14

18
10

18
13

18
09

18
14

18
10

18
06 18
02

17
14

17
10

17
06 17
02

16
02

18
05 18
01

17
13

17
09

17
05

17
01

18
06 18
02

17
14 17
10

17
06 17
02

16
10 16
06

1661

1950

1780 1750 1720
1801

1930
1920

1901

1902

12949
1910

1914 1918

2135

2155

2129

2102
2018

12733

12721

12729

12725

2110

2006

12715

12675

3938

2101

13401

1775 1717

1601

12973

LBJ FRWY

HIG
H

PO
INT CIR

TOWN CT

NORTHWEST HWY

GREENSBORO CIR

N LBJ
SERVICE RD

JA
CK

SO
N D

R

TO
WN

GA
TE

 BL
VD

RO
AN

OK
E

DR

CO
UR

T W
Y

LBJ FRWY

MAYFIELD AVE

DOUGLAS DR
TOWN PL

TOWN CT

COURT PL

LBJ NORTHWEST OFF S

LEXINGTON DR

LBJNORTHWESTON N

LBJ FRWY

CLEAR POINT DR

PE
ND

LE
TO

N 
DR

LBJ CENTERVILLE ON N

GR
EE

NW
AY

 DR

MA
RK

ET
PL

AC
E D

R

LE
ON

 R
D

MILLAY BLVD

LBJ NORTHWEST ON S

P DP D
6 9 - 3 16 9 - 3 1

P D  0 7 - 0 2P D  0 7 - 0 2

P D  8 6 - 7 1P D  8 6 - 7 1

I NI N S  7 8 - 3 4S  7 8 - 3 4
P D  7 1 - 7P D  7 1 - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  8 8 - 2 7P D  8 8 - 2 7

P D  9 6 - 3 8P D  9 6 - 3 8

C RC R

P DP D
7 8 - 8 77 8 - 8 7

P D  1 1 - 1 3P D  1 1 - 1 3
S  1 1 - 0 7S  1 1 - 0 7

P D  0 6 - 3 7P D  0 6 - 3 7

S  1 3 - 0 3S  1 3 - 0 3

C RC R
C RC R

SS
9 9 - 3 99 9 - 3 9

S  1 5 - 1 0S  1 5 - 1 0

P DP D
1 8 - 1 31 8 - 1 3

SS
1 0 - 1 81 0 - 1 8

SS
1 2 - 4 41 2 - 4 4

P D  6 9 - 3 1P D  6 9 - 3 1

P DP D
0 8 - 3 00 8 - 3 0

P D  2 1 - 4 9P D  2 1 - 4 9

P DP D
6 9 - 5 46 9 - 5 4

C RC R

P DP D
8 9 - 48 9 - 4

I NI N

1815

1810

1932

4142

1934

4140

4113

2002

4127
4125

4122

1826

4126
4132

1957

1902

4136

1933

4121

1811
4119

2121

2120

1901

4130

4128

4133

2113

4333

1818

4126 4118

1795

4146

4115

4134

4122

1821
2015

1920

4303
4323

4343
4353

43634373
4383

1943

12925

ZONING MAP MSD 23-01
¯

0 270 540 Feet 1 inch = 408 feet

1901 Northwest Highway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA

Text

CITY OF DALLAS



We have not received any responses for this case. 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 10. e.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: MSD 23-01 - 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC (District 5)
Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director 

Summary of Request/Problem
A Municipal Setting Designation (MSD) application has been submitted for 1901 Northwest
Highway.  Per the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), a Municipal Setting
Designation (MSD) is an official state designation given to property within a municipality or its
extraterritorial jurisdiction that certifies that designated groundwater at the property is not used
as potable water, and is prohibited from future use as potable water because that groundwater
is contaminated in excess of the applicable potable-water protective concentration level. The
prohibition must be in the form of a city ordinance, or a restrictive covenant that is enforceable
by the city and filed in the property records.

A former dry cleaning business on the subject property used tetrachloroethene (PCE) based
solvents.  Approval of the MSD by the City of Garland will prohibit the use of the groundwater
on the shopping center property, while allowing the applicant to reinvest in the existing
shopping center and possibly redevelop in the future. The groundwater is safely contained and
will not adversely impact drinking water in the area.  

A public meeting was scheduled for Thursday, August 10 for interested individuals who
were notified about the request.

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification
The resolution is attached for the Council's consideration.  Staff's recommendation is approval
of the resolution.

Attachments
Resolution Attachment 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPLICATION OF 1901 W NORTHWEST 

HIGHWAY, LLC FOR A MUNICIPAL SETTING DESIGNATION FOR THE 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1901 W NORTHWEST HIGHWAY; AND PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 361, Subchapter W of the Texas Health and 

Safety Code authorizes the Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality (TCEQ) to certify Municipal Setting Designations 

(MSDs) for properties upon receipt and approval of a properly 

submitted application to TCEQ;  

 

WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature, in enacting the MSD 

Legislation, found that an action by a municipality in support 

of or to facilitate an MSD advances a substantial and 

legitimate state interest;  

 

WHEREAS, as part of the application process for an MSD, the 

applicant is required to provide documentation of support 

from each municipality owning and operating a groundwater 

supply well within a five mile radius of the proposed MSD 

location; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Garland has passed an ordinance 

contemporaneously with this resolution in support of the MSD 

application and restricting the use of groundwater at the 

proposed MSD location; and 

 

WHEREAS, neither the City of Garland nor the City of Dallas 

owns or operates a groundwater supply well situated within a 

five mile radius of the proposed MSD location;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GARLAND, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1 

 

The City of Garland, Texas, supports and does not oppose the 

establishment of a Municipal Setting Designation for the 

property located at 1901 W. Northwest Highway, Garland, 

Texas. 

 

Section 2 

 

That this Resolution shall be and become effective 

immediately upon and after its adoption and approval. 



 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the ______ day of August, 2023. 

 

 

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________ 

City Secretary 



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 11. a.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Board and Commission Appointment
Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary 

Summary of Request/Problem
Mayor Scott Lemay 

Jennifer Nguyen – Community Multicultural Commission
Elvia Flores – Community Multicultural Commission
Mitch Carr – Cultural Arts Commission
Ken Risser – Environmental and Community Advisory Board
Don Koerner – Parks and Recreation Board
Wayne Dalton – Plan Commission
David Perry – Property Standards Board
Shirley Robnett – Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Allan Stafford – Tax Increment Finance #1 Downtown Board
Patrick Abell – Tax Increment Finance #3 Board

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification

Attachments
Jennifer Nguyen 
Elvia Flores 
Mitch Carr 
Ken Risser 
Don Koerner 
Wayne Dalton 
David Perry 
Shirley Robnett 
Allan Stafford 
Patrick Abell 











CSO Received 8/3/23

X
X

X
Courtney Vanover 8/3/23















GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 11. b.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Board and Commission Appointment
Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary 

Summary of Request/Problem

Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Bass 

Beena Varnan - Cultural Arts Commission
Nancy Janssen - Parks and Recreation Board

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification

Attachments
Beena Varnan 
Nancy Janssen 







GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

   
City Council Regular Session Agenda 11. c.        
Meeting Date: 08/15/2023  
Item Title: Board and Commission Appointment
Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary 

Summary of Request/Problem
Council Member Dylan Hedrick 

John VanPelt - Cultural Arts Commission
Terri Chepregi - Library Board
David Parrish - Parks and Recreation Board
Mike Rose - Plan Commission
Martha Melaku - Property Standards Board
Charlotte Piercy - Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Tony Bui - Tax Increment Finance #1 Downtown Board

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justification

Attachments
John VanPelt 
Terri Chepregi 
David Parrish 
Mike Rose 
Martha Melaku 
Charlotte Piercy 
Tony Bui 











CSO Received 8/3/23

X
X

X
Courtney Vanover 8/3/23






	Agenda
	AI_8227_Minutes August 1, 2023
	       ATT_Minutes August 1, 2023
	AI_8122_GP&L Lookout to NTT Connect Project Materials
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI_8123_GP&L Boiler Maintenance and Repair Services
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	AI_8125_GP&L CO2 Analyzer Rental
	AI_8166_GP&L Girvin Switch to Greasewood II Hardware Materials 
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI_8161_TMPA Dansby to Steep Hollow Transmission Line Hardware Materials 
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	AI_8168_GP&L and TMPA Transmission Relay and Communications Equipment 
	AI_8146_Wastewater Mains Replacement 
	AI_8191_Z 22-72 Val Gutierrez (District 6)
	       ATT_Z 22-72 Ordinance
	       ATT_Z 22-72 Exhibit A
	       ATT_Z 22-72 Exhibit B
	       ATT_Z 22-72 Exhibits C-E
	Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Landscape Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Building Elevations 2
	Building Elevations 1
	Dumpster Elevations

	AI_8192_Z 23-21 Will Bohls (District 8)
	       ATT_Z 23-21 Ordinance
	       ATT_Z 23-21 Exhibit A
	       ATT_Z 23-21 Exhibit B
	       ATT_Z 23-21 Exhibit C
	Sheets and Views
	R0044017.00_SP-Layout1-24X36


	AI_8165_Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County for Transportation Improvements on Jupiter Road
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Project Specific Agreement
	ADPD59C.tmp
	Attachment A

	ADPC9A3.tmp
	PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT
	RE: VARIOUS ROADS, “TYPE B” PUBLIC ROADWAY -- MADE PURSUANT TO ROAD & BRIDGE MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS
	This PSA becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signature makes the agreement fully executed and shall terminate upon the completion and acceptance of the Project by City or upon the terms and conditions in the Master Agreement.
	Article V
	I. Indemnification. County and City agree that each shall be responsible for its own negligent acts or omissions or other tortious conduct in the course of performance of this Agreement, without waiving any sovereign/governmental immunity available to...
	II. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this PSA are for the benefit of the parties hereto and not for the benefit of any third party.  It is the express intention of County and City that any entity other than County or City rece...
	III. Applicable Law. This PSA is and shall be expressly subject to the County’s and City’s Sovereign Immunity and/or Governmental Immunity, pursuant to Title 5 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, as amended and all applicable federal and st...
	IV. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communication under this PSA shall be tendered in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when either delivered in person, via e-mail, or via certified mail, postage prepaid, return re...


	AI_8001_Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute a Project Specific Agreement with Dallas County for Jupiter Road Improvements
	       ATT_Dallas County and COG PSA Agreement-Jupiter
	ADPD59C.tmp
	Attachment A

	ADPC9A3.tmp
	PROJECT SPECIFIC AGREEMENT
	RE: VARIOUS ROADS, “TYPE B” PUBLIC ROADWAY -- MADE PURSUANT TO ROAD & BRIDGE MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS
	This PSA becomes effective when signed by the last party whose signature makes the agreement fully executed and shall terminate upon the completion and acceptance of the Project by City or upon the terms and conditions in the Master Agreement.
	Article V
	I. Indemnification. County and City agree that each shall be responsible for its own negligent acts or omissions or other tortious conduct in the course of performance of this Agreement, without waiving any sovereign/governmental immunity available to...
	II. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this PSA are for the benefit of the parties hereto and not for the benefit of any third party.  It is the express intention of County and City that any entity other than County or City rece...
	III. Applicable Law. This PSA is and shall be expressly subject to the County’s and City’s Sovereign Immunity and/or Governmental Immunity, pursuant to Title 5 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, as amended and all applicable federal and st...
	IV. Notice.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communication under this PSA shall be tendered in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when either delivered in person, via e-mail, or via certified mail, postage prepaid, return re...


	       ATT_Resolution for PSA signature
	AI_8048_Garland Development Code Ordinance 1.51 – Engineering Review and Inspection Fee
	       ATT_Proposed GDC Amendments 1.51 Engineering Fees
	AI_8210_Part-time Associate Judge Appointment- Donna Winfield
	       ATT_Written Briefing_PTAssocJudge
	Donna M. Winﬁeld
	Attorney, Private Practice 1994-Present
	Experience
	Education
	Personal
	Languages
	References

	AI_8167_Public Hearing on Proposed FY 2023/2024 Tax Rate
	AI_8145_Public Hearing on 2023-24 Proposed Budget
	AI_8170_Z 23-17 Fred A. Gans - Zoning (District 1)
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Conditions 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 RandM Zoning 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Staff Presentation
	AI_8169_Consideration of the application of Jake Finch, Cascade Companies, requesting approval of a Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Exhibits 
	188-70-23 plan 4-PD SITE PLAN 7-31-203
	Sheets and Views
	PD SITE PLAN


	188-70-23 plan 4-PD LANDSCAPE PLAN 7-31-2023
	Sheets and Views
	PD LANDSCAPE PLAN


	elevations

	       ATT_Z 23-17 RandM Detail Plan 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 23-17 Staff Presentation
	AI_8162_Z 23-22 Jake Finch, Cascade Companies (District 4)
	       ATT_Z 23-22 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 23-22 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 23-22 RandM Zoning 
	       ATT_Z 23-22 Staff Presentation 
	AI_8189_MSD 23-01 - 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC (District 5)
	       ATT_MSD 23-01 Location Map
	       ATT_MSD 23-01 Ordinance
	       ATT_MSD 23-01 Legal Description
	       ATT_MSD 23-01 Responses
	AI_8232_MSD 23-01 - 1901 W Northwest Highway, LLC (District 5)
	       ATT_Resolution Attachment
	AI_8226_Board and Commission Appointment
	       ATT_Jennifer Nguyen
	       ATT_Elvia Flores
	       ATT_Mitch Carr
	       ATT_Ken Risser
	       ATT_Don Koerner
	       ATT_Wayne Dalton
	       ATT_David Perry
	       ATT_Shirley Robnett
	       ATT_Allan Stafford
	       ATT_Patrick Abell
	AI_8243_Board and Commission Appointment
	       ATT_Beena Varnan
	       ATT_Nancy Janssen
	AI_8246_Board and Commission Appointment
	       ATT_John VanPelt
	       ATT_Terri Chepregi
	       ATT_David Parrish
	       ATT_Mike Rose
	       ATT_Martha Melaku
	       ATT_Charlotte Piercy
	       ATT_Tony Bui

